
MINUTES 

MONTANA SENATE 
54th LEGISLATURE - REGULAR SESSION 

COMMITTEE ON JUDICIARY 

Call to Order: By BRUCE D. CRIPPEN, CHAIRMAN, on February 6, 
1995, at 10:00 A.M. 

ROLL CALL 

Members Present: 
Sen. Bruce D. Crippen, Chairman (R) 
Sen. Al Bishop, Vice Chairman (R) 
Sen. Larry L. Baer (R) 
Sen. Sharon Estrada (R) 
Sen. Lorents Grosfield (R) 
Sen. Ric Holden (R) 
Sen. Reiny Jabs (R) 
Sen. Sue Bartlett (D) 
Sen. Steve Doherty (D) 
Sen. Mike Halligan (D) 
Sen. Linda J. Nelson (D) 

Members Excused: None. 

Members Absent: None. 

Staff Present: Valencia Lane, Legislative Council 
Judy Feland, Committee Secretary 

Please Note: These are summary minutes. Testimony and 
discussion are paraphrased and condensed. 

Committee Business Summary: 
Hearing: SB 206 

{Tape: 1; Side: A; Approx. Counter: aa} 

Executive Action: None. 

HEARING ON SB 206 

Opening Statement by Sponsor: 

SENATOR JIM BURNETT, Senate District 12, Luther, sponsored SB 
206. He presented the bill that he said had been in the making 
for the past four years. He gave the committee a packet of 
information (EXHIBIT 1) which included a list of more than 200 
people who had contacted him during that time. The telephone 
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numbers were included for contacts if desired. The need 
change is astronomical in this particular department, he 
He read from prepared testimony on Page 1 of the packet. 

for 
said. 

SENATOR 
BURNETT said that he thought there was no impact, but the 
Department of Family Services issued a note that indicated a 
$500,000 cost. He disagreed with that figure and issued his own 
response (EXHIB~T 2). He read the bill's intent from Page 1 of 
the bill. He maintained that there cannot be abuse ~f there is 
no abuser. He read the underlined sections of the bill that had 
been significantly changed. 

In two instances he wanted to change "civil action" to "criminal 
action" in this bill, but he told the committee he had failed to 
do this. 

Proponents' Testimony: REPRESENTATIVE LARRY GRINDE, House 
District 94, Lewistown, spoke in favor of SB 206. He said that 
in most cases the Department of Family Services (DFS) does a good 
job, but some things needed attention. He said that most of the 
calls he received at home concerned the area of child and family 
services. He gave a brief history. In Lewistown a woman died 
laying in her own feces from malnutrition, he said. This was 
reported on several occasions and nothing was done. Nobody took 
responsibility. The family was tried and found innocent, 
although he felt they were negligent. He thought that DFS could 
have prevented this. In another case, a young woman was living 
with her family. She gave birth to a baby one morning and that 
night, DFS representatives were there to take the baby away. He 
said maybe there was a need. He told the committee that they had 
to start using some common sense. 

He had some items to address on the subject: 

1) The qualifications of social workers: he said when workers 
are hired, the only criteria is a college education in some 
related field. He asked the committee to review hiring criteria 
to make sure of qualifications. There is no liability for the 
people in the field. He said everyone should be liable for their 
actions, and the duties they pe~form. 

2) Rotation of social workers: He did not want to uproot their 
lives, but he said but it may help the workers to separate 
themselves from some of the cases if they did not know the 
players involved and heard rumors, innuendoes and accusations 
that are rampant in small towns. 

3) Anonymous reporting: He thought people could make phone 
calls to the Family Services because of personal vendettas. The 
workers, then, are forced to go and investigate, he said. He 
thought the accused should have the right to face accusers. He 
said people making complaints should have to come forward and 
tell why. 

4) Videotaping: He recognized the objections to this portion of 
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the bill, but said it was only fair. If there was no videotape, 
there should be other family members there, he said. The fiscal 
note said that in each case, a tape would have to be made, but 
that was wrong. He said other people should be at the table when 
interviews are given and not just the people from the social 
worker area. 

There are other related bills introduced, he said. One had to do 
with the purging of files. This needs to be done when Family 
Services investigates a case and no problems are found. That 
file still sits there, even though it is without reason. He said 
everyone wanted to protect the children. He said there has to be 
some rights for families on recourse. Families do not have a way 
to get a court date, or see their children. He hoped for a 
resolution to include his recommendations, the bill, and some 
suggestions from Family Services which they had consulted during 
the prior week. He said that nothing had changed when he took 
his concerns to the DFS for the past four years. 

Paul Befumo, representing himself and Montanans for Due Process, 
spoke in support of SB 206. He said current law resembles laws 
of many states, but it was not enforced in the same way. What 
Montana had claimed to do through their legislative and judicial 
branches, is to take children from their homes and give temporary 
custody to DFS only on a showing of probable cause. However, the 
way the Montana Supreme Court defined, "temporary" is until the 
child reaches 18 years of age. So, he maintained, if the State 
of Montana takes a child, they have claimed the authority to give 
temporary custody to DFS, and never afford the people who have 
been accused of abuse and neglect an adjudicatory hearing. All 
they have to show is a probable cause hearing. This bill would 
force DFS, if they wish to hold onto children, to have some sort 
of hearing where there can be findings of fact and conclusions of 
law that will justify the taking of the children. 
What the bill won't do, he said, is to prevent DFS from going in 
in an emergency situation where a child is in imminent danger. 
But once DFS goes in to do that, it sets specific time limits 
wherein they must justify the allegations made. DFS cannot 
handle this situation of their own, he said, as evidenced in the 
case of Marcia Kirchner (contained in EXHIBIT 1). A statement is 
made that she quit her job, which is incorrect. Within three 
days after the affidavit was filed, she was grilled by two higher 
authorities in DFS and the next day was dismissed from her 
position without cause and without any compensation. They fired 
her. This is how DFS handles their own caseworkers, he said. He 
said that the legislative and judicial branches are terminating 
parental rights without going through the statutes that dictate 
how parental rights are supposed to be terminated. If that 
agency takes a child for temporary custody, and that custody 
lasts until the child in 18 years old, the parental right has 
been terminated. He said legislation is needed to change that. 
Parents need the opportunity for an adjudicatory hearing to 
establish whether or not the underlying allegations are true or 
not. 
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William V. Fowler, Missoula, representing himself, said he had 
been enmeshed in the DFS situation for four years. In July of 
1991 the Department of Family Services removed from his home a 
child over which he had custody. The reason for the removal was 
allegations from a half-brother, age 3, stating that his 7-year­
old son had tried to put a toy up his "hindy-butt." Mr. Fowler 
was accused of teaching him how to do that. He had not been 
allowed to see his son, nor speak to him on the phone for the 
four years. He had hired different attorneys and spent $35,000 
and has never had a show-cause hearing. He now has a case in 
federal court to appeal. They said he had to exhaust his 
remedies, but he could not get the show-cause hearing after fou~ 
years. It has to be changed, he said. Parental rights have been 
taken away and he told the committee that they would not get away 
with it for very long. He presented court petitions. (EXHIBITS 3 
and 4) . 

Dan Newman, Missc~la, representing himself, asked that where 
criminal law is violated, charges be prosecuted. He said that no 
immunity should be granted anyone working for the state, either 
in judiciary or an attorney. He aaid that ethical standards are 
abused in the state by the conduct of professionals including 
psychologists, social workers, and attorneys. The duty to 
clients and the idea of right and wrong is all 'who can put who 
in office and out of office,' he said. He ran for Justice of the 
Peace in Missoula and got 5,000 votes as opposed to 23,000 for 
his opponent. He said he was proud that there were 5,000 people 
in Missoula County who would stand with him to prosecute 
criminals. He said he was for law and order and bringing down 
organized crime, which he said ran the County of Missoula and 
perhaps other counties. 

Fred Rushton, Vaughn, represented himself and spoke in favor of 
the bill. He told the committee about his son who lost his 
children to DFS because of an anonymous call that accused him of 
drunkenness and of beating his children. An investigation showed 
that he had no record and never drank in his life. The children 
were given back. However, he contended that Social Services 
don't like to be proven wrong and have done everything the~ could 
for the last three or four years to prove him an unfit faL_er. 
Teachers at the childrens' schools had been enlisted to quiz the 
children about abuses and would call the social workers and 
police if they could get the children to say anything. For these 
reasons, his son moved out of the state to Arizona, leaving a 
$50,OOO-a-year job. The family is doing well there now, he said. 

David Brinley, from Central Montana, speaking for himself, 
supported SB 206. He read from a written statement. (EXHIBIT 5) 

(Tape: 1; Side: B; Approx. Counter: 00) 

Vicki Vincent, representing herself and her daughter, Amanda 
Henderson, appeared to support SB 206. She said she was lucky 
and got her daughter back after five weeks. Her daughter had 
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been taken from school by Child Protective Services acting on an 
anonymous call in which abuse was involved. The Protective 
Services decided she had been sexually molested by her dad on top 
of all else, she said. Ms. Vincent refused to speak to the 
social workers because she realized she needed a lawyer, but that 
refusal was held against her. When she went for a meeting with 
the social worker and the daughter, she was not allowed to ask 
questions, only'to say that she loved her and supported her in 
everything. She wasn't allow to ask what happened. She did try 
to ask, however, and the social worker got very nasty and 
terminated the visit. Due to the allegations of sexual 
molestation, her husband was evicted from the house the following 
night. The social worker claimed he was still there, but did not 
bother to come and find out, she said. Ms. Vincent called 
everyone she could, legislators, papers, television stations, 
etc. The advise she garnered was that she would be lucky to ever 
get her daughter back. She heard nothing but bad reports about 
DFS. She finally talked to her daughter on a fluke and the 
daughter reported that the social worker had cautioned her not to 
talk to her mother about what had happened, or she would be moved 
so far away that she would never see her mother again. They had 
told the daughter that the mother hated her and did not want her 
at home. They divided and conquered, she contended. She found 
out later that the social workers had talked to the daughter for 
30 minutes in school and 45 minutes after school before she was 
ever videotaped. In the videotape it was evident that words were 
clearly put into the daughter's mouth to make it appear that she 
had been molested. She repeatedly asked to go home, and was told 
if she played the game for the social workers, she would be 
allowed to go home. The daughter later realized the social 
workers had lied. Ms. Vincent wondered how many children were 
taken under the same circumstances and brainwashed into thinking 
that their parents don't want them. She did not know how Social 
Services could be allowed to keep kids for several months without 
the parents being charged with anything, but on accusations. She 
said that she was held responsible, as a nurse, for any mistakes 
she made. She could not understand why people who are messing 
with other people's lives are not held responsible. 

She did not support the rotation of social workers. She said 
they would only have new prey to work on. She did support 
changing the anonymous reporting law. Anyone could call in with 
a personal vendetta, she said. Videotaping should be done in the 
first interview with no leading questions. It should be done by 
someone other than the social worker that initiated the case, 
perhaps a third party. She also supported SB 270 which deals 
with purging the files if no criminal charges are filed. She 
introduced her daughter. 

Amanda Henderson spoke to the committee. The social worker had 
put words into her mouth, she said, to say she was sexually 
abused. She said the worker promised if she told her what she 
wanted to hear she would go home that night. She said she was in 
custody for five more weeks, and she later found out they were 
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lying to her as well as to her family. The first foster home she 
was placed in the foster mother was good friends with the social 
worker. The foster mother was an alcoholic who constantly 
verbally abused her own son and another child in the home at the 
time. Ms. Henderson was moved to a second home wherein her 
parents knew the family. She said the social workers had screwed 
up her life, causing her nightmares about being kidnapped, as she 
contends she was. She does not trust strangers because she is 
fearful of what happened would happen again. She gets sick to 
her stomach every time she hears the words, "DFS." She said the 
bill needs to pass because there could be many families "messed 
up" by the social workers. 

Penny Bernhardt, Belgrade, spoke for herself in favor of SB 206. 
She read written testimony. (EXHIBIT 6) 

Mindy Mistic, Grass Range, represented herself. She told the 
committee that in 1991 her ex-husband had made false accusations 
against her because she was planning to re-marry and he did not 
want her to. He decided to take the love of her life, her kids, 
she said. She went through three court hearings and all they 
found against her was that her daughter had not been enrolled in 
a speech class. The child had accidentally knocked her teeth out 
previously and the dentist told the mother not to worry about 
mispronunciation because of the missing teeth. The judge 
reinstated the children. The ex-husband along with the DFS re­
opened the divorce decree to contest custody and took the 
children in 13 subsequent cases. She said that DFS later 
admitted to wrongdoing to re-open the divorce case. She had not 
seen or had her children for four years, she said. She had 
sneaked into school and basketball games to watch them and 
sneaked around church to give them gifts. She stated that she 
lost herself when she lost her children and said her insides were 
taken, leaving only the body to walk with. Four years later her 
ex-husband called her and asked her to take the youngest 
daughter, age 12, because he did not want her. He kept two older 
children, ages 14 and 18. She maintained the DFS had interfered 
in her life, assisting her ex-husband in untrue accusations. She 
felt the DFS had too much control. She also said the background 
check should be put into effect. The social worker who took her 
children was restricted from seeing his cwn child because of 
sexual, mental and physical abuse. Ms. Mistic thought the 
videotaping would be good idea. She said she tape-recorded 
sessions with social workers where they called her names, but 
they are not admissible, whereas a video would be. She asked for 
help in passing the bill. 

Joan Austad, Great Falls, represented herself. She read from 
written testimony. (EXHIBIT 7) 

Al Nerling, Sun River, representing himself, spoke on behalf of 
SB 206. He said he'd been fighting DFS for 12 years for his 
granddaughter. He finally got her when she was 16 years old, 
when, he said, the damage was done. He said when Gene Huntington 
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started Family Services, he was supposed to close the cracks. 
But 1988, he maintained, it had doubled instead. His 
granddaughter asked him to keep fighting so that other kids would 
not have to go through what she had been through. All he wanted 
is for DFS to abide by the laws we have, which they were not 
presently qoing. He said they were the 'rudest, nastiest, 
lyingest people '. he'd ever met. 

John Schubert, Missoula, spoke for himself and his wife, Tammy, 
in support Sb 206. He submitted a letter he had written to the 
Governor in September, 1994. (EXHIBIT 8) He said there was a 
real need for checks and balances within the system. He felt 
that videotaping was very important. 

Karen Kowalczyk, Roundup, represented her fiance, Larry Lekse, in 
support SB 206. She spoke to the committee and submitted written 
testimony. (EXHIBIT 9) 

Jerry O'Neil, representing Vocal of Montana, spoke on behalf of 
Sb 206. 

Gary Wilson, Alberton, gave his name in support of SB 206. 

Kenneth E. Haugen, Missoula, rose to support the bill. 
(EXHIBIT 10) 

Gerald Bartow, Roundup, also spoke in favor of SB 206. 

Wanda Harris, Kalispell, stood in support of the measure. 

Michael Billedeoux, Missoula, favored the bill. (EXHIBIT II) 

Frank Fitzgerald lent his name in support of the legislation. 

Opponents' Testimony: 

Hank Hudson, Director, Department of Family Services, appeared to 
respectfully oppose SB 206. He said the proposal of checks and 
balances are the debate and struggle the department members go 
though daily on every case they hear. They must decide how to 
balance the legal responsibility they have to protect children 

and adults with the right that citizens have to be left alone by 
their government and not be dictated to unnecessarily. He said 
that the bill has been heard three or four times that he could 
remember, and each time their department members ask themselves 
how they could be more careful and cautious in dealing with 
families while recognizing the effect that removing a child from 
a family might have on those members of the family. However, 
they must avoid the tragedy of child abuse and death that occur 
all too frequently. He said they had tried to safeguard against 
any social worker II running away with the program II, lacking sense 
and being unfair. During the last hearing of the bill, they 
presented a chart showing how many people would have to be 
convinced that it was the right thing to remove a child from a 

950206JU.SM1 



SENATE JUDICIARY COMMITTEE 
February 6, 1995 

Page 8 of 17 

home for more than the 48-hour emergency proceeding. Not only 
the social worker would have to agree, but also the supervisor, 
the Child Protective Service Team, which is made up of a number 
of people who do not work for the DFS, the County Attorney, the 
guardian ad litum, an attorney for the parents if they have one, 
the judge and eventually the Foster Care Review Committee. They 
have made some changes, he said. They have moved some of the 
scarce resources they have into family-based services; 

He told the committee that the best protection a child can have 
is being home with their families and whenever that is possible, 
that's what they try to accomplish. He also said they had 
changed their legal process for notification which informs 
everyone who had a s'"bstantiated case of abuse that will describe 
the appeal process of the department. Another problem previously 
stated was the shortage of workers and unreturned calls. They 
have asked for more helpers and more training than ever before, 
he stated. They have probably taken more disciplinary actions 
than any state department in the last two years, he said without 
relish. 

They support the Foster Care Review pilot, reviewing children in 
foster care. They endorsed and welcomed a legislative review 
during the interim. The results of that review read, "in short, 
it would appear that Montana's statutes for providir.~ emergency 
child protective services are Constitutional becausE they do 
allow the state to intervene in an emergency situation to protect 
a child's best interest. . and do allow a process of 
notification and hearing for parents in consideration of due 
process rights." They are painfully aware of what a mistake can 
do in their department. He said in Representative Grinde's 
example of the woman dying from abuse, the family was charged 
with neglect and found innocent. In that case their c~partment 
would have had to return that woman to the home, and it would not 
have prevented the situation. 

He said HB 186 by Representative Kasten would provide more 
ir.formation to families and provide greater access to records for 
ttose accused of abuse and neglect. ~he department was willing 
to add a provision to prevent the reffi~~al of a child based on an 
anonymous report. He said he would also support the immediate 
notification of parents if children are removed. 

Mr. Hudson said their department had a large number of people who 
advise them (made up of citizens who are not a part of the 
department) and it was his preference to work with more people 
for a major change in structure like this bill. 

The biggest objection the department had to the bill was the 
provision that criminal charges had to filed in 20 days. It is 
not a realistic understanding of how the system works, he said. 
Not all child abuse and neglect is criminal, many are dealing 
with people with developmental disabilities and also mental 
illnesses. These people would not be guilty of a crime to charge 
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them with. They did not want to put them in jail. Secondly, he 
said, charging everyone with a crime or doing nothing would 
destroy the department efforts at family preservation, which has 
been the major focus of the past. The criminal process is slow, 
he added, and county attorneys are faced with the decisions of 
what they can afford to prosecute every day, whether or not it's 
winnable, wheth~r or not they have the staff. Kids may be sent 
back into danger to wait for a year for a trial when they could 
be working on family re-unification instead. He said there are 
two different systems: 1) the criminal system, to assess guilt 
and punishment and 2) the civil system used to protect children 
and to take quick, immediate action. 

The videotaping issue is a very expensive item, he said. 

The guardian ad litem issue in the bill suggested "being friends 
and retrieving things from the home," but he said he was unsure 
if they would be paid or used in that function, but he thought 
they could be volunteers. 

The psychological testing question would require a doctor at 
every interview and would carry a heavy fiscal note. 

The qualifications of the people hired are set at the point at 
which the pay can attract applicants. Mr. Hudson said. He was 
comfortable with the qualifications of the employees. Anyone who 
deviates from the policies or the laws of the state as an 
employee is personally liable, he said, in response to that 
portion of the bill. If they are following the rules of the 
department and something happens, the department is liable. 

Of the rotation provision of the employees, he said he would 
rather the employees be a part of the community and would reject 
the management practice of moving them around the state. 

He agreed with the anonymous reporting provision of the bill. He 
stated current law makes it a criminal offense to report child 
abuse in less than good faith or in a dishonest manner. Being 
faced by an accuser was also current law, he said. 

He told the committee that the department gets placed in the 
middle of many divorces, the worst activity they face. If there 
is a bill this session, there should be one to tell people how to 
behave in custody matters and how inappropriate behavior can 
damage their children. He felt many of the provisions of the 
bill grew out of mean-spirited custody proceedings. 

The DFS would support SENATOR BURNETT'S other two bills with 
amendments pertaining to the destruction of files and placement 
of children with kin. 

Ann Gikley, attorney, Department of Family Services, presented 
written testimony. (EXHIBIT 12) She also told the panel that 
the flow chart Mr. Hudson made reference to regarding the current 
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checks and balances could be found of Page 3 of her hand-out. 

Noel Larrivee, Executive Director, Montana Council for Families, 
said that he spoke for the statewide non-profit agency that 
serves the National Committee for the Prevention for Child Abuse 
and Parents, Anony,nous, Inc. He is also an attorney and had been 
involved in child advocacy issues for approximately 16 years. He 
had written seven bills since 1985 considered in this committee. 
This is 2 bad bill, he said. He said the DFS is invoived in 
these cases initially, then they are filed through :,2cition by 
the county attorney, an independent entity apart from DFS. After 
the petition is filed, it's heard by a district court judge. 
These proceedings are confidential, in order to protect the child 
and family members that are the subjects of the p~ ~ed~ngs. 
Some of this bill would undo that, he said. If th _e a~e 
problems, there are mechanisms existing now to deal with that. 

He listed the following objections: 

Page 1. Lines 19-20. Nowhere, he said, does existing law allow 
DFS to circumvent the Constitutional rights of persons or 
families. 

Page 1. Lines 21-22. The burden of proof is on the state. The 
staLdard of proof has been established by the Supreme Court, 
which is, "clear and convincing evidence." Changing the burden 
does not alter the incidence of false charges; they are two 
separate charges. These types of proceedings are civil 
proceedings. The concept of "innocent until proven guilty" is a 
criminal concept, he said. The burden of proof is always on the 
stater he alleged. 

Section 1. Line 12. He said the language is redundant. 

Page 2. Section 2. Lines 19-21. He read r "no removal of the 
children without a criminal complaint." He said this is the 
single worst provision in the bill. There are many good reasons 
why the department does not have a criminal prosecution r as the 
Director had pointed out. 

Page 4. Lines 1 and 2. This deals with interference. His 
interpretation was that this would preclude formulation of a 
treatment plan, one of the express provisions of child protective 
service intervention. 

Page 5. Section 3. Lines 13-14. This imposes the requirement ofr 
"acting knowingly. II Negligent harm is just as harmful r he said. 
He gave an example of a child put in scalding water and the 
caretaker said he did not know the water was too hot. Under the 
new provision r this conduct would be excused. 

Page 6. Lines 18-22. No person has ever been prosecuted for 
sexual abuse for attending to a child's hygiene or sanitary 
needs. 
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Page 9. Lines 17-20. He said he did not know what the term, 
"attributable information," would mean, as it has no legal 
significance. 

Page 11. Section 6. Lines 3-5. This pertains to evidence 
obtained without a videotape. This would significantly hamstring 
many cases, he qaid, particularly infants and statements made to 
school counselors. 

Page 12. Lines 29-30. Regarding the family member keeping the 
proceedings secret or allowing them to disseminate information, 
he said that confidentiality is designed to protect the child. 
It is also designed to protect the family members. Any aspect 
that is removed could do damage to the child. 

He said the sections on news organizations and "under oath" 
requirements are unnecessary. Concerning guardians, he said not 
all counties have volunteer persons in place for that position. 

The telephone legislation would be traumatic to children, he told 
the committee. The bill itself would be regressive, setting back 
child protective service efforts 20 years. He invited the 
committee to visit professionals on this bill. 

Erinne' Haskett, mother, founder of Majority Against Child 
Molestation (MACem), testified against SB 206. She took 
exception to Lines 21 and 22 on Page 6 under "definitions". She 
said her two-year-old was molested by the child's father. She 
described the on-going abuse. The father's actions would be 
protected under Line 21, "as considered by a reasonable person to 
be comforting of the toddler by a loving parent." These two 
lines afford a child raper a loophole in their defense. These 
people are wily and manipUlative, she said, and use threats 
against the lives of family members to achieve their goals. She 
thought many little lives would be left unprotected if the bill 
would pass. She submitted two hand-outs. (EXHIBITS 13 and 14) 

Connie Griffin, member of MACem and mother, spoke against SB 206. 
She said her two girls had been raped and molested by their 
father, causing injuries. She described a horrifying story. The 
DFS was contacted immediately by the doctor and visitation was 
suspended. The girls were interviewed by DFS and videotapes 
taken, which, they said, were inadmissible in court because 
cross-examination was impossible. She said all the evidence was 
collected and still sits in a county attorney's office under 
piles of other more important cases. At one time, the county 
attorney's office had granted the husband visitation against all 
professional advice. She called Hank Hudson, and within four 
hours the visitation had been cancelled. Only civil charges will 
be filed against the father, if any, she said, and the only thing 
that keeps the girls from being raped, tortured and violated is 
something called "dependency neglect." If it was not for DFS, 
she felt the children would be subject to harm. She said the 
county attorney offices are understaffed and tried to maintain a 
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quota system, which precludes "baby rape." She strongly opposed 
the bill. 

Sharon Bakerson, L.P.N., spoke in opposition to the bill. She 
said she opposed Lines 17-20 on Page 9 of the bill. She said 
these lines will ensure that the victim will remain in the 
torture chamber .as professional social workers will attest to the 
fact that it will take sometimes six months to years to get 
enough evidence to prosecute a molester. She said in Lewis and 
Clark County, if the county attorney and five deputies process 
250 felony cases in one year, they consider it a good year. The 
child molestation cases were difficult, she quoted the sheriff as 
saying. She said local police officers were given on-going 
techniques in child abuse cases. She said the bill would be 
detrimental to many children. 

Nina M. Pullman, East Helena, mother of three, Department of 
Revenue employee and a member of MACem, spoke against SB 206. 
She said she had been sexually molested as a child, as was her 
daughter. An abused child needs immediate and professional care, 
she said, and she thought DFS had been doing their job to 
capacity. If the bill passed, she said it would bring problems 
and heartache for everyone involved. She did not see the system 
as being broken and saw no reason to fix it. 

John Connor, appearing on behalf of the Montana County Attorneys' 
Association, said that the 56 County Attorneys in Montana have 
frequent disagreement with the DFS, but they were mostly because 
of good faith mistakes. The legislature (through the division of 
criminal and civil codes in the area of child abuse) does not 
require proof beyond a reasonable doubt in every instance in 
which a child needed to dealt with, cared for, or even removed 
from a home because of some immediate problem or inadequate 
medical care. In the majority of cases where they are ~~volved 
as prosecutors, he said, the child is left i::, the home .. d 
treatment programs are worked out with the r ~nLS in an attempt 
to try to maintain family unity. if the whO~e process in 
criminalist he th-mght .' t would ~3ve the ironic effect of 
further di~ : :in9 the cjild as a victim from the family as 
crir:~i 0.1 pE ~etrators. And ironically, again, would allow 
add:~ional notification to the parents such as where the child is 
living, etc., even after the parent has been charged with the 
crime. He said it is not a perfect system, but does the best it 
can to protect the welfare of children. The bill would do 
serious harm to child protection services. 

Tiana J. Pullman, member of MACem, also a victim of child 
molestation, spoke against the bill. She said the bill would 
allow children no rights. DFS protects children, she maintained, 
and the bill would not. She told the committee that molesters 
are sick people who do not think like normal people. She said if 
anonymous phone calls were not allowed, nobody would report the 
abuse cases if their lives were in danger. If the children knew 
they had to return to an abusive home and have further contact, 

950206JU.SM1 



SENATE JUDICIARY COMMITTEE 
February 6, 1995 

Page 13 of 17 

they would not report the abuse. Children cannot defend 
themselves against this kind of abuse, she contended. 

Bob Torres, representing the National Association of Social 
Workers, spoke against the bill. He submitted three hand-outs. 
(EXHIBITS 15, 16, and 17) 

Dennis Paxinos, Yellowstone County Attorney, testified against SB 
206. He said in private practice he had represented many parents 
whose children had been removed. The vast majority cases the DFS 
works with are neglect cases, many times resulting from alcohol 
and drug problems. The bill does not address these cases. There 
are two types of abuse from a prosecutors point of view: 1) 
abuse where a child has been burned or physically harmed, easily 
identifiable, and 2) sexual abuse, which is very difficult to 
prove. The criminal charges required in the bill will re­
victimize the victims. In his county, they had organized a Child 
Protective Study Team made up of volunteers who meet and 
determine how to handle these difficult cases. He recommended 
this program to the committee for other communities. In all 
cases, there is an independent judge making decisions, he said, 
and he urged the panel to opposed SB 206. 

Laurie Koutnik, Executive Director, Christian Coalition of 
Montana, the state's largest family advocacy organization and a 
former foster care parent, said SENATOR BURNETT'S concerns for 
the children were sincere, but she could not support the measure 
as written. She read from written testimony. (EXHIBIT IS) 

Steve Shapiro, appearing for the Montana Nurses Association, 
numbering 1,400 members, presented written testimony. 
(EXHIBIT 19) 

Informational Testimony: 

The following documents were presented for inclusion in the 
minutes without testimony: 

(EXHIBIT 20) - Randy Mills, Helena. 
(EXHIBIT 21) - Gary Marks. 
(EXHIBIT 22) - Bud Rist, Billings. 
(EXHIBIT 23) - Collection of letters from MACeM members. 
(EXHIBIT 24) - Collection of signatures in support of SB 206. 

Questions From Committee Members and Responses: 

SENATOR MIKE HALLIGAN asked SENATOR BURNETT about the criminal 
charge provision. In that all the people in the room who had 
testified for the bill would have been charged with criminal 
offenses (as they would have under his 1993 bill), did he still 
believe that it would be a productive avenue in an attempt to 
handle the issue? 

SENATOR BURNETT said, "yes." He said under civil law, they have 
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no recourse unless they want to spend money. He said sometimes 
people have spent $100,000 trying to get their children back. If 
it was a criminal charge, they would have recourse and would be 
able to face their accusers. 

SENATOR HALLIGAN said that if a person were charged with a 
criminal offense, the county attorney would file a no-contact 
provision for the duration of the proceeding. He sai~ there may 
be a situation that the judge in a criminal proceeding prevents 
the people from visiting their children. Was he trying to do 
that in this legislation, and would it be counterproductive to 
their intent? 

SENATOR BURNETT said there may be a problem with the county 
attorneys, but that was their problem and they could cope with 
it. 

SENATOR HALLIGAN stated that if, as County Attorney Paxinos 
testified, they cannot necessarily prove abuse without photos, 
(for example in the case of a young child), this bill would leave 
the child at home with the abuser. 

SENATOR BURNETT said the bill was for family values. In many 
cases and there are better than 200 names (on a signature page in 
his exhibits), he said, the people were unable to get any 
response. The Governor told him judges could protect the people, 
but he did not believe the judges were protecting any of the 
people. 

SENATOR STEVE DOHERTY asked Mr. Hudson if mistakes were made by 
the Department in taking children without proper justification, 
would the department be liable in a civil proceeding? In the last 
five years, how many civil proceedings have been brought against 
them? How many were successful, he asked, and have they paid out 
any money as a result? 

Mr. Hudson said he did not know, but they do keep track of it. 
The Department has paid some, he said, in accusations of being 
too Gggressive and not aggressive enough; for removing children 
too quickly, and for not removing children. Th~ majority of 
cases, they win, he said. He promised the exact figures to the 
panel. 

S:~NATOR DOHERTY asked Mr. Befumo about a case in his hand-out 
pertaining to two youths, and he wanted to know if it was from a 
court file that was currently sealed. 

Mr. Befumo said he did not know. He said the issue was more of 
the question of adjudicatory hearings that are not usually 
afforded people. 

William A. Fowler answered the question. He said he had given 
the document to Mr. Befumo. He said the contents were not 
sealed. 
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SENATOR REINY JABS asked SENATOR BURNETT if he consulted the DFS 
and county attorneys in putting the bill together over the last 
four years? 

SENATOR BURNETT said that a number of attorneys had input into 
the bill, in addition to psychologists and many people who wanted 
to see an end to the tyrannical actions of some case workers. He 
said in most cases, they did a good job, but had some,workers had 
a disregard for the people they served. 

SENATOR JABS asked if he thought the children would be adequately 
protected under his bill. 

SENATOR BURNETT said they would be. He said sometimes records 
are sealed and social workers, judges and the DFS hide behind the 
law of confidentiality, not allowing a hearing. He said when the 
law was changed from civil to criminal law on spousal abuse, it 
cut down the crimes drastically. 

CHAIRMAN CRIPPEN asked Mr. Hudson to give his reaction to Mr. 
Befumo's comments on the hearing process. 

Mr. Hudson said that for the Department to have continued custody 
beyond the 48-hour emergency process, they needed to appear 
before a judge and show probable cause. At that time, family 
members or anyone involved can argue their point. A time limit 
is set to return to court if extended rights are sought by the 
Department. His view of the hearings process is that it is set 
before an independent decision-maker which allows for 
contradictions and questions of the Department's actions. He 
said the courts could give them custody of children to age 18, 
and there were other opportunities for families to challenge that 
in court and frequently they do, he said. 

CHAIRMAN CRIPPEN said some of the proponents were concerned they 
did not have opportunity for a hearing, and that they had no 
opportunities to speak to their children and grandchildren. What 
is the procedure on this? 

Mr. Hudson said that the decision is made in the best interest of 
the child. The judge may give on-going orders and families are 
allowed input. With persons accused of sexually abusing a child, 
there is fear of unencumbered access. He said a gradual, safe 
reintroduction is usually arranged in proscribed treatment plans. 

CHAIRMAN CRIPPEN asked if there was a procedure where the parents 
could speak to their children, other than, II I love you," as they 
had heard in testimony. 

Mr. Hudson said they met with parents before visitations and go 
over ground rules of appropriate conversations. Any effort to 
change the testimony of the child is not allowed. He did not 
think the example would have been appropriate. In a further 
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inquiry about qualifications of caseworkers, he said specific 
discussion would be at the discretion of the caseworker. He said 
the suggestion of the Chairman that more definitive guidelines 
would be well worth looking into. 

SENATOR LINDA NELSON asked about Page 9, Section 5, Subsection 2, 
in which the bi~l would stipulate that the initial investigation 
must be conducted within 48 hours, and she asked Mr. ~udson's 
reaction. 

Mr. Hudson stated that 48 hours may be too restrictive, but he 
thought the point being made was that they should have more than 
an anonymous phone call to respond to an allegation and then to 
proceed in a timely manner. 

Closing by Sponsor: 

SENATOR BURNETT told the committee that many attorneys could give 
different opinions on this issue. Much of what was said, isn't 
what was happening, he said. He wanted the DFS to cease in 
breaking bonds between parents and children. Sometimes children 
are placed beyond the distance of where the family could 
reasonably go to visit them, he said. In one case in Lewistown, 
a woman was accused of being an unfit mother and the hearing was 
taken to Livingston. References in her favor were not allowed to 
testify. SENATOR BURNETT tried to intervene in the case and 
received a hard reprimand from the judge. 

He said people had no recourse and could not bring suit against 
the DFS who had county attorneys, judges and the state behind 
them. He thought they abused that privilege. His main interest 
was not to disseminate the department, he said, but to end the 
dysfunctional caseworker problems. He said that the change to 
criminal law would bring more openness and elimin2te a lot of 
confidentiality. He pointed to his written testimonials and 
asked the committee's consideration of those materials. 
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Adjournment: CHAIRMAN CRIPPEN adjourned the hearing at 12: 07 
p.m. 

. .... _._) 

__ .. -I).tel/V 1 

.. ', .... 

BRUCE D. 

JUDY FELAND, Secretary 

BDC/jf 
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TESTIMONY 

SENATE BILL 206 

"If you don't get the facts right, you will come up with the wrong 

decision. " 

In the November election the voting public indicated they 

definitely wanted a change as to how the Departments were 

functioning. After a meeting last week with the Department of Family 

Services personnel, plus listening to their testimony in the Finance and 

Claims Subcommittee, I am convinced they only intend to make 

moderate changes. Another indication that makes me believe they are 

not interested in substantial change is that they have no legislation in 

this session to do so. 

Several years ago I requested several different District judges to 

empanel a grand jury to investigate this Department. The judge that 

did respond to my request indicated that what I wanted would be 

better achieved through legislation. He also said that in his opinion, 

possibly two out of three child removal cases should never have 

occurred, this ruined two families. This is what this legislation is all 



about. It also gives me resolve to make the effort that substantive 

changes that are needed in DFS in how they protect families and 

children. 

It is obvious by the numbers of people here, thos~ who have 

corresponded with me and those testifying here today, that something 

is wrong in this Department. 

There is no doubt in my mind and those of many who have come 

to this hearing, some having come from a great distance, to support 

change in the direction of DFS, as we know today. 

S8 206 will be a step in returning some public confidence in this 

Department, and government in general. 
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February 2, J 995 

Re: Senate Bill 206 

STEPHEN C. MOSES 
Attorney at Law 
P.O. Box 23337 

Billings. MontBna 59104 
Phone: (406) 259-5804 

TO WHOM IT MAY CONCERN: 

DATE 01-0 - 95 .. 
.. i~ 10-_....;s;;;..,"B..;::;..._cr_O_b __ .. 

I am a practicing attorney in Billings. Montana. The power of DFS bas 
caused me great CQncern. It is important that there be an agency that protects children, 
but not dictates the decisions of parents. AlJ we are all aware, there is no blue print on 
how a child should be raised. We all do the best we can with what we have to deal with. 
No one wants the tragedies that occur~ and few deal with them as much as DFS. 
However, DFS has taken the position that they can decide the fate of children and in the 
name of children, rip families apart. 

I have had DFS file papers and take children that are only a day or 50 old. 
The basis is that in the past the mother was a problem. She has no other children, but 
because her life was difficult, she will abuse any child she might have. Taking the child is 
the only thing the department knows. They prepare an affidavit, present it to a busy Judge 
who signs it as following the statute, and the parent is left alone, confused and facing 
serious allegations, having never had even the chance to establish herself as a good 
mother. In the cases I have had, the child was returned and the mothers have turned out 
to be quality mothers. 

Older children are pulled from their family because the single mother, 
working to make ends meet, doesn't have a spotless home, or has a poor choice for a 
boyfriend, or simply can't provide the things "'normal" ldds have. Bad parent, probably 
not. But the Department takes the child, imposing a far greater burden on the parent. 
Isolation, foster parents who can provide more material things, and refusal to provide 
information to the parent leads to distrust and hatred. All this based on an affidavit 
carefully prepared to have the correct allegations to establish a prima facie indication of 
abuse. Judges schedule 10 minutes for the bearing called for in the TIA Most parents are 
confused and only want what is best for the child. Only a small percentage fight the TIA, 
believing the Department is there to help. The Department has little burden to nulintain 
total authority over the parent. Visitation is almost non-ex:istent. Parents who insist on 
seeing their children are labeled trouble makers. Only then do they come to seek an 
attorney 
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If family is important, and it surely is, then the Department needs to change 
its child snatching tactics. Most problems can be worked out with the parents while the 
child is left in the home. Few problems involve violent threats to the child. If that is the 
case, the criminal statutes and bail conditions can keep an abuser away. The child does 
not have to be torn from their home. The innocent parent, who may not know what is 
happening, does not have to be punished. In this situation. the abuser ~ not the 
innocent partie~ DFS helps the abuser obtain what they want, misery for the family. 

When a child is taken. the child usually feels they have done something 
wrong. The Depanment helps this feeling by keeping the child out of the house. Children 
understand punishment. If they can't see mommy or daddy or both. someone is being 
punished. Their entire value system is destroyed. Most children will contact their parents, 
even if the Depanment tells them not to do so. If there are problems, helping to work 
them out while the child maintains their support system in the family. is far better for the 
child then ripping them from their home. A bad parent, under supervision, is better than 
no parent at nil . 

As I understand the bill, the Department will have to establish beyond a 
reasonable doubt that there is abuse and neglect. Access to records and documents will 
be provided. Both are very good things. The vast majority of parents are not dangerous 
to their children and not guilty of abuse or neglect. The key, however, is keeping the 
family together Thi') is something the Department has failed to do. 

1 would urge the passage of this bill and next session a complete overhaul 
of the system. If the Department had to keep the families together, the costs would be 
reduced, the focus could be on family counseling and people would be more agreeable to 
working with the Department. 

If I can be of any assistance, please contact me. 
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I am writing this letter in the interest of my daughter's and all the other children that I hope 
WlII be helped ov 'ienate Bill 206. 

My daughter!; were removed from my home on November 22,1993 for neglect. The 
Department of Social Services had received a call that my girls ages then 16 & 13 were being left 
alone. The Department removed my girls and let them stay with friends until Monday when I 
went into the office and signed the necessary papers to place them in Foster Care. I signed these 
papers because! '.'va" ~old I did not have a choice, that the girls would be taken either way. 

I was very cooperative at the beginning of this nightmare. I started a chemical 
dependency program, that was in my TIA stated I needed to do. I was unable to complete it 
because I did not feel Lomfortable in a group setting. I went to the Social Worker and also the 
Coun~elor and asked If I could do this on a one on one basis. I was told and I quote "If you want 
your kids back ynu'll finish this class, otherwise you can kiss them Goodbye". Since the others in 
the group didn't keep things confidential, I didn't want to discuss the issues that I had with them, 
Because of this J ne'Ver went back, Then my visits with my girls were getting cancelled time after 
time for various reas'.;:ns. and then I was told I could no longer see the oldest one at all. I have not 
seen her since June 2?. 1994 and that's tearing me apart because of the closeness I felt with my 
daughters. J felt thep. and still do now that the Department was making me choose one daughter 
over the other. 

Now yesterday. January 31, 1995, was the day I was suppose to see my youngest 
daughter. I have also heen requesting to see my oldest daughter. I picked up the phone and 
caJled the Department 10 find out before I went to see if my oldest daughter was going to be there 
for the visit. The ~ecretary told me she would have Vicki, the social worker, get back to me, 
Vicki Fawcett. the case " ... ·orker returned my call and asked if! had received her letter. I said I had 
not and she proceeded to then inform me that the visits have been stopped. I was shocked, Why 
1. asked? She said It wa~ hecause the visits are non-productive. I said they would be productive if 
you would let us talk. hut you don't. Vickj then reminded me that I had refused to sign two (2) 
treatment agreements and we would be going back to court soon and this time Vicki said it's not 
going to be for the Tl/\ if· continue, it's going to be for pennanent custody. I told over my dead 
body are you getting c\lstody of my girls. Then Vicki told me that the abuse charge still stands. 
You see DFS is chargin\: me with abuse because 12 years ago the girls were molested by a family 



member, who was also a child at the time and because I didn't remove the girls from the home 
they say r did nN protect them and I still can't protect them for that happening. I have left that 
home which was In Colorado and moved to Roundup to try and start a new life for myself and my 
girls but what happened in the past is still haunting me. At this time Vicki stated that she had 
another report comc; mto her office that I have been in contact with two (2) other children and I 
was endangering these children because my girls were taken for abuse. Never have I been told 
that I could ha'.'c Ill,! \:ontact with children. Well I didn't have to ask who made the call I already 
knew, It was my new husbands ex-wife. She was mad at hjrn so to get back at him she made a 
call to DFS. The Department doesn't check out these rumors, they take everything they hear and 
tum it into whar€v("- they want. The credibility of the people that call are never checked out. In 
most cases that J have heard of it seems like you are guilty no matter what you say. I am so hurt 
by all of this. I leIVe my stepchildren like my own. I would never hurt these children or any other 
child for that fact This is not only punishing me but also my husband. He doesn't deserve this, 
his children don't dC'3erve this and neither do 1. 

Because of another false report I still feel this is one of the reasons I lost my visits. One 
other is becaus{' rm speaking up, The Department wants you to be quite and be led around by the 
nose. I wrote to the Governor and also wrote a letter to the editor of our local paper and The 
Billings Gazette These letters were used against me in court. I was told that I was an unfit 
mother and shollid rw,'er have my girls back. This was told to me by the girts Guardian Ad Litem. 

I am being told over and over that the whole purpose of the Department ofFarnily 
Services is to bring families back together but all I see in my case and many others is that they tear 
them apart and nt'veT intend to help reunite these families. 

Maybe these social workers don't understand what it does to mother to be separated from 
their children and I wouldn't wish it on my worst enemy. I cry at the drop of a hat. I've had to 
quit two (2) jobs because I couldn't work around all the meetings, classes and whatever else it 
was that DFS camr. up with for me to do. I still get up in the rnorrungs and go to wake my girls. 
When it's time for them to come home from school I still hear them saying "ID, MOM, I'M 
HOME. It's been Sf) long since I heard them really say anything of any importance, because they 
are afraid to talk in fF·,t11 of the social worker. They don1 want to get in trouble or want me to 
get in trouble for something they might say. I try to tell them this isn't their fault but I can see it in 
their eyes that they don't believe me. They think since they got taken away that they must have 
done something wron~ My girls are being hurt too. My oldest one has been tested for 
everything under [11(' sun including HlY. I'm sure that is very scary when your mom isn't allowed 
to be there to holti ~'01.1: hand and support you through all ofit. 

I just want my girls home with me so I can start to heaJ the wounds that all o'fthis has 
caused, not only for mvselfbut also for my girls. I know I can't stand the pain of being away from 
them so in feel thi-; .. "ay. I know that my gjIls are hurting. I have a big whole in my heart and 
that won't go awa,> 'Jn~'! my girls are home where they belong. 

• f 1 ~ 
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stands, DFS has way to much power and they abuse it over and over again. 

Thank you for your time in Jistening to my case and for trying to stop these kinds of 
nightmares before they happen to someone else. 

I'm just otle MOTHER OF MANY WHO WANTS HER CHILDREN HOIvfE. 

'771~~ 
Martha Adolph 

-
~ 

t~' 
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This letter is written in support of Senate bill 206, by Senator ftm Burnett. 
I wish to express to you the problems I and others in my small community have had with 
the Department of Family Services. 

1 am the mother of two children. My husband and I were divorced in 1979 
and I was left to raise the two children. I had very little education but worked several jobs 
and did the very best r could, with the help of my parents. We lived in Roundup, Montana 
and the kid's father moved out of the State. The Department of Family Services were 
never involved in my life. 

In 1989 my prior boyfriend, who was living with myself and the kids, was 
charged with Sexual Assault of my daughter. then 12. My son was 15. I knew nothing 
about the charges. When I was told of the charges, I immediately went to see my 
daughter. who was in the control of Family Services. I also told my prior boyfiiend to 
leave until I could tlnd out what had happened. I went to find out what happened and was 
told by DFS that 1 could not talk to the children about what had happened. I was told that 
if I did not do what they wanted. I would not be allowed to see or be with my children. 
After aU these arrangements, I got both children back. It was only the start ofthe 
njghtmare. 

I made arrangements for my ex-husband to take my daughter for a short 
period of time. The Department said they placed my daughter out there. My son was 
"placed" with my folks. DFS, without notice, then placed my son in an unlicensed foster 
home. A TIA was flied by the Department on the basis that I was neglecting and abusing 
my children. I was not allowed to see my children, except with the consent and 
supervision of OFS Visits were few and far between. I had done nothing wrong. No one 
would talk to me. mv family was spread allover and DFS specwcaUy got my ex-husband 
involved with rumo;s of wrong doing. The man accused wasn't even around. As the trial 
approached, no one would talk with me. When my daughter came to visit DFS got the 
police and charged into my parent's residence and wanted her because they bad not 
allowed any visits. I had not seen her for several months, no one was around. my Ex­
husband and I had made the arrangements and she was asleep on the couch. An attorney 
personally came to the house at 10:00 p.m. and virtually threw the DFS person out of the 
house, after she informed him she could do anything she wanted to with the children. 
After this incident mv ex-husband was told never to allow me or my parents, access to the , , 

chjJd. We were allowed almost no visits with the children. 

-------------- ---- -.-----------------------------,~~ 
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The TIA also brought my parents into the case. The DFS aUege<l'that they 
were also abusive and neglectful. My parents are very good people and have always been 
involved with my children and most of the children in the community. They go to almost 
every event. whether it be sporting or otherwise, that involves Roundup children. My 
father takes pictures for the annual, which they do free of charge, just to support the local 
kids. My mother has and stilJ does help the Justjce of Peace and Youth Probation with 
kids that have gotten in trouble for one thing or another. She supervises these kids white 
they are on Community Service. She finds the work that needs to be done and makes sure 
that the kids follow through with getting their hours completed so their fines are paid. We 
have all helped the children in this community who at times are troubled due to divorce or 
problems :rJ their families. My father is on the City Counsel. Both were very involved 
with the kids and are now actively involved with the kIds. Desp:~:,: this, DFS included my 
parents, who did not live with me, in the TIA, obtained with just an allegation. Neither my 
mother nor father knew anything about the alleged abuse of my daughter. They did know 
that things DFS was saying were inaccurate, but DFS didn't want to hear that and accused 
my folks of terrible things which were totally false. 

In the end, my prior boyfriend was acquitted of the charges against my 
daughter. He left the State shortly thereafter for good. DFS did not stop. My son, who 
was told to have no contact with me was forced to sneak over to see me and get money 
because he needed lunches and things at school. I have always tried to teach my children 
not to go against the authorities, but in this case DFS was not providing for hirr He 
risked punishment. but he came to me because I would h.<p hin~ ~ld he knew tL... DFS is 
teaching chjldren to lie and sneak around. A custody battle raged over my daughter. I 
could not get reports from DFS without legal assistance. My son finally told DFS to get 
lost and left town to avoid all the hassle. After getting the reporu, most of the reports 
were false. I had done what they wanted and the reports were inaccurate and slanted 
agajnst me. I had done nothing wrong and my family, that I had worked SO hard to get 
together, were forced out of town, it cost a fortune to fight the custody battle that really 
was not needed. and misinfonnation cost me my children, until now. 

My son and I have a good relationship. My daughter has now returned 
home to live with me. It is sure funny that the kids are back to Jive with the person that 
DFS said was abusive 2.r.d neglectful. DFS never once attempted to put my family back 
together. They decided to destroy my family and I did ;jot have anything to do with the 
charges against the prior boyfriend, had done nothing wrong, but was blocked from seeing 
my children at all. In addition, my parents were not allowed to see the kids after being a 
very important par1 of their life for 13 years. Even my folks were punished. 

This whole thing could have been avoided if the kids had been left with me. 
If there was a problem with the prior boyfiiend, my kids are far more important than any 
man. DFS was so involved in the criminal charges that they refused to see the truth or 
determine what was in the best interest of the kids or my famjJy. Taking the kids was done 
without any input from me and based on inaccuracies, speculations and accusations, not 
facts. As noted. ifrhey would have had to prove their case, they would have lost. The 
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kids had been told lies about me by DFS, they made a very bad situation in to a nightmare, 
left the family in shambles and walked away. I DIDN'T DO ANYTHING, WAS 
NEVER TOLD ANYTHING, I WAS JUST PUNISHED BY NOT SEEING MY 
CHIJ.JDREN. BEING ABLE TO TALK TO MY CHJLDREN OR BEING TOLD 
ANYTR1NG ABOur MY CBlLDREN. DFS intentionally attempted to destroy my 
family. 

An isolated case? No! Since my experience. children of friends have been 
taken because the house is too dirty for the DFS people. Iftbey are poor, many things can 
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WHERE IS OUR CONSTITUTIONAL RIGHTS 
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Is the "New World Order" being programmed for these United States by 
the Congress and the United Nations. The recent U N convention the "civil 
rights" of the child would overturn both the federal and state laws if 
ratified by the Congress. Those nations that ratify this treaty would 
accept granting to children a list of rights, radical in nature and could 
be enforced with increased police powers to an already powerful bureaucracy 
that has powers far beyond what the general public can imagine at the 
present time. The treaty would also position the state as parent by 
transferring to the state much of the responsibility for health and needs 
of the child, thus further negating family values. 

My concern intensifies when state sovereignty and personal civil 
rights are threatened or authority is being usurped by the federal 
government or World Order. Federal mandates take several different. 
approches. A state can participate in certain programs provided they 
follow certain guidelines and usually provide matching funds. In some 
instances the state must enact laws that would enable certain programs to 
be implemented and in some instances the federal program will just be 
implemented without state participation. 

It is a real concern when the attitude of Congress begins to develop 
the mentality and desire to enforce and usurp the sovereignty of the state 
and the civil rights of it's citizens in the theory that it is the 
government's obligation to care for all citizens from the cradle to the 
grave. This can an will bankrupt our country's morality, financiality and 
creatively. We still have a certain amount of sovereignty in the state as 
guaranteed by the constitution if we have the fortitude to resist the 
encroachment of the federal agencies. we can determine our own standards. 

One mandate I've followed very closely is the requirement of PL 96-272 
which for all practical purposes caused the creation of the "Department of 
Family Services". As you will see this Department was intended to keep 
families together and should the need be, place children in foster care and 
protected from abusive situations. Abuse is a crime whether child or adult 
and the abuser should be criminally charged (but not in Montana) . 

In the last six months I have written both the Director of DFS and the 
Governor in regards of what I believe is a Department out of control. A 
petition from Fergus and Ravalli County citizens asking the Governor for an 
outside investigation of the DFS for what they feel is wrong doing by 
personnel of that Department or possibly from some other responsible 
official of government. I have also in this period of time requested two 
different district judges for a grand jury investigation and have received 
no response 
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The Lewistown incident involving Agness James is a goc~ exa~ple wh" ~ 
investigation by and outside source is of such a great need. Nc.: (nly -
should the investigation be of this incident but should be broad e~\ough @Ii,; 

cover any and all complaints of wrong doing. In the Lewistown incident, 
there is probably other officials of government of state and county 
involved. the Governor rejected the suggestion, believing the judge off_~ 
protection from the wrong doing of State and County officials. I am of :. 
opinion that there was a great wrong committed and there should be a 
criminal charge be made. There certainly was mismanagement and poor 
judgement within the Department. the support group from Ravalli County -
believes as I do, that not only in that area, but all qver Montana there 
poor j·.~gement and a lack of common sense by management over the field 
personnel's conduct and actions. 

I don't believe anyone would not agree that there is abuse within c 
family that should not be tolerated and that when proven beyond a 
reasonable doubt, the State should intervene. But when there is a lack~~ 
integrity of the social worker, it becomes a rea} concern. In the many 
cases that have been made known to me, there is little doubt in my mind 
that in a large percentage of the clients of DFS that "justice has been. 
denied". I don't believe there is one case I know of where the social 
worker made a courteous and friendly contact with the prospective client 
The majority are treated in arrogant and degrading fashion. there seem: 
be no guideline the family can rely on as to how and what to expect fror. 
DFS. 

If DFS really wants to add credibility to their Department they wi.\ 
have to clean up their act by absolute hoy" '''sty in all reporting . Limit 
use of confidentiality to a point that would really have an effect on tL~ 
client. Had the social worker discussed the Lewistown inciden~ with th 
city councilor elected officials of state and county, the outcome of t~i: 
situation would have been very different. Likewise in many other cases 
many problems could be solved without ruining a family. 

Getting back to how the DFS has gotten to where they are today, an 
Agency out of control. In 1973, just two decades ago, Congress amende 
t::e Social Security Act by passing PL 96-272 which they hoped would cor. 
the imbalance in the Act. These corrections varied widely in emphasis \ 
effectiveness. The implementation by the Agency resulted in a negativ~ 
effect. In an effort to keep from uprooting established procedures the 
had already taken hold, Congress left some sections rather vague. the­
social bureaucrats by this time were well entrenched and enjoying their 
extraordinary powers and since no o~e in the states would risk the cut-
of federal funds by blatantly ignoring t~e federal procedures as • 
recommended, every state seized on the loopholes or vague expression in :'= 
96-272 in order to reduce their compliance to mere paperwork. .. 

It is obvious, the 1973 law was well intended but disastrously flaw~ 
Members of Congress failed to notice that the combination of total 
confidentiality, unlimited police powers and little or no judicial 
supervision was a one-way ticket to zeal by case workers. In past hisWbl 
these combinations have turned people into bigoted inquisitors and peoF __ 
seeking revenge when really there is no abuse. How could Congress mak 
such errors to believe social workers with this kind of power under th. 
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would be fair and just and caring, using common sense and not abuse the 
tremendous police powers granted them. The average American citizen just 
does not believe this Agency has this tremendous kind of powers until it 
happens to them or someone they know. 

It goes without saying that the passage of 96-272 (Title IV) virtual: 
discredited those people that claim that social workers would not, could 
not abuse their extensive powers and that a bureaucracy composed of such 
people would always be benign. further ~ore, those that set up the progri 
under Title Iv we~e well aware that the states would be virtually helples: 
if the problems centered around the constitutional provision of civil 
rights of the accusec and to know what was said. the authors of Title IV 
required various manipulations to be engaged in to minimize Constitutiona: 
guarantees. What ever Congress had in mind, the net result was that the 
Agency was given privilege to intervene in families on suspicion and coule 
hold family members, especially children many times in communicado so that 
testimony and public awareness is withheld. They also provided the Agenc: 
with a cloak of secrecy as to the source of their information and it's 
contents, plus they removed the legal system from all meaningful 
participation in planning the case, that is, selecting what services woulc 
be offered. 

I believe the sovereign state of Montana should exercise it's own 
constitutional right and proscribe what is right and wrong in abuse withil 
the family. Only a socialistic nation has no civil rights for it's 
citizens. The present socialistic laws i~ the Montana Code should be 
changed. 
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FROM: The "WhIte" Hcuse PHONE NO. : 405 353 0165 
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Montana: 
The 14st Best Place? 

In their fiscal year 1992, the Montma State DeDRrtment of Farnily Services removed 
ovrf 3300 children from their homes ar.d pldce~f th~m in state funded foster homes. 
Wilh the slate c.hild population less than 180,000, thi::; raises some verv disturbing qucs­
tions. Coupled .,,/1th the fact that 1Vfont~na, listed (lmong 1he lowest s:tates in crime and 
population, is ranked 2Jmn the nation in reported child abuse cases. Is this a ~tate of 
child abusers and molesters? Or is this a st:lte whose children and families are pawns in 
a political power g.ame? 

In 1992, San Antonio~ Jexas, 121h largest cit/.' in 1he nation) with a popUlation com· 
parable to the state of NlOntana, repor1oo a chdd R9pulation of over 360,000 . twice 
Montana's child population. Their Departrm~nt of Familv Services investigated 8

1
302 

cases of reported child abuse involving almost 13,000 children. With the 6th hignest 
crime rate m tb~ nation. they cconstitUtionaly' - in accordance with due process of the 
Jaw . substantiated 3,524 cases of abuse invoivil'lg 5A 14 children. Yet tncy only 
remov~d ~fIf, as lhe Montana State D€partment of Family Services claIms· that they 
are Cabout average' in the ~rcen1age of diiI(1ien removed fr01TI the home - then accord· 
im; 10 these (average' ~iatistics, DF'S had to have investigated Lf),057 cases, involving 
44,674 children, finding 12,334 cases of substantiated abuse involving 18,949 children. 

Montana Sag Aolonio 
To1aJ Population @800,OOO @873,OOO 
Child Population @189,(X)() @367,OOO 
# Cases Inves1igated 29,057 8,302 

Children involved 44,674 12,764 

uSP.5 substantiated 29~OS7 3,524 
Children involved 18,949 5,414 
Children removeD .3310 945 

Removal ra1e 3.6% .43% 
Fostl~r care budget 16+ million 7 million 
Toial Budget 101 million 40 million 

Accordin~ to these statistic, almost 20% of f<1milies with children in the state of Mon· 
tana could Tall suspect through investigation by the Department of Family Services. The 
question again: is 1his a state of child abusers and molesters? Or is this a horrible ex· 
ample of a department out of control: a department tha1 ~tal')ds alone in it's dealings -
fr~ to operate beyond 1he safeguards guaranteed by the Contitution of The United 
States? In America, coutd you be removed from your home and placed under confhw' 
ment for an indefinite amount of time, unaware of the charges against you and 
powerless to ~'€ek recourse? Of course not. Unless ~/ou aie dei:l~in with the Montana 
State De artment of family Service.c;. Then the fr~~doms rmd ri 1s 1hat this toun1r } 
\-\'ere buRt upon are lost Is Montana 1ruly 1he last, bes1 plrtce? ot if you love your fami' 
ly. 



January 25, 1993 

Senator Jim Burnett 
P. O. Box 20 
State Capitol 
Helena, MT. 59620 

Do r Mr. Burnett: 

This letter is written in support of your presentation on Senate 
Bill 41. 

Our family has been a victim of DFS. Until it happens to them or 
someone they know, the public remains unaware of the power of this 
department and how it is destroying families. I believe it is time 
that some control is placed on this department and the people are 
given some rights. Whatever happened to "Innocent Until Proven 
G, .. ilty"? In no way should parents stand accused and children be 
removed from the home, strictly on hearsay with no evidence and no 
investigation. It is now coming to light, not only in Montana but 
throughout the United States, just how ~uch power agencies such as 
this have been welding against :nnocent people, who have had no 
recourse. It is not unlike having the Gestapo appear a~ your door. 

People employed by this agency are not above fabricating lies and 
then compounding them, with the victim never having access to where 
this information originated and without DFS ever having to supply 
proof. Instead of trying to keep the family intact and act in a 
supportive manner, they are known to pit child against parent, 
parent against child and parent against parent. They believe that 
they can rip families apart and then later bring them together and 
everything can be "better than it was before." Once this happens 
to a family, the scars are carried forever and the family is never 

·the same again. 

From our experience, I can verify that you are correct in the 
information that you are presenting. Safeguards must be placed to 
protect all members of a family. Families must have the 
opportunity to be protected from being wrongfully destroyed by the 
sta t.e as a result of mistakes, which from my observation, are 
tipping the scales on the opposite side of justice. You are riS ~ 
about an industry fostered by DFS referrals. Too many people are 
in the pockets of DFS. Also, I believe the system is corrupt in 
its placing of foster care. In our case, the "foster family" 
happened also to have one member employed by DFS--"double dipping", 
if you will. Parents and other family members should not be denied 
the right to see their children. Being removed from the home is 
traumatic enough without adding the burden of not being able to 
speak to those people who love and care for them the most. Any 
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questioning of the children, most emphatically, ~nould have a third 
party present and a transcript of that meeting available. Wronged 
parents are being denied the right to defend themselves. 

The system as it exists is an outrage! 
opportunity to speak out and see legislation 
this growing problem. If it can keep one 
destroyed, it will be well worth the effort. 

We appreciate the 
enacted to correct 
family from being 

Included with this letter is some information that might be helpful 
in showing how psychology professionals are perpetuating these 
problems. 

Any information on the progress of SB41 would be appreciated. 

Thank you, Mr. Burnett, for addressing this most important matter. 

~
SinC~e~elY' nL- , 
. ( ~v,----", 

Ka hy P 'son ' 
500 So.J 6th st. 
Hamilton, MT 59840 
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Frank B. Fitzgerald 
412 Hallowell Lane 

Billings, MT 59101-5011 

Senator James H. Burnett 
Route 1 Box 4460 
Luther, MT 59051 
406-446-2489 

Dear Senator: 

December 2, 1994 

Congratulations on your re-election to the state senate. 
Please note my new address. It is the same house but a new 
house number. 

I received your letter of November 15th and whole-heartedly 
endorse your letter. 

As I said I would, I did file my Specific Human Rights 
Petition with the Inter-American Commission on Human Rights of 
the Organization of American States. I can make available an 
unabridged copy if you desire one. As Exhibit 6, I included, 
Richard Wexler's book, "Wounded Innocents". In Chapter 11, 
Wexler has recommendations of interest. 

I also filed my General or Collective Human Rights 
Petition, to represent others, in which are included many 
exhibits of articles and transcripts dealing with Rights of the 
child and State agencies including the LA foster care scandal. 

I have stated to the Commission I was presenting the 
experiences of many persons named and unnamed in the articles 
and transcripts as my representation. That included the Waco 
Massacre of innocent children and the murdered children in LA 
foster care. I also included 3 video tapes. One deals with the 
foster care murder of Jesus Castro in LA. Another deals with 
the Nazi "Lebensborn" program I have suggested is being copied 
here in the USA and exported to other members of the OAS. The 
3rd tape is about black market babies. 

I have suggested the USA has a very real image problem of 
Human Rights of children and their families when the State 
interfers. 

I am enclosing a copy of my recommendations to the 
Commission for its beginnings of offering the US Government 
friendly conciliation, not hostle confrontation. 

Your suggest of "Beyond a reasonable doubt" is by far the 
most fair standard to aim for. "Preponderance of the evidence" 
is purely a civil procedures standard, whereas, "beyond a 
reasonable doubt", is a criminal procedures standard. The 
involuntary termination of Parental Rights should be a criminal 
proceeding with Rights of trial by jury, to counsel, discovery, 
visitation and a cooperative Guardian Ad Litem until the parent 
is proven guilty of some crime against the child. The Guardian 
Ad Litem duties should by statute include his guarding Rights 
of his client, the child, from encroachment by the State until 
both parents are proven guilty. If only one is proven guilty 

1 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

£XHIBIT __ ~/ __ _ 

DAT~E __ c:P~-:.:;..b_-.... 9 ..... S.._r 

then the other parent should not be discriminated against by the 
court, the agencies, the Guardian Ad Litem, or the state. 

I believe in returning fundamental Family Human Rights to 
the family where it belongs. Legislation which prevents the 
state from being a parent, parens patriae, must be passed to 
over-ride Montana's Supreme court decisions which so say the 
state is a parent. 

The "beyond a reasonable doubt" is the standard used in usc 
Title 25 dealing with termination of Indian parents in federal 
courts--so why not all others--by amending MCA Title 41, Chapter 
3, the abuse, neglect and dependency provisions for use in state 
courts. . 

I do have many more recommendations based upon my extensive 
studies and on personal experience. If I could just reach the 
necessary forum. I did ask the Commission to hold hearings and 
issue summons to appear and bring documents. I suggested IIiIII 

somewhere in Montana, Texas, and LA. 

. Yours sincerely, 

A~tll<i-G ~p/ 
Frank B. tzgerald 

• 

• 
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Frank Boring Fitzgerald, Petitioner 
412 Hallowell Lane 
Billings, MT 59101-5011 USA 
Phone: 406-259-5866 

***** 

BEFORE THE INTER-AMERICAN COMMISSION ON HUMAN RIGHTS 
OF THE ORGANIZATION OF AMERICAN STATES 

Washington, D.C. 20006 USA 

***** 

FOR ALLEGED VIOLATION OF FUNDAMENTAL HUMAN RIGHTS, AND, 
FOR ALLEGED "CRIMES AGAINST HUMANITY" 

***** 

Case Number 

***** 

FRANK BORING FITZGERALD, Petitioner, 

and, 

united states of America, et al, 
Respondents 

) 
) 
) RECOMMENDATIONS 
) 
) 
) 

16 ***** 

17 RECOMMENDATIONS FOR THE COMMISSION TO INVESTIGATE, STUDY, 
COMMENT, AND SUGGEST TO THE UNITED STATES GOVERNMENT AS A 

18 POTENTIAL RESOLUTION TO PETITIONER'S HUMAN RIGHTS PETITION: 

19 ***** 

20 COMES NOW Petitioner, Frank Boring Fitzgerald, in support 

21 for his Human Rights Petition, makes the following: 

22 I 

23 RECOMMENDATIONS 

24 1 Petitioner recommends to the Commission it investigate and 

25 study his Fundamental Family Human Rights questions raised in his 

26 Petition and then formally or informally offer to the United 

27 States Government a set of proposed solutions to those questions, 
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1 as peers-to-a-peer. 

2 2 All serious Human Rights questions need answers and Peti-

3 tioner, because of his experience, has suggestions for answers 

4 to problem areas of Family HUman Rights in the USA. Most, if not 

5 all, of Petitioner's Human Rights questions have aris~n over the 

6 years as a direct or indirect result of failure of USA commc~ law 

7 and failure of the statutes upon which common law was based to 

8 uphold Human Rights. 

9 3 To exact respect for fundamental Family Human Rights 

10 requires a bold new approach to systems of dispensing family 

11 justice because Petitioner, and others, have gotten no where 

12 within the political system. No one has either the time or can 

13 devote the effort to put into effect remedial recommendations. 

14 Petitioner has been to all 3 branches of the US government and 

15 Montana government with his pleas for change all the while his 

16 Family Human Rights were being destroyed by the State. 

17 4 If one suggests making changes in a system, one must be sure 

18 changes are both needed and rightfully accomplished, consistent 

19 with a minimum impact upon society. Change is necessary. 

20 5 Petitioner suggests, not one iota of change needs to be made 

21 in the US Constitution in order to effect what he considers are 

22 a necessary and desired change in procedures of dispensing family 

23 services and justice in the USA so as to comply with Human Rights 

24 pro'visions of international law to which the USA is signator. 

25 6 One example of necessary change flows from the present US 

26 Constitutional mandate: The US Supreme Court has, 

27 

28 

" ... appellate jurisdiction, both as to law and fact, with 
such exceptions, and under such regulations as the Congress 
shall make". Article III, section 2, US constitution. 
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1 But the principle problem is, Congress allows the "excep-

2 tions"; Congress allows the US Supreme Court to, by discretion, 

3 summarily deny 90% of those cases corning before it without the 

4 Court ever really giving due consideration to and acting upon 

5 them. Their disposal actions are tantamount to a lottery. A 

6 case of utmost importance to all citizens can be simply sup-

7 pressed in summary denial. 

8 7 If Congress believes the US Supreme Court is overloaded with 

9 cases corning up on appeal, Congress ought to expand the one US 

10 Supreme Court into departments, or chambers, so the one Court 

11 can judiciously dispose of 100% of cases corning before it and 

12 thereby comply fully with the mandate of the US Constitution in 

13 regards the Constitutional requirement of appellate jurisdic-

14 tion. 1 

15 8 Rejection and suppression of appeals in summary denial are 

16 neither fundamentally fair nor attributable to what could be 

17 called an "independent judiciary" specif ied in international law. 

18 That is, the Court is biased towards, and has a propensity to, 

19 and has discretionary power to, suppress the 90% of cases, some 

20 of which from time to time involve questions of fundamental Fami-

21 ly Human Rights 2 , and "Civil Rights" {Human Rights} in general. 

22 9 Congress has the Constitutional authority to expand the US 

23 Supreme Court into departments or chambers through appropriate 

24 legislation signed by the President, doing so it would amend 

25 united states Code Title 28. By further amending Title 28, 

26 Congress may direct the Court to handle all appellate cases in 

27 the various departments or chambers. 

28 10 Congress should create the ability of citizens to bring 
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1 "civil Rights" suit in federal district court they presently 

2 cannot do, in citizen attempts to exhaust their domestic 

3 remedies, against state entities, and/ or private entities, and/ or 

4 persons who act for and in behalf of the state in the state of 

5 residence by doing seven things: 

6 a First, Congress should specify, and affirm, by joint resolu-

7: tion of both houses, the various Civil Rights Acts, adopted ;ver 

8 the years since the Civil War, are intended by Congress to allow 

9 citizens to implement the First Amendment to the us Constitu-

10 tion, which prohibits Congress from making laws abridging the 

11 right of the people to petition the government for a redress 

12 their grievances, by specifying in the joint resolution, it is 

13 the intent of Congress a citizen's "Civil Rights Complaint" may 

14 be filed in federal district court against alleged violators of 

15 civil Rights and to include state entities, and/ or private 

16 entities, and/or persons who act for and in behalf of the state 

17 of the state of residence without having to first file in state 

18 court3
; the Congress should specify, and affirm, in the joint 

19 resolution, the various Civil Rights Acts are not intended to 

20 convey a due process right of the state to treat Civil Rights as 

21 merely or solely "property interest rights" but as Human Rights 

22 when it comes to a citizen attempting to exercise Civil Rights 

23 but is confronted by a State challenge in court4
• 

24 b Second, the joint resolution should state it is the intent 

25 of Congress , "civil Rights" are Human Rights, reserved in the 

26 people by the 9th and lOth Amendments to the US Constitution not 

27 requiring laws of the legislatures or decisions of courts or 

28 decrees of the executive to make such Rights valid and effec-
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1 tive. This would be the USA way of implementing and giving 

2 recognition and credence to the many Human Rights provisions of 

3 international law respecting those Rights as fundamental to which 

4 conventions the USA is a signator. 5 

5 c Third, Congress should amend USC Title 42, Secti.on 1983, the 

6 civil Rights Act, to implement the meaning and intent of the 

7 Joint Resolution. That would include amending the Act by 

8 changing the wort "person" to include a state entity, a private 

9 enti ty, and a person, and specify no person, State entity, 

10 private entity, has implied, partial, quasi-, total, or qualified 

11 irnrnuni ty from Civil Rights suit. But in a civil Rights suit 

12 against a person and/or State entity and/or private entity, the 

13 burden of proof lies with Complainant in a pretrial hearing 

14 solely intended to more closely define legal questions present-

15 ed; jury trial would be a matter of right by demand of Com-

16 plainant6 ; a Civil Rights suit filed by a citizen ought to be a 

17 civil suit whereas filed by the State against a citizen ought to 

18 be a criminal suit; a civil suit filed by a citizen joined by 

19 the State against another citizen ought to be a criminal suit. 

20 d Forth, Congress should also amend USC Title 42, section 

21 1983, to include a time limitation: 

22 i which exempts concealed civil Rights violations from a time 

23 limitation until the discovery is complete; 

24 ii which is begun with each and every violation event which can 

25 be proved, with older violations permitted into evidence to show 

26 propensity; 

27 iii to begin running when enough proof can sustain prosecution 

28 in a court of law, and once before the court, the burden of proof 
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1 rests with the Complainant to prove the time-frames involved were 

2 necessary; 

3 iv which specifically exempts provable "crimes against Humani-

4 ty" with adequate definition thereon, from any time limitation; 

5 v which spe6ifically permits sequential litigation7 , which are 

6 each intended to exhaust remedies prior to filing a Civil Rights 

7 suit, before beginning to run a time limitationS; 

8 e Fifth, Congress should specify by amending Title 42 Section 

9 1983, no penalty, punishment, or sanction can be exacted against 

10 a citizen for his having filed a civil Rights Complaint a first 

11 and second time but if filed and denied twice then the denial the 

12 third time should cause sanctions to be invoked. Three strikes 

13 and you are out. 

14 f Sixth, Congress should also amend Title 42 Section 1983: 

15 i to disallow appeals by State entities of civil Rights case 

16 decisions9 unless the State and citizen complainants were 

17 originally co-prosecutors against other citizens and/or entities; 

18 this would not preclude the state filing as an amicus curiae. 

19 ii to incorporate the concepts of citizens having the Right to 

20 prove allegations of violations of their civil Rights 10 caused by 

21 Respondents be they officials, judges, prosecutors, other 

22 citizens, or state or private entities. No person, no private 

23 entity, no State entity, should be allowed by color of local law 

24 to work violations of civil Rights {Human Rights} above laws of 

25 the land prohibiting the violations without fear of retaliation 

26 in court. 

27 iii to allow citizen access to federal grand juries for invest-

28 igation of their civil Rights Complaints in conjunction with 
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1 domestic Human Rights Commissions as advocates of Complainant's 

2 civil Rights in federal courts. This would not require a new 

3 mandate from Congress only modification of existing mandates. 

4 g Seventh, Congress should amend Title 42 to include the 

5 following concepts in language of sections 670, et ~eq. dealing 

6 with families and Child Protection Services care situations: 

7 i All federal monies granted to the State and its advocates 

8 in all states for restoring families and/or for maintenance of 

9 CPS care situations must be monitored for compliance with terms 

10 of acceptance of those monies11 . This presently is not adequate-

Illy done leaving only Maryland and Iowa to 70% comply. All other 

12 states, including Montana, are in 0% compliance with no effective 

13 federal watchdog agency on their backs to comply. 

14 ii The State and its advocates must recognize, respect, and 

15 protect fundamental Family Human Rights. 

16 iii The state and its advocates must consider family members 

17 innocent until proven guilty in a court of law. 

18 iv The State and its advocates must consider any allegation of 

19 parental act of commission and/or omission upon their child only 

20 within the context of a criminal proceeding requiring a priority 

21 one trial by jury upon a priority one indictment of a local grand 

22 jury12. 

23 v At the very same time as a first Temporary Investigative 

24 Authority and Child Protection Order is issued, a Guardian Ad 

25 Litem shall be appointed to represent the child as an alleged 

26 victim and the duty of the GAL is to guard the Rights of the 

27 child from enchroachment by the State or any of its other 

28 advocates. 
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1 The GAL shall consider the parent or parents innocent and 

2 work with them until proven guilty in a court trial by jury at 

3 which time the GAL shall guard the child's Rights also from 

4 enchroachment from its parent or parents found guilty; the GAL 

5 shall have access to any information, to the state and its other 

6 advocates, to the child, to the parent or parents, to the court 

7 but not as prosecutor or co-prosecutor for or on behalf of the 

8 state or any of its other advocates, to the foster care review 

9 committee, to any interested party, so as to aid in the process 

10 of remedies beneficial to the family as a unit until guilt is 

11 adjudged. 

12 vi The state and its advocates must allow parents full dis-

13 covery through a requirement at all times to provide information 

14 developed13 and an adequate opportunity afforded to parents to 

15 dispute in a priority one foster care review committee hearing 

16 established under jurisdiction of the court14 which committee 

17 acts as a mediator or referee. Local court rules may need to be 

18 changed. 

19 vii An alleged child victim may not be removed from its family 

20 by the state or its advocates for less than a criminal allegation 

21. against one or both parents. 

22 viii The state or its advocates may not place a removed child in 

23 a CPS care situation removed from its family by more than a few 

24 miles, nor giving a new name, nor giving a new religion, nor 

25 withhold visitation by a parent except in suspected "crimes 

26 against Humanity" alleged to have been committed against the 

27 child by that parentIS, then the visitation must be brief and 

28 continuously monitored. 

64 



1 ix The state or its advocates may not remove a child from its 

2 family if only one parent is alleged to have committed a criminal 

3 action and/or inaction upon that child, and no other child may 

4 be removed at the same time who was not also alleged to be a 

5 victim16 or is'alleged to be in imminent danger if left with its 

6 family. 

7 x The alleged perpetrator must remove voluntarily or be 

8 removed by order of the court with opportunity to rebut within 

9 72 hours; 

10 xi The state or its advocates shall not hold a child, alleged 

11 victim of a parentally caused crime, in a cps care situation 

12 longer than 72 hours without further order from the court based 

13 upon rebuttable evidence. 

14 xii The state and its advocates must accept an order of priority 

15 in consideration of where to place an alleged victim child 

16 removed from its family in cps care situation to include: 

17 relatives, godparents, friends, and neighbors or other interested 

18 partie. 

19 xiii72 hours after a child has been removed from its family, a 

20 petition for a writ of habeas corpus filed by or on behalf of a 

21 parent, or on behalf of a child by its Guardian Ad Litem, must 

22 be respected by the court as priority one and cannot be denied 

23 summarily by anyone in or out of court. To process, it must not 

24 require more than a few hours. 

25 The habeas corpus filed by or on behalf of a parent takes 

26 the form, "The state and/or its advocates have my child which by 

27 Right belongs with me in my family--the state must charge me with 

28 a crime or return my child to me." 
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1 The habeas corpus filed on behalf of the chile by its 

2 Guardian Ad Litem takes the form, "The state and/or its advocates 

3 have the child which by Right belongs with its family--the state 

4 must charge the parent with a crime or return the child to its 

5 family." 

6 11 Additional recommendations are to be found in "WOUNDED 
., 

7 INNOCENTS", by Richard Wexler, at Chapter 11 "Making Changes" see 

8 Exhibit 6. 
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1 NOTES TO RECOMMENDATIONS 

2 1.An ideal example of such a departmental, or chambered, court 
is the Supreme Court of Costa Rica, which handles 100% of cases 

3 coming before it in the various Salas. 

4 2. as was Petitioner's second of two appeal cases 

5 3. This would have the effect of settling, once and for all, the 
various arguments and decisions of the federal courts on the 

6 federal question of the 11th amendment bar to a citizen suing 
their state of residence in federal district court where some 

7 courts have held it impossible and other courts have held it 
possible for citizens to sue their state in federal court. 

8 
4. At present in the USA, the State treats civil Rights as 

9 property interest rights conferred upon citizens by statutes and 
decisions of the courts much like property rights are conferred 

10 or created by contract. Such conference of rights by statutes 
has the meaning in court of: the State may withdraw by challenge, 

11 rights at any time under the due process clause of the 14th 
Amendment to the US Constitution. This interest right concept 

12 has been in and out of the courts for well over a century and 
needs to be finally laid to rest by action of the Congress in 

13 joint resolution of intent and meaning. 

14 5. At present there are no Human Rights recognized in the US 
Constitution as such fundamental. In practice, the US Constitu-

15 tion has been considered by the courts to grant powers to the 
legislatures to enact laws which laws recognize or grant people 

16 their Civil Rights. It must be point out to the Commission, 
these Civil Rights can be withdrawn at any time by whim and 

17 caprice of the legislatures without infringing the US Constitu­
tion. 

18 
6. The judge decides questions of law; the jury decides all other 

19 matters. 

20 7. appeals would be sequential litigation 

21 8. now the civil Rights suit must begin as if in parallel to other 
kinds of litigation with no chance at sequential suits because 

22 most often the other litigation takes longer than the statute of 
limitations for civil Rights cases allows 

23 
9. decided in favor of citizen complainants 

24 
10.in a federal court beyond a shadow of a doubt as the standard 

25 of evidence 

26 11. The terms of acceptance are written into USC Title 42, 
sections, 670 et seq. 

27 
12. Presently, allegations of misconduct are handled, according 

28 to state statutes, as "adversarial civil procedures" using rules 
of civil procedure in a court of law without benefit of a trial 
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1 ~ury. It would not be enough to require a trial by jury in 
a civil proceeding because, among other things, the verdict of 

2 a civil trial jury does not need to be unanimous and th0v would 
weigh the evidence, according to weight instructions, \c.~ basis 

3 of a "clear and convincing" test. Now, in state court it is the 
judge who weighs the evidence according to a "preponderance" 

4 test. Upon appeal, the appellate court will instruct the jedge 
to use the "clear and convincing" test. The highest test of 

5 weighing the evidence should be that used in 1st degree murder 
trials, "beyond a shadow of a doubt", because we . are talking 

6 about the poter;tial destruction of families. And, in order to 
arrive at "beyond a shadow of a doubt" test will require criminal 

7 procedures substituting civil procedures in court. Cr iminal 
procedures required of trials to terminate Parental Rignts in 

8 some courts may require amending local court rules. 

9 13.In Richie v. Pennsylvania, US Supreme Court, Richie was not 
able to defend himself because the state and its advocates 

10 withheld information vital to his defense. The us Supreme Court 
held he was not entitled to that information. Thus Congress can 

11 over-ride that decision and others of a similarity. 

12 14. Currently, foster care review committees are closed to 
parents. 

13 
15. Presently, a child is often removed from its home when only 

14 one parent is alleged to cause abuse, neglect or dependency: 

15 16. Currently, a child and any or all other siblings are removed 
when only one parent is at fault. The law should specify the 

16 offender parent shall be removed from the home and the children 
left with the other parent. 
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ERSONS INTERESTED IN OR HAS BEEN EFFECTED BY THE DEPARTMENT OF FAMILY 
'~ERVICES : 

ADDRESS 
Teresa 

Box 1224 
-essay, Donna 
Ilake, Dorothy 7830 2 Augg 

'Brown, Rick Box 471 
Buckman, Spring 
\uffington,Tim Box 104 

'~ibson, Meg 1919 Strand 
Hansen, Fred Box 5718 
lcAdams, Steve 

.... 1cDermot t, Rena 

TOWN 

Thompson Falls 
Frenchtown 

Dr.Missoula 
Phillipsburg 
Missoula 
Miltown 
Missoula 
Missoula 
Clinton 

5569 Cottonwood Dr. Florance 
-'lcKinstry, Mike Box 1172 Lolo 
(asmussen, Linda 1336 Sherwood Missoula 

"Rice, Debbie Box 908 Lolo 
~ice, John Box 5700 Missoula 
faylor, Debbie 2046-S 11 W Missoula 

'~eiley, Becky 774 Milty Ln. Hamilton 
Weaver, ROxy Box 871 Miles City 
t1hitelatch, Bob 

300 Dearborn 
Wikstrom, Kay 
TtIilkenson, Mim 
Williams, Ray 

740 Turner #14 
Box 73 

~"'Wilson, Gray Box 623 
Bowshi, Norm 1009 Palmer 
Sandau, Valinda(Ken) .... 838 N 5W 
Chrestensen, Bob 

_Bersuch, Brian & Marian 
305 Hilger 

Peterson, Cathy 
500 S 6th 

Goodyear, Gena 2028 Custer 
Fitzgerald, Frank 

3000 Hollowell Ln. 
Barth, Kay Box 186 

.... Steele, Nikki & 
Carl 406 5th Ave N 

Miller, Ed 903 Lane II 

~ ... Vincent, Vikey 104 
Peterson, Sue 219 S 8th St 

Missoula 
Missoula 
St. Ignatius 
Stevensville 
Frenchtown 
Missoula 

Missoula 
Lolo 

Lewistown 

Hamilton 

Billings 

Billings 
Alberton 

Lewistown 
Powell, Wyo 
Fort Harrison 
Hamilton 

Kolpin, Norm 2012 Forest Park Billings 
Miller, Morris 

"' ... Sharon 2212 4th Ave N Great Falls 

" ... 

,,," 

ZIP 

59873 
59834 
59802 
59858 
59802 
59851 
59801 
59801 
59825 

59833 
59847 
59802 
59847 
59806 
59801 
59840 
59301 

59801 
59802 
59865 
59870 
59834 
59802 

59802 
59847 

59457 

59804 

59102 

59101 
59820 

59450 
82435 
59636 
59840 
59102 

59401 

PHONE 

827-3046 
626-4558 
258-2864 

251-2926 
523-6399 
251-6392 
251-6392 
825-6938 

273-2527 
273-6865 
728-1686 
273-3167 
721-0103 
542-0153 
363-5383 

549-9619 
721-3068 
745-2300 
777-2873 

543-1907 

549-5340 
543-6193 
273-0820 

538-7832 

363-3551D 
363-3545N 
656-7112 

259-5866 
626-4451D 
722-4473N 

538-2347D 
307-754-3858 

443-2730 
538-2347 
656-6244 

761-0482 



NAME ADDRESS 

Garrick, Dennis D. 
306 Highland Ave 

Seminole, Bernice 
Hargen, Kenneth E. 

1831 Stoddard 
Squires, Charles & 

Norma Box 350061 
Henderso~, Jerry 

Box 5722 
Bartows,Mr. & 

Mrs. Gerold 217 Ave E 
Rist, Bud & 

TOWN 

Plentywood 
Lame Deer 

Missoula 

Grantsdale 

Helena 

Roundup 

Vonnie 410 N 33rd St. Billings 
Raugh, Ri2hard 208 Caroline Rd Roundup 
Sandou, Kenneth & 

Valinda 838 N. 5th W 
Clark, Richard Box 3566 
Belledaux, M.W., Sr., 

15420 TeyerRd #3 
Etter, Valorie 1814 Hauser 
Dye, Penny 

Missoula 
Missoula 

Lolo 
Helena 
Lewistown 

ZIP 

59254 

59802 

59835 

59601 

59072 

59101 
59901 

59802 
59806 

59847 
59601 
59450 

EXHIBIT I _ 
DATE e -b - 95 • 

.1 '" 55 c?:Ob 
PHONE 

765-1545 

543-6193 

443-2730 

323-2533 

252-2071 
756-6529 

728-1475 

Latham, Rosetta 
Espelin, Betty 
Henderson, 

Park City 59063 

273-0196 
443-6331 
538-5128& 
538-5782 
628-2991 
628-8096 1703 Pinyon Dr Laurel 

Jerry Box 5722 
Owens, C P 4235 McGillen 
Red F i:r::-:1, 

Pascal Box 3228 
Fisher, 

John & Eva RR #1 Box 4 
Morris, Bob & 

Yvonne--3208 Maser Dome Rd 
Damian, 

Marcus 
Austad 
White, 

Catland 
Wiley, 

Rebec2a 
McKay, Marvin 

3030 Market St 
Riverview C 

Box 350008 

Box 91 

Helena 
Red Lodge 

Missoula 

Joliet 

Silesia 
San Diego, 
Calif. 
Great Falls 

Grantsdale 

Grentsdale 

401 N 10th Apt.304 Hamilton 
Kruger, {vonne 

411 1/2 W. Main, Apt. #7 Lewistown 

- 2 -

59604 
59068 

59806 

59041 

59041 

443-2730 
446-3933 

92101 619-236-0994 
59044 

59385 363-5383 

59383 363-5363 

59840 

59457 



'lAME 

llows, Charles 
2'ellows, Mae 
-",nery, Judy 

:gillis, Vivian 
'-:rtller, Brenda 
\lcBurrey, Ethel 
: Leder, Hudd 
~.ncello, Colleen 
Tucker, Trish 
: :hroechl, Evan S. 
I,_mgherty, W. A. 
Jensen, Cliff 
D')ff, Tim 
~ :hroechl, Eric 
r~:mnelly, Faye 
Feeler, Peggy 

:own, Candi 
,~rly, Sharon 
Volkman, James 
- )nes, Jamie 
=nning, Andy 

l?'hillips, Jason 
T\Tirl ing, Al 

isko, Connie 
lTirling, Ruby 
Peterson, Cliff 
radbury, Ray 

.... ier, James R. 
P·.avces, Keith 
'. owry, Carol 
ier, Myra 

~johns, Alan M. 
::::praggs, Rita 
laze, Duane E. 

~laze, Fran 
Nielson, George 
owell, Shirley 

,_alker, Russ 
McClendon, Jodi 
-ohnson, Maxine 

_ohnson, Maryanne 
Thompson, George 
l\Tielsen, Denni 
'ielsen, Mary 

'"Kuntz, Mike 
Lane, Casandra 

ADDRESS 

- 3-

TOWN ZIP PHONE 

Sun River 59483 
Sun River 59483 
Sun River 59483 
Sun River 59483 
Sun River 59483 
Sun River 59.483 
Vaughn 59487 
Sun River 59483 
Sun River 59483 
Fort Shaw 59401 
Great Falls 59401 
Vaughn 59487 
Sun River 59483 
Fort Shaw 59443 
Sun River 59483 
Vaughn 59487 
Vaughn 59487 
Sun River 59483 
Sun River 59483 
Vaughn 59487 
Sun River 59483 
Sun River 59483 
Sun River 59483 
Sun River 59483 
Sun River 59483 

Sun River 59483 

Sun River 59483 
Sun River 59483 
Fairfield 59436 
Vaughn 59487 
Cascade 59421 
Cascade 59421 

Great Falls 59401 
Belt 59412 
Great Falls 59401 
Vaughn 59487 
Vaughn 59487 
Vaughn 59487 
Cascade 59421 
Cascade 59421 
Great Falls 59401 
Great Falls 59401 



NAME 

Mr. & Mrs. Bruce 
A. McAuley 
Keiser, Starla 
Hover, Jeffery 
Baker, Edyth 
Schawier, Charles 
Coon, Karyne 
Coon, Charles 
Matschenlade, 

Daisey 
Linef, Harvey, 
Linef, Raylene 
Marsh, Ray 

Van Gorden 
Horrall, Arthur M. 
Baker, Raymond 
Uhrs, Milton 
Bolstad, Alvin 

ADDRESS 

1005 2nd Avenue N. #26 
927 7th Ave. N.W. 
6081/2 Central Ave#310 
602 Park Dale 
66 St. So. Apt. 418 
605 7th Ave. North 

1604 Aoasis Ct. 
903 8th Steet 

4600 4th Ave. 
P. O. Box 

723 Broadway 
P. O. Box 244 
Route 1-Box 62 

533 

English, James B. P. O. Box 148 
Finch, William P. O. Box 539 
Stapleton, Wayne P. O. Box 533 
Peccia, John P. O. Box 511 
Holze, Paul P. O. Box 236 
59479Fulton, ClarenceP. O. Box 436 
Morley, Loren P. O. Box 652 
Ballard, Vernon P. O. Box 13 
Burger, Jack L. P. O. Box 3 
McCanas, Arthur P. O. Box 285 
Patterson, P. O. Box 1017 
Krause, Harold P. O. Box 666 
Beck, Marvin 509 6th Ave. South 
Perry, Jack R.R. 
Broch, James P. O. Box 54 
Corbett, Ralph P. O. Box A 
Munson, Joe P. O. Box 101 
Ingalls, C. & L. 104 Silver Dr. 
Bradley, S. L. P. O. Box 126 
Peterson, John ~421 Stone St. 
Hruska, A. L. 2526 Miles Ave. 
Smith, R. 928 W. 4th 
McComos, Larry M. 3231 Central Ave. 
Loyming, Sam Star Rt. Box 30 
Vanderburg, Jim 44 Silver (?) 
Childers, Don 1235 Custer Ave. 
Frey, Ralph M. 2213 Elizabeth St. 

- 4-

t:.XHIBIT ._....1/ ___ _ 
DATE ~-b -95 

TOWN 

Great Falls 
Great Falls 
Great Falls 
Great Falls 
Great Falls 
Great Falls 
Great Falls 

Great Falls 
Great Falls 
Great Falls 
Great Falls 
Valier 
Denton 
Stanford 
Coffee Creek 

Roy 
Roundup 
Harlowton 
Harlowton 
Starburst 
Harlowton 
Harlowton 
Lavina 
Lavina 
Harlowton 
Denton 
Harlowton 
Lewistown 
Judith Gap 
Judith Gap 
Winnett 
Teigen 
Lewistown 
Park City 
Billings 
Billings 
Laurel 
Billings 
Belfry 
Billings 
Billings 
Billings 

ZIP 

59401 
59401 
59401 
59401 

.59401 
59401 
59401 

59401 
59401 
59401 
59401 
59486 
59433 
59479 
59424 

59471 
59072 
59036 
59036 
59036 
59036 
59036 
59046 
59046 
59036 
59430 
59036 

59457 
59452 
59453 
59087 
59084 
59459 
59063 
59101 
59102 
59044 
59102 
59008 
59102 
59102 
59102 

PHCNE 



-

lAME 

,-
~homas, Odelta A. 
"skarn, Victor H. 
nsen, James W. 

~:t3ng, LeRoy L. 
J,rman, Harry L. 

rr, Ralph T. 
i.rnard, David H. 
~alters, Gordon R. 

ADDRESS 

1302 Wicks Lane 
2719 4th Ave. 
460 Swan Hill Dr. 
P.O" Box 1073 
728 - 8th St. W. 
862-4807 
149 Ferndale Dr. 
130 Yarrow Ave. 
P. O. Box 1965 

, .uzof, Richard E. 804 - 8th Ave. W. 
~~hmidt, Vivian 22 Meadowlark 
,T')rdhaper, Darrell 621 Sapphire Ave. 
1 :e g P. ? Montana Vets. Home 
~~ush, Ronald 12157 Hy 212 
Aeadows, Robert General Del. 

)ughty,Phillip H. P. O. Box 332 
. ...lsano, John R. P. O. Box 145 
:~hompson, Bruce O. P.O. Box 89 
- luse (?) ,Thomas A. P. O. Box 173 

m? .. Glen C. P. O. Box 95 
Jr'tchison, Russell M. Box 242 
Q~nders, Gordon H. Box 331 

inks, Tom Rte 1 -Box 160 
:~ockinger, Gil 3020 5th Ave. So. 
Linssen, Verne P. 1808 32nd St. So. 
)llick, C.F. Cholly 

Spaulding, Ronald 
.- rown, Dean B. 

rownwell, Robert >Ii. 
lillderson, James 
P::l.kke, Emil G. 

:::hultz, William 
'~emer, Otto 
Richter, William 

nbody, Roy 
,_etzel, LeRoy R. 
Goodmundson, Darrell 

8th -
P. O. 
P. O. 
P. O. 
P. O. 
P. O. 
P. O. 

14th St. 
Box 154 
Box 308 
Box 463 
Box 318 
Box 175 
Box 246 

Rte 1 Box 
P. O. Box 

127 
201 
136 
31A 

Rte 2 Box 
Rte 1 Box 

P. O. Box 235 

So. 

36 Willington Ln. eilly, Diana 
'jenkins, Paul 
McNess 

K. (?)221 36 St. So. 
256 22nd Ave NW 

ull, Ardell 
~affner, Dolores 
Haffner, Bob L. 

- 5-

TOWN 

Billings 
Billings 
Big Fork 
Big Fork 
Kalispell 
Whitefish 
Big Fork 

Whitefish 
Kalispell 
Kalispell 
Billings 
Columbia Falls 
Charlo 
Charlo 
Augusta 
Augusta 
Geraldine 
Geraldine 
Geraldine 
Geraldine 
Geraldine 
Fairfield 
Great Falls 
Great Falls 

Great Falls 
Power 
Cascade 
Dutton 
Power 
Power 
Power 
Fairfield 
Choteau 
Choteau 
Fairfield 

Dutton 
Cascade 
Great Falls 
Great Falls 
Fort Shaw 
Great Falls 
Great Falls 

ZIP 

59105 
59102 
59911 
59911 
59901 
59937 
59511 

59937 
59901 
59901 
59105 
59912-0256 
59824 
59824 
59410 
59410 
59446 
59446 
59446 
59446 
59446 
59436 
59405 
59405 

59405 
59468 
59421 
59433 
59468 
59468 
59468 
59436 
59422 
59422 
59436 

59433 
59421 
59404 
59405 
59443 
59401 
59401 

PHONE 



.ahn, Gene 
:ahn, Carol R. 
1affner, Alan G. 
Johnson, Ella 
Jlsen, Edith 
-ohn E. 
rutosky, Boyce A. 

~avid Rogstad 
roman, Emma F. 
:)uinsey, Joan 
Rogstad, ~-<rcy 

Johnson, Donald 
Peterson, Cliff 
Pozder, Steven 
Secrist, Robert M. 
Ripper, Rifer 
Eisler, Ruby 
Green, Karen 
DeBolt, Georgann 
DeBolt, Elmer R. 
Anderson, Lyla 
Meyer, Dan J. 

ADDRESS 

Anderson, John W. (Bill) 
Zgoda, Iona 
Obermatte, Wilbur R. 
Plummer, Ramona 
White, Jesse 
Reiner, Dorothy 
Anderson, Sue 
Malone, Sr. (Jesse) 
Schroder, Frieda R. 
Strickland, Julia 
Nerling, Krystina 
Steele, H. Larry 
Schmidt, Gideon 
Friesen, Henry D. 
Graf, Ervin D. 
Maler.ca, James C. 
BJffir.gton, Donald J. 
Pemburton, Donald 
Jones, Rodney D. 2919 4th Ave. 
Davis, Wayne 136 Riverdrive 
Thurba, Delmont R. 

So. 

3815 
Shay, Morton I. 
Garden, Ralph L. 

5th Ave. South 
Box 275 
Rt. 3 - Box 3010 

- 6-

EXHIBIT __ I'"--__ 
OAT£. d -b -q 6 

• 
_1 L 515 dOE? 

TOWN 

Lincoln 
Lincoln 
Great Falls 
Great Falls 
Great Falls 
Great Falls 
Sun River 
Sun River 
Sun River 
Vaughn 
Sun River 
Vaughn 
Vaughn 
Vaughn 
Great Falls 
Dupuyer 
Dupuyer 
Sunburst 
Vaughn 
Vaughn 
Vaughn 
Great Falls 
Choteau 
Choteau 
Choteau 
Choteau 
Choteau 
Choteau 
Choteau 
Choteau 
Choteau 
Vaughn 
Sun River 
Great Falls 
Fairfield 
Simms 
Fairfield 
Fairfield 
Helena 
Browning 
Great Falls 
Great Falls 

Great Falls 
Chester 
Lewistown 

ZIP 

59639 
59639 
59404 
59401 
59401 
59401 
59483 
59483 
59483 
59487 
59483 
5~487 

59487 
59487 
59401 
5c~42 

5:--z42 
59482 
59487 
59487 
39487 
59401 
59422 
59422 
59422 
59422 
59·;22 
59422 
59422 
59422 
59422 
59487 
59483 
59401 
59436 
59477 
59436 
S9436 
.59601 
59417 
59405 
59404 

59405 
59522 
59457 

PHONE 



_\i"'1E ADDRESS TOWN ZIP PHONE 

-lsen, Leon R. Starroute-Box 58 Vaughn 59487 
smay, David M. Box 63 Fort Shaw 59443 

,;:rohlgmuth, Joyce G. Box 9 Vaughn 59487 
1~-3.smoda , Dick Sun River 59483 

2nger, Daisy Fairfield 59436 
1~lson, Margaret Fairfield 59~36 
Konen, Amelia Fairfield 5Q436 

ink, Ruth Fairfield 59436 
,-ike, Donna Fairfield 59436 
King, Karen Fairfield 59436 
"jelsrud, Robert P. O. Box 606 Lincoln 59639 
rescott, Gordon P. O. Box 787 Lincoln 59639 

'~isfeldt , Otis 
Robbins, Ken 585 Highland Helena 59601 
airclough, Mike Helena 59601 

eavoy, Walter Fort Shaw 59443 
Williams, K.F. P. O. Box 2413 Great Falls 59403 
elly, Larry Fort Shaw 59443 

,_an't distinguish name Fort Shaw 59443 
Schrock, Robert Fairfield 59436 
TTalston, Terri A. Fort Shaw 59443 
,ffelberg, Brenda Fort Shaw 59443 

lireiting, Carol Fort Shaw 59443 
Olsen, Norma Fort Shaw 59443 
liller, David L. Fort Shaw 59483 .... 

-7-
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MontanarlS For Due Process 
3700 South Russell, B·10! 

EXHIBIL I 
--~--... ."..-

DA T_E..---.:::c:J-==---I:.b2-~-J.9~5,--
Missoula, MY 59801 

(406) 728·7566 
FAX 728·3988 

........... 
:!: ,....~ _..;;;;'S;...:..B~d-~0ti'..b ____ ,. 

Paul Befumo, JD, Pres. 
Robert G. Steele,JD, CPA, V.P 

January 27, 1995 

FROM: 

TO: 

Paul Befu a 

Senator urnett 
Senator impking 
Senator dnde 
Senator 
Senator 
Senator 
Senator 

RE: S.B.206 

Dear Senators: 

I would like to express y gratitude (0 you for sponsoring S.B. 206. I have been involved 
in mostly futile attempts to help people abused by DFS for the past several years. I would 
appreciate if you would otify me of any public hearings on your proposed bill. 

I have accumulated a vol 
than willing to share wit 
contention that DFS, th 
parents of their rights: 

'nous amount of evidence of DFS abuses, which I am more 
you. I am enclosing two documents which I feel support the 

county attorneys, and courts have been depriving Montana 

a) The first is an rder written by Judge Harkin of Missoula in which he asserts the 
court's right to t e children from their parents under "temporary" authority 
("temporary" mea s until they reach age 18, according to the Montana Supreme 
Court), and Furth r asserts that the only process required is a showing of probable 
cause to conduct n investigation. (p. 5, ~ 2). Harkin asserts that a parent need 
never be given an adjudicatory hearing at which to challenge allegations of abuse. 
The Montana Su "eme Court has endorsed Harkin's assenion. 

b) The second is affidavit from a DFS social worker in which speaks for itself. 
Two days after t affidavit was filed in case No. 94-545, the affiant was 
interrogated in a hreatening manner by Anne Gilke and Richard Kirstein, two DFS 
henchman direct! under the supervision of Hank Hudson, head of DFS. The day 
after the interrog ion, Ms. Kirchner was suspended from her DFS job without pay. 
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10:47 '5'406 728 3988 Estate Services 

Douglas G. Ha 
Department 4 
Fourth Judic! 
Missoula Coun 
200 West Broa 
Missoula, MT 
(406) ~:!:J-477 

kin, District Judge 

1 District 
y Courthouse 
'Way S'':reet 

59802-4292 

--- .. ".. 

ffi.ID AUG 23 '-994 

MO:.rrANA F TH JUDICIAL DI~;TRICT COURT, MISSOULA COUNTY 

~~-;;-E~~;;~ -;;-~;;~~~;---- ------;--.' --;;~;;-;~~-~:;~;;7-i3 
) 

CHRISTOPHER F l'lLER and ) 
JONATHAN FOWL ) MEMORANDUM AND ORDEL{ 

) 
YOUTHS IN CARE. ) 

er comes before the Court upon William Fowler's 

14 motions: (1) 0 dismiso the youths in need of care proceedings 

15 or, in the al ernative, to set an adjudicatory hearing pursuant 

16 to S41-3-401( (2) to implement a treatment plan; and 

17 (3) to preven the state of Montana from financing the di vorc,:, / 

18 custody proc All parties have brief.ed the motions dnd 

19 the ~atter i submitted and ready for ruling. 

20 B'ACRGROmrn 

21 This ac was initiated on June 14, 1991 when the state 

22 of Montana titioned the Court for temporary investigative 

23 

24 

authority a 

affidavit 

protective service. The petition and the 

vided by a social worker for Department of Family 

25 services (he einafter, DFS) alleged abuse within the meaning of 

26 S41-3-102, M C.A. Judge Jack Green found probable cause to 

believe that tte children ~ere youths in need of care and in 

8 .. 1 62 

!4J 003 
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10:48 '0'406 728 3988 Estate Sel'vlces 

need of 

cause hearing w 

DFS and Mr. 

stipulation had 

E.XHIBIT ___ . I __ 
DATE.. cP-~ b - 95 
~I L-- ;:s B ~o h 

investigative services, and he granted 

igative authority to DFS. An order to show 

scheduled for June 24, 1991. Both counsel for 

appeared and advised this cOurt that a 

reached. Therea!ter, this Court issued a 

6 restraining ord r granting DFS temporary investigative authority 

7 on July 17, 199 • Hr. Fowler was restrained and enjoined from 

B any personal 0 telephone contact with the two minor children 

9 or their mothe 

10 

II 

12 

T~ereafte , numerous ~otions were filed by the state of 

There have been numerous show cause 

hearings upon A brief chronological review of the 

13 course of this case reveals thE:::" ·following: 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

"24 

2) 

26 

27 

" 

(1 ) On 
clar 
29, 
Scol 
psyc 

uly 26, 1991, the State moved for 
fication of psychol~gical exams. On July 
991, the court ordt::"'Ced that either Dr. 
tti or Dr. Walters were to complete a 
ological evaluation of Hr. Fowler. 

(2) On ugust 15, 1991, Mr. Fowler moved for 
supe ised visitation pending the examinations. 
On A gust 21, "1991, the state moved to approve 
plac ment of the youth and to withhold 
visi ation until the visitation was complete. 
On A gust 22, 1991 this Court heard and granted 
the tate's motion for placement of Chris Fowler 
with his natural mother, and granted the state's 
moti n to withhold visitation. The Court denied 
Mr. Fowler' 5 motion to move Chris Fowler to 
fost r care in Missoula. The Court ordered a 
supe vised Christmas visitation. During this 
hear' ng, the state !:loved the Court to take 
judi ia1 notice of a transcript from a divorce 
proc edings by Dana Fowler in which she detailed 
abus at the hands of Mr. Fowler. The Court 
hea and granted this motion. 

(3) On nuary 22, 1992, Mr. Fowler moved again for 
sup vised visitation. On February 13, 1992 he 
fil a motion to dismiss the proceedings 

2 

6-106 

[4J 004 
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16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 
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(4 ) 

be 
re 
5, 

.~ 

Dr. Scolatti had not finished his 
In a memorandum and order da~ed March 

this Court denied that motion. 

completed hie psychologioo.l 
Horoh 27, 1992. 110 rooommendo,': 

: (a) Hr. Fowler have no unsupervised 
~ct with the childr.en, (b) that the custody 

Chris Fowler be tr~nsferred to his natura~ 
er, Janet Schofield, (c) that Chris Fowler 
in need of counseling, and (d) that· HI. 
er needed long-term counseling with a 
apist of his choice to work on issues of 
r management and r~renting skills. 

(5) 19, 1993, Mr. Fowler moved to set 
and to obtain a second opinion of D~ 

psychological evaluation. In ~ 
ing on September 7.0, 1993, this Court 
ted the motion for a second opinion, ordered 

the State disclose all raw test data used 
r. Scolatti in his psychiatric evaluation, 

and ordered that Dr: Walters should fornulate a 
vis'tation plan. 

(6) In a hearing scheduled October 4, 1993, t~e 
Cou t granted Ms. Schofield and Ms. Sutherland'.: 
ent into this case. The court denied Mr. 
Fow er' s motion for visitation during interviews 
to be conducted by Dr Walters. The Court 
ord red Mr. Fowler to obtain a written propos~d 
tre tment plan in regard to visitation from Dr. 

(7) 

(8) 

Hal ers. 

con 
(c) 
Tho 
ini 
Mr. 

On 
bif 
the 
On 
jur 
the 

ovember 15, 1993, Mr. Fowler again moved for 
orary . visitation. After a hearing, the. 
t issued an order denying this motion based 
: (a) the rema.i.ning unproven sexual abuse 
gations, (b) the potential for damage that 
inued to exist with unsupervised visitation I 
the recent evaluation of Chris Fowler by 
as Hearn which supported Dr. Scolatti's 
ial determinations, and (d) the failure of 
Fowler to obtain long-term ~ounseling. 

November 24, 1993, Mr, Fowler moved to 
reate the property settlement issues from 
custody issues in the divo~=e proceedings. 
February 24, 1994, this Court assumed 
sdiction over both divorce proceedings a~j 
motion to bifurcate WaS found to be moot. 

6-1 64 
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10:49 '0'406 728 3988 Estate Services 

EXHIBIT~ __ . _____ .J ---._ .. 
DATE... c;?- - b -q 6 

11. ;5B ~Ob 
As Bteted au ~,the present'motions pending before this Court 

2 are Mr, Fowl's motions: (1) to dismiss the youths in need of 

3 care proceed g6 or, in the alternative, to set an adjudicatory 

4 

) 

6 

7 

8 

9 

hearing purs 

t~eatment 

S41-)-401(2), H.C.A.; (2) to implement a 

(3) to prevent the state of Montana from 

financlng th divorce/custody proceedings. 

I8MI6ShL OF THE YINC P~OCEED NGB 

Under a Rule 12(c), Mont. Rules civ. Pro. motion, in order 

to dismiss a claim, the defendant must show beyond a doubt that 

10 the plainti! can prove no set of facts in support of his claim 

II which would ntitle him to relief. Fraunhofer v. Pric~, 182 

12 Mont. 7, 12, 594 P.2d 324, 327 (1979). Clearly, Mr. Fowler has 

13 not shown be ond a doubt that there is a basis for dismissal of 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

author it ces 

action at t 

M.C.1\.. 

that his "property" (1. e. children) have 

been him without due process of law. He 

he has never had his "day in courtll to contest the 

merits of t e initiating petition for temporary investigative 

authority, d that the state of Montana has never addressed the 

gat ions that were originally made against him. 

A w of the record in this case reveals that a portion 

of in bringing this case to a conclusion has been as 

a result the actions of Mr. Fowler. This Court has 

maintained urnerous show cause hearings in this matter. As 

, at the most recent hearing, after listening to the 

4 

6· 

• 

@006 
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evidence, this ourt found that Mr. Fowler had not complied with 

Dr. Scolatti' s reconunendations for long-term and intensive 

counseling. I was not until Mr. Fowler's pending motions were 

fully briefed nd before this Court that Mr. Fowler filed the 

"Notice 01: oluntary complianco" with Dr. SaoHltti' 0 

recommendation . 

although Mr. Fowler was granted his motion to 

seek a second 0 inion of Dr. Scolatti' s evaluation, he has never 

provided subst ntive information to either the DFS or this Court 

that ort re-unification of his family. 

case law interpreting Title 41, Chapter 3, 

Part that a show cause hearing is the only hearing 

required when petition for t~~porary investigative authority 

is filed. Re J.W. & J.C, 226 Mont. 491,736 p.:Cd 960 

(1987) . legislature never intended to consolidate a 

petition to ve youths declared in need of care (S41-3-401, 

H.C.A.) and a petition for temporary investigative authority. 

(S4~-3-402, H C.A.) Id. at 497-498. This Court's continued 

authority in this case has been pursuant to the temporary 

investigative authority statutes. Under those statutes, this 

Court has th authority to require that Mr. Fowler undergo 

22 psychological evaluation (S41-3-403(2) (c), H.C.A.), and it has 

23 the authority to require. that Mr. Fowler receive c(;''.1J1seling 

24 services. <S -3-403(2) (c), H.C.A). The state has never filed 

2S a petition pur uant to S41-3-401, M.C.A. which would necessitate 

26 that this Cou set a date for an adjudicatory hearing. There 

27 has never be n an attempt by DFS to permanently remove the 

~r.nd.n e.rd Order 5 
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children from he custody of Mr. Fowler. 

£XHIBIT_---:/ ___ _ 

DATL-E._...l:::c:L..;...-~bz_-_9u52-­
"1 L 5 B «Db 
~.~--~~~~-~-

There has only been 

2 n petition for emporary investigative authority and protective 

3 services. The District Court has acted at all times pursuant 

4 to 541-3-403, M.C.A. This statute gives the Court the authority 

5 to provide illlll1c ia.te protective servicen, and it also authori:les 

6 the District ourt to usa brood power to make oontinuing 

7 arrangements f the children's protection. Matter of H.D., 256 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

Mont. 70, 76, 

has never had 

abuse or, as 

hearing, 

ini tial show 

P.2d 114 (1992). The reason that Mr. Fowler 

"day in court" to contest the allegations of 

in this case, his initial show cause 

he reached a stipulation with DFS and the 

hearing was cancelled. This case ha3 

proceeded ther n based upon the initi"l decisions of Mr. FOT,.,ller 

to forego a sh \of cause hearing which would have required the 

state to prese t evidence establishing probable cause for the 

issuance order fc~ immediate protection. Now, three 

years later, . Fowler has decided that he wants his "ehoT,.,l 

cause" hearing whereby the state is required to establish 

probable cause for the issuance of an. order for imlllediate 

20 protection. 

21 This Cou has the authority to continue to provide 

22 temporary prot tive services to Mr. Fowler's children, and Mr. 

23 Fowler should ot be allowed to take this case back to square 

24 

25 

26 

one each time e hires a new attorney. Therefore, Mr. Fo",,"ler 

has 10 days rom the date of this order to submit: (1) 

substantive regarding a second psychological 

27 evaluation whi h differG froI:! the psychological evaluation 
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provided b Dr. Scolatti, and (2) substantive information 

2 regarding. h s long te~ counseling on parenting skills and anger 

3 control. 

4 

S 

6 

7 

8. 
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10 

11 

12 
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14 

15 

16 
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19 

20 

11 

22 

.... ould be a 

preserve 

is also 

of those 

ler contends that the state of Montana has never 

a tre~tment plan or attempted to re~nifY his family. 

t's Order which resulted from the November 15, 1993 

licit reasons Yere given why family re-unification 

he best interest of the children, and an explanation 

under what circumstances that temporary visitation 

in the future . 

is true that the policy of this state is to 

e unity of the family (541-1-101(1) (c), M.C.A.), it 

policy of this state to protect children yhose 

adversely affected by the conduct· 

sponsible for their care (S41-3-101(2), M.C.A.). 

This Court ill continue to provide protective serv~ ces to those 

children u til the issues 36dressed in this Court'g Order have 

Family unity 'Will not be preserved at the 

expense of the children. In Re. M.N., 199 

Mont. 4.07, 649 P.2d 749 (1982). As it is now Mr. Fowler's 

contention that he is complying yith Dr. Scolatti's 

23 recommenda ions, this Court orders that Mr. Fowler file a 

24 written pr treatment plan 'Within 10 days of the date of 

2) this order. The DFS has 10 days thereafter in which to file its 

26 written pr posed treatment plan. Thereafter, a hearing will be 

27 scheduled request of the parties. 

~rard.n ard 0 7 
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EXHIBIT __ .:-/ __ 

DATL.---l:::~:'--.s..::b_-....... 9 .... b""­
~ ~1--.--:;;S;;:....Bt...I.....ldQ~.looIb:-_ 

Mr. owler has failed to explain how the state of Montana 

3 is financ ng this divorce custody dispute. 

Dnco up~n tho forogoing, Hr. Fowler's motion to dismiss 

6 is DENIED 

7 Mr. Fowler is hereby ordered to 5ubmi t (1) a second 

8 psycholog cal evaluation, and (2) sUbstantive information 

9 Sl1rroundi g the counseling he has received on parenting skills 

10 and anger control. 

11 Mr. owler is further ordered to submit a written, proposed 

12 treatment plan within 10 days uf the date of this order. DFS 

13 

14 treatment 

s thereafter in ~hich to submit its written proposed 

A hearing will then be schedUled upon the 

15 request 0 the parties. 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

2S 

26 

27 

Hr. 

divorce c 

cc: 

wIer I S motion to prevent the state from financing the 

proc~gs is without merit and DENIED. 

~3 day O~f:-q~~r.4-. 

k Flaherty 
ey for William Fowler 

Janet Pedersen 

Ball 

Halligan 
County Attorney 

Borg 
for Christopher and Jonathan Fowler 
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rru.y5h~ (\I~L 
~Kirchner 
415 N. Higgins 
Missoula, MT 59801 
(406) 721·3000 

STATE OF MONTAN ) 
: ss. 

County of Missoula ) 

AFFIDAVIT 

I, MARClA KIR H.l:'-ffiR, being a person of legal age, being first duly sworn, 
deposes and says: 

1. I, MARCIA KIRC R, have resided in the Missoula area for approximately five and 
one half years. For the 1 t Four years, I have worked for the Department of Family 
Services (DFS). My curr fit position is that of Community Social Worker II, and I work 
in the Missoula Departm nt of Family Services office. I also have a private practice as a 

d..Cti.,\"\.::t IC'Y~ I typically ork predominantly with youths in the intake portion of the 
investigative processes i . iared through DFS. 

2. During the course of y work I regularly interact with the county artorney's office, 
and advocate for yomhs hrough the District Court system. Specifically, I regularly 
generate reports cant g information that I have gathered during my investigations of 
cases referred to DFS. hen my investigations indicate that intervention is necessary, I 
contact the Missoula Co my Attorney's office, and the County attorney then represents 
DFS before the court, us ally petitioning the cOUrt for some necessary action, which 
includes but is to limited to removing a child from an environment which may pose a 

. threat to the child's heal and safety. Such actions are taken under state laws dealing with 
Youths in need of care, .C.A. Title 41. 

3. The usual manner in hich cases proceed is for me to provide information to a deputy 
county attorney, and for the county attorney to generate an affidavit containing the 
information I provide,d to then use that affidavit to support the action requested from 
the court. For example, cases where I would seek Temporary Investigative Authority 
(TIA) is sought under M C.A. §41-3-102, the information I would provide would be 
incorporated into an affi avit of probable cause supporting the necessity for the (rIA). In 
my experience, t:he coun attorney incorporates information into such affidavits, and 
seldom if ever does any rther investigations as to the truth or falsity of the faernal 
maners contained in sue affidavits, prior to them being presented to the court. 
Thereafter, there is one eputy County Anomey who sometimes dOe)further investigation 
to determine the truth 0 falsity of the information contained in affidavits. In my 

AFFIDAVIT Page 1 of 3 
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experience, other attorne) s i~ the County Attorney's office do nofu~her in~estigations~ 
and any factual matters p esented in affidavits are allowed to stand unless a dIscrepancy IS 

brought to their attentio by some outside party. 

4. In my experience, due to the work load and resources at the disposal of DFS workers, it 
is simply not possible to 0 a thorough investigation of cases prior to representing the 
county anorney with inf rmation that is later incorpqrated into ?ffidavits of probable 

. . f .. -,.:;umztrry~ JII~ h b h 
cause. In my expenence, erroneous 1ll ormatIon 1S ~ presente to t e court y t e 

county attorney's office. 

5. After intervention by FS, and under DFS's investigatory authority, a case worker 
routinely seeks (0 have a professional psychologist or psychiatrist become involved i the 
case, interview any neces ary parties, and present a report to the court regarding their 
findings. This procedure ostensibly functions as a safeguard, allowing for an outside 
opinion to either suppo or rebut a caseworker's investigations, conclusions and 
recommendations. b pr ctice, however, my experience and observations lead me to 
conclude that some prof ssionals tend to support the position presented to ther:r;L by the J" 

k / h 1 in£
. ~rf'J.!.nr;'v)-:,·~ 

case wor er and or t e c umyattorney. As a resu t, erroneous ormatlOn orrsn gets 
endorsed by clinical prof ssionals. I have personally experienced this happening in various 
cases. 

6. In pr;;.ctice, the amho ity of the state to intervene and take action in emergency 
situations has been and i being abused in the Fourth Judicial District. This abuse involves 
DFS, Youth Court, the umy atwrney's oruce, the public defenders office, and judges. 
The nature of the abuse mails the state using its amhoriry to intervene in emergency 
situations, then postpo . g any substantive hearing on the truth or falsity of the 
underlying allegations th tIed t the intervention for extended periods, often e.xceeding 
several months. Often, 1 wyers appointed to represent the interests of youths as their 
guardians ad litem do no actually represent their wards. I personally have witnessed 
hearings at which guardi ns ad litem have failed to show up to represent their wards at 
critical hearings, have sh wn up without having ever met their wards or reviewed their 
files, or have had others how up in their stead who were totally unprepared to act as , 

~ardian. J~d$es. typicall are aware o,~ thesf abuses, ~d lo~k the w4er way. 1.-1 :;),L~L~. n \1,Jt 
t:f. Y\t\J-J. "K'{tX 'thQ~( Lt ~.s CL-t-!2/.J}--1 (I,},U·,h!nW I her a d~·Hw l'),--- [Lil Crt.~-r Juv~ ~S~{:L. 
7. In my experience, in vidual DFS employees can pm:entially\ abuse the =te hv\ ,. _, . -J . .. f . h tc,'-' ~ lo-:c:....j y . -ttl c<. \~CiL'C.L __ "'L\-'--il 
presennn.g. . .. ill ormatlO.n .to t e COU?ty attorney, navm~ the' e ectlve , /)1\~ 

illformatlOn mvalid-endo sed by a cltmcal profeSSional, and then havmg the court ratlfy 
the whole process. Alth ugh erroneous factual assertions are sometimes corrected in 
subsequent hearings, in y experience the system can be and is manipulated in such a 
manner as to postpone f . , on the record judicial hearings for extended periods of time. I 
personally can relate spe ·fic examples of such abuse. 

8. The potential and act al abuses in the system, and the tacit cooperation in such abuse 
between DFS, the coun attorney's office, and the court, are common knowledge among 

AFFIDAVIT Page 2 of 3 
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, . 
all those involved. The p te~tial and actual abuses that take place in the system are a 
eo:lI llmm-topic of convers cion among DFS workers. At lei1ho~~ft h~/~~ifi~1,l.Z.1< 
recognized the problem, a d sought to address it, thus far i(i 6 :Gf,1lii" po'teb't\rl' for 
abuse of authority 'by DF and other State agency workers is present and ac knowledged by 
the individuals involved i DFS, the county attorney's office, the public defender's office, 
and the court. The poiici s and customs of the agencies involved allow for and in some 
ca.ses foster such abuses. cmal abuses are known to individuals who are engaged in the 
system, and are ignored, OSt otten because the persons involved do not know what 
avenues exist to remedy he situation. . 

9. Due to issues of conE 
for the public record. I 
places, dates, and individ 
with provisicrrs that step 

10. The non-specific na 
partially on issues of co 
nature of the process of 
are forthcoming, and the 
desire to question her fu 

entiality, I can not disclose specific names or. discuss specific cases 
prepared to disclose information regarding specific names, 

s involved if ordered to do so by the court, and/or in camera 
be taken to preserve the confidentiality of my clients. 

re of the infonnation contained in the forgoing affidavit is based 
dentially, but primarily on time constraints imposed by d'e 
hich it is a part. More specific statements regarding this situation 

iant will make herself available to the COUrt should the court 
her on these matters. 

On the 15th, day f November, 1994, before me,fib y-lilcd){ tu'Y\ , a notary public 
for the State of Montana, personally appeared Marcia Kirchner, known to me, and stated 
under oath that the matt s and things herein set forth are true to his own knowledge, and 
acknowledged to me that e executed the same, in witness wherefore I have hereunto set 
my hand and affixed my fficial seal '-le day and year in this certificate first above written. 

{SEAL} 

AFFIDAVIT 

~?/iLs;;ct;~, 
Otary Public for the 

Scate of MONTANA 
My Commission expires 
on ~(NLLc:h\! I~f L'I 9' ~ 
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February 2, 1995 

St6ta Caplttll 
Cl!lpltal Statiutl - Box 14 
Attn: Stlrmlor Jim Burnell 
Helell;:!, MT 59020 

t..xH 181l_ ... ~ . .-l _____ ~_ 
DATE... c?--b -95 _ 
! \ 5'5 ;;.ob 

.1. 

... 

Dear Senatol BUlnett; 

PUrsUMt to our telt:ptlOne call of I-ebruary 1, 1995, enclosed are articles my finance' and I wrote to the Roundup Record 
Tribune as w~ll as other articles which have appeared regarding the Department of Family Services. Following Is the 

... scenario which happened to me, my daughter and my finance'. We believe it is about time DFS was made to stand 
accountable for their actions and support your Senate Bill 206. If we can be of any further help please feel free to call us 
al{40B)323-1451, 

A verbal exchi'!nge o(.;(.:wred on May tltn between Kara, my daughter, and myself. My fiance', Karen Kowalczyk, was 
also present. We had gone out for "Mother's Day Dinner" around 3:00 p.m. After dinner and returning home. I told 
Kare we were going to finish fencing the dog kennel. Karen and I had already started the kennel, setting the posts In 

"" concrete and stringing part of the cyclone fence for the dogs. I toid Kara that beings it was for her dog, as well as 
Karen's, that she could help and with three of us working on It, it wouldn't take very long to complete It. Kara then 
proceeded to pout all the way home making for a very tense and uncomfortable atmosphere. Upon arriving at home. Kara 

... and I exchanged words because she didn't want to help with the fence. Kara went to her room, slamming the door. We 
went in to change clothes. Before we got changed, Kara tore out of the house, got in my pickup and was gone. We had 
no idea where she was headed, but figured she was headed out to Curtis Goffena's , her boyfriend, because that Is where 
she wanted to go. Karen end I went out to work on the dog kennel. Later that day, around 5:30, we got a telephone 

.. call from Vicki Fawcett. of Department of Family Services, saying Kara was up at the Sheriffs Office and had filed 8 

complaint against me alleging child abuse. We have yet to see a copy of the complaint. There was absolutely no abuse 
involved In this whole exchange. I also asked that Kara be returr)ed home so we could sit down and discuss the whole 

'" situation and that was denied by Vicki Fawcett. 

Because Kara Is (j IIIlnor (16), Department of Family Services was called. DFS called me and indicated that Kara could 
come back home after a 48 hour "cooling off' period. However, after 48 hours I was told to come up and sIgn papers to 
place Kara In foster care. I Questioned why she was not being returned home after the 48 hours and was told "because 
we feel it Is a threatenIng situation." No Investigation was ever done. To our knowledge, the Department of Family 
ServIces did not appear In District Court within 48 hours to show cause why the child had to be removed from the family 

"" home. No Investigation was ever done In our home to find out if the child was telling the truth. I went up to DFS and talked 
to Michelle Sobonya and she explained to me that it was in Kara's best interest to be placed In a foster home. 

When t questioned the choice Of foster home, I was told !<ara had requested she be placed with Betty Goffena and that 
... is where DFS was placing her. I questioned the placement of !<ara at Betty Goffena's because Betty Goftens was not a 

licensed foster care home and that Curtis Goffena, Kara's boyfriend, has a mobile home and lives on the same property 
approximately 50 yards frOm Betty's back door. I felt this was not a safe or healthy situation that Kara had expressed 

... wanting to live with Curtis, however DFS did not see anything wrong with this as this Is where Kara wanted to be. I then 
told DFS I was holding them totally responsible for my daughter. 

'" I did not admit to any of Kara's allegations of abuse. I admitted to having an argument with Kara regarding the building 
ofthe dog kennel and that we had exchanged words in this regard. But not once was there any abuse· just an exchange 
between myself and my daughter. 

... I am solf employed alH) tlave my own construction building business. I was scheduled to be out of town most of the 
summer. I did come home, however, on weekends to see my family and take care of business. I had told DFS what my 
situation was and asked that they keep Karen apprised of the situation as I would be talking to her In the evening, DFS 



-

E\greed elt th~t time to tlilt.; (llflHlgement. Karen contacted DFS on several occasions to find out If an appointment could 
be made so I could call In or if I could reach a counselor after hours as I was up in the mountains, away from a telephone 
from 7:00 a.m. untii 6:00 - 6:30 p.m. every day. I was Informed of the office hours and that I would have to call In at that 
tlme. Karen explained to DFS that this was Impossible, that I was concerned about Kara and wanted to find out how 
she was doing, but again was INf:ORMED that these were the hours and I could call collect during that time. Karen told 
them the collect call part wasn't the problem - the hours were because I was at least a 1/2 hours drive away from a 
te!, lone and could hot leave my partner on the Job by himself because of the risk factor of an accident. DFS was not 
wiii. ,g to make any concessions so I could talk to them. 

WIthin 20 days after Kara was removed from home, I have no knowledge at DFS returning to District Court to show cause 
why the separation must continue. 

Only one medlClllon meeting was ever set up for me and my daughter. Present at that meeting were Michelle Sobonya, 
social worker for DFS, Curtis, Kara's boyfriend, Kara and myself. This meeting was supposed to be between only myself, 
Kara and Michelle so we could work on getting Kara back In the family home. Having Kurt there made the meeting very 
uncomfortable. Some 10 to 15 minutes Into the meeting Michelle Sobonya was called away on an "emergency", Kara, 
CurtiS and I were left 10 finish the meeting on our own. ii I was such a threat to my daughter, why was II okay to leave us 
alone In an unsupervised Situation? No attempt was made to set up further meetings between my daughter and I. 

Michelle signed I;ln agreemenl, on benalr Of DFS saying that we would be informed of any medical or dental attention Kara 
needed and it was "by chance" that we found out she had her wisdom teeth olA We were never even informed of that 
fact that she needed this work done. Kara was at her Grandfather's house and Karen happened to slop In to talk to my 
sister who was visiting from MinneapOlis. Kare had gone to change some gauze In her mouth. Karen asked Kara what 
was wrong and Kara told her about her oral surgery. We were ~ contacted by DFS about the dental work Kara had 
dene. She also later found out that Kara had a mole removed and there were some telltale signs of possible cancer so 
SI"H~ had to go back for more tests. We were never told about this either. We found out about it through one of Kara's 
teachers In whom she had confided. 

In July, Kar"d was aI/owed to tak.e a trip out of state with the approval of DFS. We were never told about the trip and found 
out about It only after someone asked If Kara had gotten back from Idaho. Again DFS had signed an agreement stating 
we would be kept Informed of what was going on and yet she went to Idaho without our knowledge. 

I hl;ld also aSKed for pel10dIc progress reports on meetings Kara was having with Donna Johnson, a counselor, over in 
Billings. This was never done. I were told she was gOing. but was never told of the outcome or when we might be able 
to meet as a family unit so as to resolve any Issues that may be present. 

In ".'<,. J~t I was ~,~:-'ved with a "Petition for Temporary Investigative Authority and Protective Services". This Is the first 
dc~ument through this whole ordeal I had ever seen regarding the charges which were being held against me. Due to 
the lack of communication on behalf of DFS, I refused to sign the documents and hired an attorney, :zandy Spaulding. 
I decided to try and settle this without the help of DFS. Vicki Knudsen, Musselshell/Golden Valley County Attorney, Floyd 

Brower, Guardian at lile~, for Kara, our attorney Randy Spaulding, mYSelf and my fiance' Karen Kowalczyk, met and 
reviewed a document drafted by Floyd Brower to keep Kara at the Goffena RanCh. I again questioned tho fact of Kara 
living with her boyfriend with Floyd Brower admitting that Kara and CurtiS were in fact sleeping together. Kare bGlng 16 
years old and her boyfriend being 21. Floyd Brower and Vicki Knudsen didn't seem concerned even though I was 
objecting to my daughter being out there. I Signed the document as I was threatehed to be taken to court and It was In 
Kara's best Interest that I signed It. 

Thlng3 sMmed to go along fine until Kara and ner boyfriend CurtiS Goffena split up. On October 28th, Kara asked Bette 
Goffena If she could spend that Friday night In town with one of her friends. To tt)ls Bette agreed. Evldentally, Bette 
didn't give Kara a speclftc time to return hOme and began to worry about her. On Saturday, October 29th, Bette sent Kurt, 
now the ex-boyfriend, In to town to find Kara. Evldentally KIJrt said some nasty things to Kara and an argument ensued. 
The local police were called and things were broke up. Later Vicki KnUdsen picked !\.ara up and took her to the Jail. Kara 
was taken inlo custody and Kurt was aI/OWed to leave. Accortilng to Kara and in front of Kara's friends, Vicki SNore at 
her and told her how inconvenient It was to be CIlIlAri ;:,s ShA W::lS in thA mirlr1IA fif fill'inn ~ hfilp in hAr rl!'llll1htAI'C v.'::>tor""'~ 
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and because she had to take Kaf'S to Billings, she would miss her daughter's ball game and look !<ara to the Jail where 
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she sat tOI tlJ)proxlmately four l"lOurs. Kare was taken to Billings and placed In a Youth Detention Center. I was never 
informed about her being sent to the facility, or being held in Jail, and It was not until my sister-in-law called the following 
day, October 30th, did we find out that she was over there. I still, to this date, do not know what charges were placed 
against her to'Warrant her time at the detention center. I was never told when she would be allowed to leave. I told my 
attorney, who contacted Vicki, Donna and Floyd that I wanted Kara to come back home rather than being locked up In 
the center. I was never told what the rules as far as telephoning and Visiting with Kara while at the facility. Kara finally 
found out the ohly people who could call her were myself, my father and his new wife, and her mother. Kara Indicated 
she needed some clothes, shoes and miscellaneous personal Items. We asKed her If she was permitted to leave the 
facility and she said yes but It had to be arranged 24 hours In advance. 

On November 2nd I contacted Donna Marmon, County Probat/on Officer, requesting to take Kara out of the facility to get 
her the clothing items she needed. Donna Indicated she would have to talk with Floyd Brower, Guardian at Litem for his 
approval. I had not heard from her by Friday, November 4, and our 24 hours was drawing to a closs. I tried to reach 
Donna at home but only got her answering machine so left a message seeking permission. Because of the 24 hour 
window, I calleo Floyd Brower myself. Floyd said Donna Marmon bad oot contacted him but as far as he was concerned 
he didn't have a problem with my taking Kara shopping. Donna Marmon then called back and said she would Ml gtve 
me permission to take her out of the facility, but would not offer an explanation as to Why. 

On November 12th, Kala called hOme and talked to Karen as I was helping at a Rotary Auction. Kara Indicated that "a 
friend of my mom's" was taking her on Sunday and she needed some money. She said Donna Marmon was coming to 
Billings to take Kara to the Girls Basketball Tournament and would she get hold of her and send some money over with 
her. Karen called Donna Marmon at home and tried to explain the situation, however was met with a very rude and 
belligerent 'You don't have telephone privileges and I won't talk to you" from Donna Marmon. Donna then slammed the 
receNer down. Karen tried to call her back within a few minutes to see what the problem was and only got her answering 
machine. 

K8r~ was finally released on '1 uesday, November 15th. Even though I had told my attorney, Vicki Knudsen and Donna 
Marmon, I wanted Kara to come back to the family home, Kara was told that was not an option for her. Her options were 
to either go live with the mother who abandoned her at age 11 or go to another youth detention facility. Not wanting to 
go to another facillty, Kara agreed to go live with her mother in Boise, Idaho. Brenda Lekse, had to pIck Kara up at the 
Youth Facility and bring her to Roundup. Donna and Vicki would not let Kare even stay In town overnight. She had to 
be driven back to Billings and then come back on Wednesday for a meeting with Donna. Brenda was Included In the 
meeting with Donna Marmon, however, I was not. Kara claims that Donna wrote some additional stipulations Into the 
Petltlon after everyone else had signed, however, we have been unable to get a copy of this document to find out If In fact 
Donna did write things In there. Kara claims Donna and Vicki told her she could not come back to Roundup to even visit 
with her family u~jl Spring break and she could not come back to live In Roundup until after she reached 18. She cannot 
graduate with her class In the spring of 95, nor can she even attend the graduation exercises of her classmates because 
of this stipulation. 

On October 318(, Karen calleo the Department of Family Services and spoke with the secretary. She requested 
names and telephone numbers of supervisors over DFS in Roundup and was given these. She then called Hank Hudson, 
the State Director at Helena and explained what I had been through. Mr. Hudson said he WOUldn't get Involved until "all 
other people had been contacted" and I should follow the chain of command. Mr. Hudson informed Karen that she should 
contact Jim Moe In the LeWistown office and have him Investigate the matter and If all else failed to call him back. 

November 1,1994 - Karen spoKe with Jim MOe's receptionist. Jim was In Harlowton but she would give him the 
message. She arso Indicated he was scheduled to come to Roundup tile following week. 

Novembor 3rd " Karen slJoke With Jim Moe and explained the situation with Kara. Gave Jim names and 
telephone numbers of people to talk to. He Indicated he would like to meet with us with November 10lh or 15th. He said 
he would investigate the m::lItAr ~nri 1"1 ... 1 h",,,\.- I" .. ~ • ___ •.. - ,e. 

... 



• . _ ... _ ... _ ......... vu .. " 1Ivvru ""'1:1 IV 1II\jt:ll wnn US Wltn November 10th or 15th. He said 
he would investigate the matter and get back to us to set up the meeting. 

Novernbe, 7lh • TalKed to Jim Moe. He wilt meet with us at 3:00 on Thursday November 10th at our home. I 
called Randy Spaulding, my attorney to ask him to attend the meeting also. Jim took down all the Information and said 
he would investigate the matter and get back to us. 
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£XHIBIT __ I __ _ 
DATE.. c2 -b -95 _ 
bi ~ 5"5 dPh 

Dec6rnl.H;lI 5th - Calleo Jim Moe regarding status of case. He was on another call but would be given the 
message. 

Decembtil 6tft - Talked with Jim Moe. He Indicated no major thing was done wrong. He felt the case had been 
handled properly, however It should have been handled as a "Child in Need of Supervision" vs. "Child In Need of Care". 

Jan. to, 1995 - Wrote a lengthy letter to the editor. It was published on January 11 tho Consensus of people In 
town was case was handled very Improperly and have heard numerous other horror stories along the same lines. (See 
attached copy of article). . 

Sf HI 1;1 lor, hope this helps SUP/JOr1 your bill. Wish we could be their In person to testify on your behalf. Even though this 
bill will not help us a whole lot, if we can prevent other families from living through the nightmare we have this last year, 
we will have accomplished something. 

Wf:;J I;ll~o heard that DFS Is asking tor an additional $8 million to finance their department. Until they are held accountable 
and can justify the $8 million right up front, we vote that their request be denied. 

Thank you very much for keeping Us Informed. Please put us on your mailing list so we can keep abreast of what Is going 
on with DFS. We are on your side. 

Sincerely, ~ 

=_ ?fJ~ 
Koren Kowalc£lk. 
P. 0, Box 373 
Roundup, MT 59072 
10-40(}"323-1451 



'::.IL _. __________ .. -
.,~,. tv II", r¥",lly home aM Won: IOld II DFS~alled.nd8sWlfwowould 
'c' w., 0 "llIrcalenin~" environment. \Iring all of KIlrA'1 penoonall!~"'$ ur 

uu .. to Ihe Editor 
After .llending '. nI~tln~ la~1 

month with Ihe lupk orwhnt w~,lhc 
community, CiUI d,) fllr our e"il<lrcn 
we feh il wa~ aur <luly II' wrile 1hi~ 
''''I~r and leI [lCo(>!e knoll; whnl I, 
~olllli nn in lair ~ommurlit)l in fcrcr. 
cm:e W IIUt chlld[",! Ilnd Ihe woy 
famlhcs Ill\! b¢lng Ircsle<l. These arc 

,Ihc fDCli, .I(ln~ whh An "'rll\j1~on, 
,,,,, 10 the Ih~lllion which hop!\CIl<!\l in 

OUt (,,,,ily ""rting l!ill M~y. 
..... C1', Tctnaa<nln thlt COOl­

nlunlty ha~t n'(1rc 1'l~I'h Ihall tht 
,,,uelll!. 

An e~chllns~ In May ,)(;currod 
tx.1 ween nl) 'I""ghter I>Ild lover [c. 

~pomlloihlies .he h~<lllj;lW<llo rel.l. 
Irt¥ 10 her dOlt und hcll'ln~ with I,uill!­
In~ .1.1"8 lcnll~1. Aller 1\1, ~xchan~e 
uf ':'Otdi, Illy d"ughlcr woOl up to the 
poll<;e stullOIl and tilc,l. complaint 
Dlleglllg vcrl>ul ahu,"<,. Kara I •• mi­
OOC. Iherefo,l). Ihe Duparlmenl of 
I;;unily Swvil:e, (Of'S) wu "Idled 
~I'S cwled my fin.ncc' .nd m~ lind 
mrarmcdu,or,l",chnrgc •. Wca'~eJ 
Kara tx: I'\llurnod t,) Ihe family home. 
n'~1 Ihe di"'u~~ion Wa. jll.1 tllbt ~"~ 
nQ(hlng moro-IiO Ihre.ls. Iwhol Ot 

I'"y,ical .""be or anylhin&-J".t on 
IlCgu"'~nl. H""CVCJ'.lhcderilIunC~1 
felt a ~g hour "c<x>linG off' period 
wlI5ln onkr-Io thl. ,*c ,,_reed 

~'ACTI Af'ler 48 hours Mild NO 
i1I.tsllx~lIon, yOur chlld(rclI) Un 
I,..plllccd I" M nOll·r~k'r rare hom~. 

Artcrthc"cu,.l,nll off' pe(iud. we 
wcrc told we h.IJ lucul1lC up .11(1 ,ign 
pap • .:" tl) PUI Kw. ill fu"~r cur< W. 

n,d""lcenvlroftlllenl wasNBVEK to I"" l,nke. To Ihi. we asrccJ 
inv<>I;gaLM, therefore. how could It M\cr Iron'ronills .11 he~ clotJlln~. 
be <ktesmincd il WM a "thre<ltonln¥" male-up, etc. we wom Ihcn ••• ed to! 
envlronmenl? '\I~h item. A •• d.ytx:d, ",Iopt,,)ne, 

FACl', Aehnd,,*n~u"lw""l t":ovl.lon. hOlle. "ll\nl', elc. Had I 
born< tlK~ wish 1.0 be pl~ In. mll pUI nlY foot down _nJ .tuncd 

KlII'a had tllked about DlQving 11\ .. ylill! "NO" I fyqlth.y would ha~o 
wlthhcrhoyrriend.CurtisOoffcl\a.b ahno$t emptied my Ql1lirc home. 
couple of wt'\'ks before Ihb Incident .·ACT, It 10ur cbUd(rto) new 
loo\; place Being only 16, we lold n~lc..l.tt.ntlon while In Ih~ Ute 
htr we wero very much as.ln.t it. or OF'S, yuu 10m Dol l>e wid .boul 
Howo\'cr,lhe reque~l«Ilo tx: pli!"«l It. 
In Iklty GoITen.'s hOIll¢ .nd wat KIIr~ had daClIlr\ MppoinlmCnl> 
gra"tt:d her IC<WeJI by DPS. lwS Knd her wl.dum I..,th l'ulle<l whilo 
W~ nul al All cOllCerned about 'ho ~hc WWI in Iho care of Drs jlnd even 
fact Curtis livoo In I mobile h()m~ on thaugl.thc), hnd slgooJ an IIgrcc/lIcnl 
the umo ",ruperty as lIeUy. Even ;t"ling I would be inforlll<ll1 "f uny 
.nerw~upresscdourconcetns.bt.ul and dll medical all~nlion.he wa~ 10 
,h. ';luatlOQ Knd told 1I"",n of the rc~ei ve !fC.O"';! oul nbout everything 
CODvc,.~tion we h&d rcl.tive 10 her "through tlte I'rapcvln¢." 
moving in lI;ilh Curtla. 11..)' stiU It, FACT: DFS~AnJ1V6)'outchlld 
her rcnUlI" (here. W~ wcre Il5sureJ, pcrnlL~lun to So oul "t .wte wllh. 
Ihfit h long liS II..-Iwo ortMm were out your knowltd~c or aPPl'\lt .. I, 
ul BClly\ hou~e. nOlhlng wos B~ln¥ Kar4, wilh :~,~ permis.ion ofDFS, 
on. Howevcr, we were Qhl1lold Ihat Wa!> allowed 10 laW a trip to B()is~, 
~hc ,penl"lIlMny lalo nlllhlJ" wi,l. h~r Id~hl1. 1 wu 1\01 .wure oflhL~ unlil 0 

boy(rl~nJ. Wo were rocenlly lold family member m~t.lionod she 1",,1 
1M! ifDFS h~d che<::k<'J Ihe SliU8\ivn Kvne. I woul~ have nppmved it Dny· 
ovt.~O%~lrKAra·U(UrrWlUaICurti&' way lIS lhe ,*c,1l1<> Vi5il her Jl\Oth~r, 
~Ol Deuy'$. bul $h\'luldn'( I hay~ t>c:en consult"d 

FA<'''T: EvtflthDutlhD."Sclalnu fjrsl or bt l~il.Sl ~il lold she wa~ 
10 bt a ml-dlator betWefh I'llmlly SClIo,¥, after all U'At wos tho "IFee-
memhet'll, nothl". wiU be done 10 mtlll wi Ill. DFS1 
teunllt ,he family. FACTI The Coullty Atlorney, 

Wo were ,ul\llhlt DFS would Jet \'kkl Knu~il.od Youth I'roba. 
up meelings belwC<!q ulllnd iCa" 00 lion Om ... ",r, Ool1n$ Mllnnon. Cllli 

we could onC<) aK"in be a f!\nlil)'. In ~"d your child to a \' outl. Oftel1-
,I,e Ihree montiu DFS II;lIl> illyolvcJ. lion F.~lIity and 'lot)' do nDllu,Yr 
there w~s only one meeting ~el ut>. tu leU you abolllit. 
1be mwh1llwhich should nsvoh¢en Kl\l.wWiSCJlI(QlheBilling, Youlh 
bclw-:cn in\lncdi~te family memtx:l'i, Service F~oilil)' on S~llInL)'. O~I'''' 
Ui well QS Michelle Sobon)'. (rom I>cr29.aftor~"hlicrcati'''I'''''ilhCunj;. 
I)FS. al,o included Curtis. Aboul Wo were NEVER culled ~'IJ lold 
JO'I~ minul4'~ inlo Ihe meellt'8. nooul Ihi~ deci,leon bud found <)<11 
Mic~lI~ SOboll)'~ WIU called owny ahOul ituflCr81~kphonecali from a 
on "on cmerjency" a~tI my (!au8hl~r famlly tnember. When we ashJ 
0,11 were leflthere to Ill<'Jillle on KllfHwhysl""llidn'tcl\lII1~,sheindi. 
(1", o .. n. liven thlJ1,l~h I roq""~letl c.led Ihey laid her ~he could,,'i ~ull. 

, addilional moctings ti)L), w~ren()l ~t Huwcwr, $he ('ould c~1I her GI end. 
up. f~lhC( or In(lther ramil~ IIl~mber ano 

"ACT: If you are working hU.n lell II.,,",. Nonn~lI)' u child hcing 
oul orthe way plllCeand art unablt itot 10 0 Ya~lh S~rvices F~~ilily has 
to tlIslly C~I IQ Il telephone, DFS 10 be eh.rj(OO with "'me sort of yl(1-
wUI lOut make cvn""""loll$ .5 to 1~lion. H()wCl'er, '0 ,hl~. we have 
"moe hauNt, never been laid ~~u,tly what that 

I ".s buildinsacubin Inlhe moun· violiltion was:·lturlls Oofi'enn w~\ 
,&in. &11<1 was apI'>r",imalcly 3(>.45 never rcl'rim~~cd ~ven thoug!., .c-
minLrh!~ llJ)l.,· way rrOltl it l\!lr:ptwnc. l'ordilll' to w1'd~:'~~, ht: ~1~lrlc"''(l tht: 

Wo lried to ~~t DFS to leo! up ~~. whole .llCrti"i~~ UPQn the CounlY 
evening lind I,me 1 could c&llin And· Attorney, ylc~l Knu~Ofln: peing 
got periodic III>Jutes on the statUi of ,.1Ied. K.n., in frOllI or witneiSC~, 
bcingn;unilodwlthmydauihter.only I'll> ,warp al unu told how incanvc· 
t" I>c lo!J thot Ihe office hour~ were nicni il "'u" fqr Mr~_ Kr.ud.on 10 
M:lX) '.r.1. 10 ~;()() p.m. ~nd I would COrne dow'l !>Xuusc I'~r tl~ughl"r 
hlivelo~etlootderhonci!!thililimo. had. h(.le in her wutcr!J"d which 

FACT: E'en Ihou.b you ro· ,,=led rL'(ln~ lind she w~s uho got.li 
Quest i sjlednc pt"'OQ as Ii Contacl 10 II1I.S her .;!''"ihtCr'j, b.1I g!lIIC. 
P~~Wl, DF'S WILL NOT hO~Qr Whell A pef1iOl\ file. (or. cOonty Job 
you I' requesl. .nd the ,'OUllty il payit'8lhcir II;USCS, 

Il~UU!C I w~s "'Clrk.illg III the since wh~n did apcrlon h.ve lu ,on· 
mounl.ln> lnd aw.), (rom D Ide- .i.kr what r.mily prublem. II;cre 
phon.:, llUkod LWS 10 keep my n. ~ol~son lind whclh.rarnot '" .onyc-
.~'. K~r.n KOII;~lczyk. Informed nicnl for 'htm to du Iheir job? 1Jc. 
ofK"'"·ipreo~rcilandan)'nceds".. 114o,. it WUi tl\~ Kllr~" co(.ke 10 
II'UY have. DPS wa •• Iway~ ~UC!t- h,<ve Vidi Knudson ,.lIed. $Ome. 
ill~ thing. ot Klren.1. a.letling Klr. one else made t"~1 ue~llloll for her. 
('ome iet her per.onnl II<:longin&s, w wh)' Wll> Vicki lAking this \'luI un 
It~=. elL. put w(,ultl not tell her her'1 h I"~rt u pct$On.lily Cilnnict 
wh.: "'.1 soln¥ on II;lth the e~. It Ioorc, or IhllulJ this penoll c~en have 
wus nOi unlil we rcfu&cd to 5ign fUf' been "'I',ebcntins the oout1ly? 
t"crt"JPCrsLO"'0ntinuQlheraSlC"~re l"ACT: The Count)' Attorn.y 
.nd iWI.u D.kln~ quc~t1ons lIB tho and Y .. uth Prob~\iOI1 ONk", (~n 
I.ck ot conlllluni~ilion (.n their part, "diclale" wh" <your child can ace 
Were we t,)ld there WIUi • "specill 8"" t.olk 10 OtlCF Ihey are I'IMctd al 
form" wnich ne.:tled to be 5igned III • YOtlti, C..orrrction hclilly. 
0;0(( fo, I)1'S to slve her this inlol· I WitS told the only I~"ple w),o 
msul111 bcciut~ .he wa$ noll "Jesol ~ould,;all Ktlfu'!"cfchcrG(tI.Ildr.lhcr 
f.m;,) ol<!mber." 'I' 'r . ( I an .. IIIW. e.my?1 ,ond lerMOlhcr. 

r· ... CT: OnIT yO~r chlld(rcl1) bcn 'hrouj(h Kaf> a.}<l K"rCll ~Ol 
arc pl.n-d I .. r06tn ,~I't'. DF'S con al')"8 rClIlly w~l\, KlIrcn 11;., defiled , 

vlherwise. I fC(jue~lcd a fvur hllur 
ollth,¥ with Kar, 10 i(l ~hopping and 
oul fordlnner.~ it wu K~,en'l birth­
day and Kill" needod ion.e clolhe. 
and I'<~onul ilclTli I ",,118 told t 
needed 10 Ill~~t IlrnngcIllcnl. 24 
. \}l,,,, in nuv.nee. 5.) 1111 WedllCtidkY. 
:,u,,,:nber 2.1 c.II .... 1'>onna MiJ.lIon 
to"~ if ,he ,"oul<l make Ih~ ~rrRnge­
lI\"nl •. I WIIS tvlJ .he would con'vll 
with Floyd lJ((Iw~r. Ihe ~,,"'di~n ud 
li!em fur Kan. ~nd get blld I" "'c. I 
h .. l no! hCi1rd b;l4,k (rom [)ullon 
Marmon un Frldd)' ~mJ wus unahk tIl 
rc..-h hcr by i>h(ln~ '" u JII~SiJjSC wus 
kflllh ht:flln.werllll! ,l •• ,hinc. Ilhcn 
"lied Floyd Ilrewer. lie I"dkllieu 
Ihllt [lonNl Mllfmutl hlld MI ~Oll­
WICJ him bul ... ~ fAr as he WIl! con· 
ccrnoo. wc {:OUI..Dj!o.hnpping wlth 
Kar" on SUOld.y. When o.ln~ fi­
nally relurned my IclcphoneCllll, ~he 
told me I COULD NOr wkc my 
d.u~hwr oul oflho f.cil;ly. I Wd."ol 
Kivcn a rCa:l(l" ~s 10 Ihl. tlc,i,ion. 
Ho"'c~cr. the followlni Sunday •• 
"rriend" ofKar~' I molher (COt a fam­
Ily Il1rmber) W3.' al]owoo to take her 
(luI ~hoppjng for four bou,." 

FA (;'1', Enn lhough )'uur 
child(reu) b plaero In" Youlh F.,. 
dllty and ),0<1 tell the Crt" nly At­
loruey, Probatl~n Oflktr ilnd 
GuardIan Ad Lltcm t".lyolI would 
like them bad home, your child 
'01'111 !lot he Blnn till" 0pllon. 

Kuru wa~ IUlhe YouthF.,.lil)' for 
sevet.1 duys wilhou! hdng laid when 
sh~ would !xl ~blc to Icayo. In Ihe 
meantime. her homework Wi! bcln¥ 
h''',,~ht over 10 h~r so .ho w(.uld not 
gel bchinLion her a""l_nments. WI~n 
Ih" County Auorney and Proballon 
Officer lulked la her, Ihe only op: 
tilms she wa$ siven I~ ,)rdcr to 1(!II~c 
Wil" Iv ~o liv~' wilh tu:r Oll)(hcr ;n 

f1o)'C, .l4ttJo.·or ~~.qv~ \q ~. 
olhcrcO/1Ut[oo facility. Tho opllon 
of ,oming b:..:k 10 Ihe f.mlly homo, 
eyen Ihough thCI'¢ would t~ 24 hour 
5llpcrvliiufl, wn~ nolliln opti~u, 

1'",1",lion orr.~~r Donn:1 M.rmon. 
CI\ur.l)' AIt('rncy Vicki Knu<'!wn Anll 
FI('yJ IJwwcr dc~ided K.r" was "A 
L'hild Illllecd of S~I',;rviliotl." After 
dlllh .. ,illl<l. ~i~ month, to I>c ex~Cl. 
thc;c Ihr~c "wh~" pc " .. ,Ie h",·~ come 
10. ~onclu,I('n. 1sr.·1 It "m",il\~'11 
Th;, ;, nue,ly "'hill KIIJ~ [Cl>cllc~ 
,¥uin't (""0 Ihe I..:ainnln&. Kuru 
ha(\ M'pcrvhio" 111 hOI lie ~nd ,llC 
d<dn'llilc it. She "'anted 01011: rree­
d,)." ,lnd I", $1l(lCrvJ."illn. The ci/'lle 
ib now (1)lI1pklC. K«flt has ht:tn ~ent 
II) live out {If &talO with ru~ .nd 
~uiJelinc< >el (1Y Ihccourl. The Ihr¢e 
"wl~e" people h~~e r~ach¢1I i C<ln· 
dusion .I\<l ... e.lh~ fOll1lily.h.". been 
put th.rough ~ndo haHbhip und pain. 

Que>1 ion, rCll,~inin8 unl"lwer~.d 
by Ihe ",Ilfc, wi.e pO<'I'Ic" ure' 

-Wore Ih.:.ac Ih.rc:c "wl~~" pcvpk 
wor~ins t ... ,,<lhcr? 11"0, why wCl\:n't 
11;0 able to gCllhc lAme ~IUWCIi frolll 
.11 thx.: in.tc.d ur being I",nded lhe 
rUh .tIroonJ? 

-D.d Idcphu,,~ c • .lls .... "'ully 
tukc pl.,ce kl ... ~en tl~ \1,,« "wl><)" , . 

inilin ROllntlup7 ., 
-Old Ihc I'wba"o" officer or 

county ~nomey have a PCIliOn.aJ con· 
1l1l:1 with K..,..7 

-Why weren'l the parc.ntJ al. 
lowed 10 Mlp ~Ide whAt lOU beil ., 
for II", .hlld? 

-Why dldo'llhe counl~ invtili· 
I:.,telh( Ii-In, &rTu,,&cll'IentJ.nd won. 
~dl."ult. ofl>otlt parcnLJ alld make 4 
dc:dslClO t....cd on fOCI., hul hCl&I~ay. ., 

-Did tho I:WnI)' actually wo- Iiiii­
~I<lcr wtu.t Wlli bell for the minor 
child (l( uit.! somCOl'lC who is in a 
I"~ition with • lillie authO(lty, Ict 
thaI alllhOlity go tv Lhelr helld .t.nd 
ul'poinl 11u:",~clve.; IlS Ihe dc:ciaion .. 
",u~c~7 

-W'fJl il hl the chi I"', I'>e>t inlCf-
cst I" u"root hN frol11 a oommunil~ 
she lived In uoo Iovelf. t.ke hu away 
fnlllJ friClld.$ and U Khooli.he looked ... 
forwllt.J to grnduatln, from 10 1M 
'[>ring, I~ woll AI the lecurity of I 
,u(lCrvb~1l hNllc, Imlll«lillC famll~' 
nnd close friendllnd place hoI' III ~ 
home of Ihe 11101her who h.d I~n- .. 
don~u her Dnl~ 7 yw~ oJl'Iie:1 

M: :'",nu', K~~. and I w();.Jid 
lih to ,h.nk e v!I(),ot\¢ for their words 
of conc~n while we hlIvc tx:Cll deal· 
In~ with Uti" Wc hav(l Ilothlnil I<l .. 
gal~ from wrlllQi Ihla Ie!ler other 
than 10 nlakc people aWIIfl: oI'wIul 1$ 
solni on In our community and with 
ou: chlllln;n ar.d ~ibl)' proV(ntini 
others (({1m httvinJ 10 ~ thsough 1M • 
~mc. We hav611ved Ibtoulh ,101 of 
hellIt~dlo and Icruo IlmCli due 10 ~ 
Deparlment of Fllmily Service, the 
C~un\y Prabl!lon OHicer. DohDl 
MllTTn<)I'. the CoullIy Atlomey.VicU • 
Knvdlon. and Attorney, Floyd 
Drower. We hope Ihil iorncday they 
Will h~y~ \0 .~1l4\1r; t~t~~ ~ ?f 
I ... ·wI "d,,·. ~trc, .. nJ ~urnlllulion lhey 
j~Y'C put 111 Ihro~¥h< \~b<I ~_ 
l1loy un be IlItLjtll\Ofec;ompw!oQ· 

; lIIe and ullllc"tandiOIl\l1Wardl their 
(ollow clllzen~. 

larry Lek~ 
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William V. Fowler, pro se 
3700 South Russell, Suite B-f01 
Missoula, Montana 59801 
(406)728-4334 

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
FOR THE DISTRICT OF MONTANA 

) 
WILLIAM V. FOWLER, ) 

) 
Plaintiff, ) 

- .. _ ........ ,--..c....--

) 
v. ) 

) 
Civil Action No. C V q 6' - I - M - eeL 

THE STATE OF rvl0NTANA, ) 
) COMPLAINT 

JOSEPH MAZURIK, Attorney ) 
) 

General for the State of Montana, ) 
) 

DEPARTMENT OF FAMILY ) 
) 

SERVICES, MISSOULA COUNTY, ) 
) 

Defendants. ) 

42 u.s.c. 1983 VIOLATION OF CIVIL RIGHTS 
lJNDER COLOR OF STATE LAW (M.C.A. §§41-3-402, 41-3-403) 

Comes now the Plaintiff, and in his complaint against the defendants states as follows: 
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IURISDICTION 

I. 

This the action arises under the civil rights statutes, Title 42, United States Code, 

Section 1983; 

II. 

Jurisdiction is conferred on this Court by Title 28, United States Code, Section 1331; 

III. 

The plaintiff is a resident of Missoula, Montana which is included in the judicial district 

of Missoula, Montana in which this action is brought; 

IV. 

The plaintiff is an injured party in this matter; 

V. 

Defendant State of Montana is a member state of the United States of America. 

Defendant Joseph Mazurek is the chief law enforcement official of the State of Mo.ntana, who,.:: 

in enforcing the statute challenged herein, acted in his individual capacity. Defendant 

Department of Family Services is an agency of the state of Montana; Missoula County is a 

county in the state of Montana. 

BACKGROUND FACTS 

VI. 

On June 14, 1991, the state of Montana petitioned the Montana Fourth Judicial District 

Court for temporary investigative authority and protective services over the Planitff's children, 
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Christopher Fowler and Joh,nathan Fowler, alleging child abuse. 

3 £XHIBll f 

DATE d). - b - q -5 .. 

.1 L- 5 B if 0 4z r 

Temporary investigative 

authority was granted to the Montana Department of Family Services (hereinafter DFS), and 

a hearing to show cause why said authority should not continue was scheduled. 

VII. 

~n the more than 42 months since the state court assumed "tempora;"" investigative 

authority the Plaintiff has never been afforded a hearing in which to challenge the allegations 

in the affidavit of probable cause that began the proceeding in state district court. All parties 

in the Plaintiff's case reached an oral agreement to postpone the show cause hearing until a 

psychological evaluation of Mr. Fowler could be made. It was agreed by the parties that the 

evaluation could be completed within approximately 30 days. At a hearing on June 24, 1991, 

Leslie Halligan, representing DFS, described the agreement as "somewhat of a stipulation." 

/(6/24/91 Tr. at 3, transcript exerpts attached, EXHIBIT 'A'lehe court ordered any agreement 

to be reduced to writing an entered in the record. No such stipulation to waive or postpone 

a probable cause hearing was ever entered in the record. Nevertheless, no probable cause.::-

hearing has yet been held. 

VIII. 

~ The Plaintiff has never been afforded any type of adjudicatory hearing in which to 

challenge the mass of hearsay allegations on which the state has relied in continuing its 

'temporary' authority. The court has never made any findings of fact or conclusions of law 

relative to the underlying accusations levelled against the Plaintiff. Most importantly, the state 

has restrained the Plaintiff from having any contact with his sons in the mu since it assumed 

its "temporary" authority. 

/ 
COMPLAINT -3-



(' 

IX. 

~. DFS, the state court, and the Missoula County attorney have asserted that under state 

law, specifically under §§41-3-402 and 41-3-203 M.C.A., they can remove children from their 

parents until they reach the age of majority. The full text of M.C.A. §§ 41-3-401 through 41-3-

404 are attached as EXHIBIT 'B'. The state further asserts that the only due process to which 

a parent is entitled after a child is removed from their custody is a show cause hearing at 

which the state has the de minimus burden of establishing probable cause to do an 

~ In the Plaintiff's case, the court contends that the Plaintiff inadvertently waived 

even this degree of due process. 

X. 

According to the state, depriving the Plaintiff of all contact with his sons has been 

continued under "temporary investigative authority and protective services." Judge Douglas 

G. Harkin's Memorandum and Order,! Cause No. ]-2689, In the Matter of Declarin~._ 

Christopher Fowler and Ionathan Fowler Youths in Need of Care, at 4 (attached, EXHIBIT 

'C' , hereinafter referred to as Harkin Order). Apparently, a forty-two month period of 

deprivation of citizens' children qualifies as being a "temporary" measure under the youth in 

need of care statutes according to the defendants. 

XI. 

It should be pointed out that Judge Harkins order is not supported by any 
findings of fact, since no fact finding process has ever ocurred in the Plaintiff's state court 
case. 

COMPLAINT -4-
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/' The state contends tha,t a showing of probable cause is all that is necessary _ while they 

are acting under their "temporary" (i.e., indefinite) authority: "A review of the case law 

interpreting Title 41, Chapter 3, Part 4 reveals that a show cause hearing is the only hearing 

required when a petit~on for temporary investigative authority is filed. " [citations omitted] 

~-
(.Harkin Order at 5). 

XII. 

/'/~ 
// The state contends that "the legislature never intended to consolidate a petition to have 

youths declared in need of care (41-3-401, M.C.A.) and a petition for temporary investigative 

authority (41-3-402, M.C.A.)," (.Harkin Order at 5), despite that fact that all of the sections in 

Part Four of Chapter Three, Title 41 M. C.A. are interelated, and cover abuse, neglect, and 

dependency proceedings. 

XIII. 

Although cases initiated under the temporary investigative authority Statute (§41-3-402) 

are characterized as "Youth in Need Of Care" proceedings the s~e denies that it is constrained 
- ---------------

by Youth in Need of Care Satutes. Reasoning that it acted under § 41-3-402 rather than §41-3-
_ " 1 

• -j-----U .' ~ • /L ~ ~ " ... /~ "'2/ 

401, the cG-UUdei1ied the requirements of a statutory adjudicatory hearing mandated by §41-3-

401: 
~--

/' 

§41-3-401. Abuse, neglect, and dependency petitions ..... (2) Upon receipt of 
a petition, the court shall set a date for an adjudicatory hearing on the petition. 

COMPLAINT -5-
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XVI. 

The state's purpose in asserting authority under the section of the code that makes no 

reference to procedure (§41-3-402) is to absolve it of the need to afford parents any degree of 

due process: "The State has never filed a petition pursuant to §41-3-401, M.C.A. which would 

necessitate that this court set a date for an adjudicatory hearing. There has never been an 

attempt by DFS to permanently remove the children from the custody of Mr. Fowler. There 

has only been a petition for temporary investigative authority" (Harkin Order at 5,6). The 

state's strategy in circumventing due process requirements is to define any length of time (for 

example, over 42 months in the Plaintiff's case) as "temporary" rather than "permanent." 

xv. 

The state contends that its authorization to provide immediate protective services gives 

it the authority to effect a de [acto termination of parental rights without the ~eed of any._ 

adjudication: "The District Court has acted at all times pursuant to §41-3-403, M.C.A. This 

statute gives the Court the authority to provide immediate protective services, and it also 

authorizes the District Court to use broad power to make continuing arrangements for the 

children's protection." (Harkin Order at 6). 

XVI. 

The state asserts that it may act indefinitely under "temporary" authority granted to it 

by statue: "This Court's continued authority in this case has been pursuant to the temporary 

investigative authority statutes .... The state has never filed a petition pursuant to §41-3-401, 

COMPLAINT -6-



/---

M.C.A. which would necessitate that this Court set a date 

(E.XHIBIT J 3 • 
DAT~-b -9s • 
i I . ~ B ;)..0 b . 

for an adjudicatory heanng." 

(Harkin Order at 5). The state's strategy is clear: first, allege abuse and neglect; second, file 

for "temporary" investigative authority under §41-3-402, M.C.A. rather than file an abuse, 

neglect and dependency petition under §41-3-401, M.C.A., which mandates an adjudicatory 

hearing; third, extend the "temporary" authority for months and even years, while denying 

the necessity of an adjudicatory hearing mandated by §41-3-401, M.C.A. 

XVII. 

In a ruling on a Petition for Writ of Supervisory Control filed by the Plaintiff 

(Montana S.Ct. Order in Cause No. 94-459, attached, EXHIBIT 'D') the Montana Supreme 
c __ ---~-__ 

Court endorsed all of the conclusions regarding the implementation of the child abuse, neglect, 

and dependency statutes that were reached by the state district court. In that ruling, the 

Montana Supreme Court stated that "While this case has been pending for some time, it must 

also be noted that the allegations in the underlying proceedings involve child sexual abuse . 

. . . It also appears that the District Court is acting within its jurisdiction and is attempting _ 

to protect the best interest of the children involved." S.Ct. Order in Cause No. 94-459 at 2. 

XVIII. 

Montana justifies its implementation of the law in the Plaintiff's case based upon the 

fact that the initial "allegations . . . involve child sexual abuse," Id. The State makes no 

attempt to justify its circumvention of §41-3-401 (the abuse, neglect and dependency statute). 

Further, the state acknowledges that by circumventing §41-3-401, it need not provide parents 

with an adjudicatory hearing before removing their children for periods of up to eighteen 

years. According to the Montana Supreme Court, decisions to remove children from their 
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parents for the remainder of, the childrens' minority are based solely on the fact that child 

sexual abuse is alleged, rather than on findings of fact indicating that abuse has actually 

occurred. 

COUNT I. 

CIVIL RIGHTS VIOLATION UNDER COLOR OF STATE LAW. 

XIX. 

Under the guidance of the courts, the Montana attorney general, the DFS, and other 

officials charged with enforcement of laws governing child abuse, neglect and dependency, 

routinely and as a matter of policy, violate parents rights to due process of law. Specifically, 

under the authority of M.C.A. §§41-3-402 and 403 the defendants remove children from their 

natural parents for indefinite and prolonged periods of time, often.until the child has reached 

the age of majority, without affording parents the opportunity of a hearing at which the 

allegations against them can be fairly challenged and adjudicated. 

xx. 

Under the authority of M.C.A. §§41-3-402 and 403, the defendants boldly assert the 

authority to remove a child from its home and refuse visitation to a custodial parent (in the 

instant case for a period approaching four years) and to afford the parents nothing more than 

a hearing at which the state must establish probable cause to conduct an investigation. In the 

Plaintiff's case, even this probable cause hearing was denied. The defendants' use of this 

authority is part of their policy of law enforcement, as well as part of the customary practice 

of Missoula County, the county attorney's office, DFS, and the state courts, acting in concert 
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with each other. It is further .the custom and policy of Missoula County, the Missoula county 

attorney's office, DFS, and the public defender's office, to file false and unsubstantiated 

affidavits, or to knowingly allow false and unsubstantiated affidavits to be filed, as part of the 

scheme to remove children from their parents without due process of law. The result is a 

continuing violation of fundamental Constitutional rights which will persist until this court 

takes declaratory and injunctive action. 

XXI. 

The acts complained of by the Plaintiff violate citizens' Fifth and Fourteenth 

Amendment rights to due process of law guaranteed by the U.S. Constitution generally, and 

viohted the Plaintiff's Fifth and Fourteenth Amendment right to due process of law in 

particular. Specifically, the defendants have deprived the Plaintiff of a most fundamental, 

natural right: that of parenting and consorting with his children. Said deprivation was 

accomplished without even the most basic component of due process of law: that of notice 

and hearing at which the allegations underlying the state's claim can be adjudicated. 

XXII. 

The acts complained of were performed under color of state law, specifically §§41-3-402 

and 403 of Title 41, Chapter 3, part 4 of the Montana Code Annotated. 

XXIII. 

The Plaintiff has exhausted all remedies available to him under State law to obtain relief 

from the unconstitutional implementation of state law complained of. 

COMPLAINT -9-



DAMAGES 

XXIV. 

The acts described in paragraphs one through twenty-one have resulted in the Plainitff 

being deprived of his children for over three and one half years. There is no adequate remedy 

at law for such a loss. 

RELIEF REQUESTED 

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff requests on the first six claims for relief: 

1. That the Defendants be ordered to immediately desist in their application of the 

statutory scheme governing youths in need of care so as to deprive citizens of their right to 

a hearing prior to having their parental rights terminated or diminished; 

2. To declare §41-3-402 and §41-3-403 as interpreted by the Montana Supreme Court 

and as applied by the State of Montana through the Attorney General and the DFS to be.:-

unconstitutional due to said statutes, as applied, depriving parents of fundamental, 

constitutional rights without due process of law. 

Respectfully submitted this _--3-=-_ day of F7' 1995. 

//~~~ By: 
~ V. Fowler, p~ 
3700 South Russell, Suite B-101 
Missoula, Montana 59801 
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3 

4 
IN THE MATTER OF: 

5 
DECLARING CHRISTOPHER, 

6 FOWLER and JONATHAN FOWLER, 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

CAUSE NO. ,'J-2689 

7 Youths in Need of Care. 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

Taken at the Missoula County Courthouse 
Missoula, Montana 

Monday, June 24, 1991 

TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS 

17 Before the Honorable Douglas G. Harkin, District Judge 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 Reported by Sharon L. Gaughan, RPR, CM, Official 
Court Reporter for the Fourth Judicial District and 

24 Notary Public for the State of Montana, residing in 
Missoula, Montana. 

25 
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PAGE 2 

A P PEA RAN C E S 

LESLIE HALLIGAN, Deputy County AttorneYr 
Missoula County, Missoula County Courthouse, 
Missoula r Montana, 59802, 

appearing on behalf of the Department of 
,Family Services. 

MARG~RET BORG, Chief Public Defender r 
Missoula County, .317 Woody Streetr Missoula r 
Montana 59802 r 

appearing as guardian ad litem. 

ARTHUR AGNELLINO, Esq.r 138 West BroadwaYr 
Missoula, Montana 59802 r 
. appearing on behalf of William Fowler. 
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2 (WHEREUPON, the following proceedings were 

3 had and entered of record.) 

4 THE COURT: J-2689, Fowler. 

5 MR. AGNELLINO: Your Honor, we've entered 

6 into a stipulation. 

7 MS. HALLIGAN: Somewhat of a stipulation; 

8 there's a few little bones, and Art's client has agreed 

9 to continue the temporary investigative authority and 

10 to undergo evaluations. We have asked Phil Bornstein 

11 to do those evaluations of the father and of 

12 Christopher, and he has agreed to do those. 

13 Jonathan's mother is Kelly Ball (phon.) and 

14 she's trying to arrange for Lindsay Clodfelter to do 

IS the evaluation of Jonathan. If that doesn't work out 

16 because Lindsay's been unable to return a phone call, 

17 apparently, we would ask that Sarah Baxter be asked to 

18 do the evaluation, and if Art has a different 

19 suggestion--

:20 THE COURT: Why are we splitting up these 

21 evaluations? 

22 MS. HALLIGAN: Well, at this point, it was 

23 just because we couldn't agree on Chris. 

24 THE COURT: I can help you agree. I'm going 

25 to get two different evaluators giving me conflicting 



EXHIBIT 'B' 

M.C.A. §§ 41-3-401 through 41-3-404: 

41-3-401. Abuse, neglect, and dependency petitions. (1) The county' attorney, 
attorney general, or an attorney hired by the county welfare department or office of 
human services shall be responsible for filing all petitions alleging abuse, neglect, c­
dep.:ndency. The county attorney or attorney general, or an attorney hired by the; .::ounty 
welfare department or office of human services with the written consent of the county 
attorney or attorney general, may require all state, county, and municipal agencies, 
including law enforcement agencies, to conduct such investigations and furnish such reports 
as may be necessary. 

(2) Upon receipt of a petition, the court shall set a date for an adjudicatory hearing 
on the petition. Such petitions shall be given preference by the court in setting hearing 
dates. 

(3) A petition alleging abuse, neglect, or dependency is a civil action brought in the 
name of the state of Montana. The rules of civil procedure shall apply except as herein 
modified. Proceedings under a petition are not a bar to criminal prosecution. 

(4) The parents or parent, guardian, or other person or agency having legal custody 
of the youth named in the petition, if residing in the state, shall be served personally with 
a copy of the petition and summons at least 5 days prior to the ci.:;:e set for hearing. If such 
person or agency cannot be served personally, the person or agency may be served by 
publication in the manner provided by the Montana Rules of Civil Procedure for other 
types of proceedings. 

(5) In the event personal service cannot be made upon the parents or parent, 
guardian, or other person or agency having legal custody, the court shall appoint an 
attorney to represent the unavailable party where in the opinion of the court the interests 
of justice require. 

(6) If a parent of the child is a minor, notice shall be given to the minor parent's 
parents or guardian, and if there is no guardian the court shall appoint one. 

(7) Any person interested in any cause under this chapter has the right to appear. 
(8) Except where the proceeding is instituted or commenced at the request of the 

department of family services, a citation shall be issued and served upon a representative of 
the department prior to the court hearing. 

(9) The petition shall: 
(a) state the nature of the alleged abuse, neglect, or dependency; 
(b) state the full name, age, and address of the youth and the name and address of 

his parents or guardian or person having legal custody of the youth; 
(c) state the names, addresses, and relationship to the youth of all persons who are 

necessary parties to the action. 
(10) The petition may ask for the following relief: 
(a) temporary investigative authority and protective services; 
(b) temporary legal custody; 
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(c) termination of the parent-child legal relationship and permanent legal custody 
with the right to consent to ~doption; -

(d) any combination of the above or such other relief as may be required for the 
best interest of the youth. 

(11) The petition may be modified for different relief at any time within the 
discretion of the court. 

(12) The court may at any time on its own motion or the motion of any party 
appoint counsel for any indigent party. 

41-3-402. Petition for temporary investigative authority and protective services. 
(1) In cases where it appears that a youth is abused or neglected or is in danger of being 
abused or neglected, the county attorney, attorney general, or an attorney hired by the 
county welfare department or office of human services may file a petition for temporary 
investigative authority and protective services. 

(2) A petition for temporary investigative authority and protective services shall 
state the specific authority requested and the facts establishing probable cause that a youth 
is abused or neglected or is in danger of being abused or neglected. 

(3) The petition for temporary investigative authority and protective services shall 
be supported by an affidavit signed by the county attorney, attorney general, or an 
anorney hired by the county welfare department or office of human services or a 
department of family services report stating in detail the facts upon which the request is 
based. 

41-3-403. Order for immediate protection of youth. (1) (a) Upon the filing of a 
petition for temporary investigative authority and protective services, the court may issue 
an order granting relief that may be required for the immediate protection of the youth. < 

(b) The order, along with the petition and supporting documents, must be served by 
a peace officer or a representative of the department on the person or persons named in the 
order. When the youth is placed in a medical facility or protective facility, the department 
shall notify the parents or parent, guardian, or other person having legal custody of the 
youth, at the time the placement is made or as soon after placement as possible. 

(c) The order must require the person served to comply immediately with the terms 
of the order or to appear before the court issuing the order on the date specified and show 
cause why the person has not complied with the order. The show cause hearing must be 
conducted within 20 days of the issuance of the order by the judge or a master appointed 
by the judge. The person filing the petition has the burden of presenting evidence 
establishing probable cause for the issuance of the order. Except as otherwise provided in 
this pan, the rules of civil procedure apply. Hearsay evidence of statements made by the 
affected youth is admissible at the hearing. 

(d) Upon a failure to comply or show cause, the court may hold the person in 
contempt or place temporary legal custody of the youth with the department until further 
order. 

(2) The court may grant the following kinds of relief: 
(a) right of entry by a peace officer or department worker; 
(b) medical and psychological evaluation of the youth or parents, guardians, or 

person having legal custody; 



(c) requirement that the youth, parents, guardians, or person having legal custody 
receive counseling services; -

(d) placement of the youth in a temporary medical facility or a facility for 
protection of the youth; 

(e) requirement that the parents, guardian, or other person having custody furnish 
services that the court may designate; 

(~ inquiry into the financial ability of the parents, guardian, or other person having 
custody of the youth to contribute to the costs for the care, custody, and treatment of the 
youth and requirement of a contribution for those costs pursuant to the requirements of 
41-3-406(3) through (6); 

(g) other temporary disposition that may be required in the best interest of the 
youth that does not require an expenditure of money by the department unless the 
department is notified and a court hearing is set in a timely manner on the proposed 
expenditure. The department is the payor of last resort after all family, insurance, and other 
resources have been examined. 

41-3-404. Adjudicatory hearing -- temporary disposition. (1) In the adjudicatory 
hearing on a petition under 41-3-401, the court shall determine whether the youth is a 
youth in need of care and ascertain, as far as possible, the cause. 

(2) The court shall hear evidence regarding the residence of the youth, the 
whereabouts of the parents, guardian, or nearest adult relative, and any other matters the 
court considers relevant in determining the status of the youth. 

(3) In all civil and criminal proceedings relating to abuse, neglect, or dependency, 
none of the privileges related to the examination or treatment of the child and granted in 
Title 26, chapter 1, part 8, except the attorney-client privilege granted by 26-1-803, apply. 

(4) (a) If the court determines that the youth is not an abused, neglected, or 
dependent child, the petition shall be dismissed and any order made pursuant to 41-3-403 
shall be vacated. 

(b) If the court determines that the youth is an abused, neglected, or dependent 
child, the court shall set a date for a dispositional hearing to be conducted within 30 days 
and order any necessary or required investigations. The court may issue a temporary 
dispositional order pending the dispositional hearing. The temporary dispositional order 
may provide for any of the forms of relief listed in 41-3-403(2). 
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12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

CHRISTOPHER FOWLER and 
JONATHAN FOWLER, 

YOUTHS IN NEZD OF CARE. 

MEMORANDUM AND ORDER 

This matter comes before the Court upon William Fowler's 

~otions: (1) to dismisn the youths in need of care proceedings 

or, in the alternative, to set an adjudicatory hearing pursuant 

to §41-3-401(2) , M.C.A.; (2) to implement a treatment plan; and 

(3) to prevent the State of Montana from financing the divor.ce/ 

18 custody proceedings. All parties have briefed the motions dnd 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

the matter is deemed submitted and ready for ruling. 

BACXGROmm 

This action was initiated on ~une 14, 1991 when the State 

of Montana petitioned the Court for temporary investigative 

authority and protective service. The petition and the 

24 affidavit provided by a social worker for Department of Family 

25 Services [hereinafter, DFS] alleged abuse within the meaning of 

26 S41-3-102, M.C.A. Judge Jack Green found probable cause to 

believe that t~e children were youths in need of care and in 
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need of temporary investigative services, and he granted 

temporary investigative authority to DFS. An order to show 

cause hearing was scheduled for June 24, 1991. Both counsel for 

4 DFS and Mr. Fowler appeared and advised this Court that a 

5 stipulation had been reached. Thereafter, this Court issued a 

6. restraining order granting DFS temporary investigative authority 

7 on July 17, 1991. Hr. Fowler was restrained and enjoined from 

8 any personal or telephone contact with the two minor children 

9 or their mothers. 

10 T1?-ereafter, numerous motions were filed by the state of 

II Montana and Mr. Fowler. There have been numerous show cause 

12 hearings upon the motion.::. A brief chronological review of the 

13 course of this case reveals thc··following: 

14 

IS 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

(1) On July 26, 1991, the state move:d for 
clarification of psychol~gical exams. On July 
29, 1991, the Court ordt::-red that. either Dr. 
Scolatti or Dr. Walters were to complete a 
psychological evaluation of Mr. Fowler. 

(2) On August 15, 1991, Mr. Fowler moved for 
supervised visitation pending the examinations. 
On August 21,1991, the state moved to approve 
placement of the youth and to wi thhold 
visitation until the visitation was complete. 
On August 22, 1991 this Court heard and granted 
the State's motion for placement of Chris Fowler 
with his natural mother, and granted the state's 
motion to withhold visitation. The Court denied 
Mr. Fowler's motion to move Chr is Fowler to 
foster care in Missoula. , The Cour:: ordered a 
supervised Christmas visitation. During this 
hearing, the state moved the Court to take 
judicial notice of a transcript from a divorce 
proceedings by Dana Fowler in which she detailed 
abuse at the hands of Mr. Fowler. The Court 
heard and granted this motion. 

(3) On January 22, 1992, Mr. Fowler moved again for 
supervised visitation. On February 13, 1992 he 
filed a motion to dismiss the proceedings 

Memo rardn ard Order 2 
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19 
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because Dr. Scolatti had not finished his 
report. In a memorandum and order dated March 
5, 1992 this Court denied that motion. 

(4) Dr. Scolatti completed his psychological 
Qvoluotion on Hll:t'oh 27, 1992. lIe recommended 
thnt: (a) Mr. Fowler have no unsupervised 
contnct with thechildr.en, (b) that the custody 
of Chris Fowler be transferred to his natural 
mother, Janet Schofield, (c) that Chris Fowler 
was in need of counseling, and (d) that· Mr. 
Fowler needed long-term counseling with a 
therapist of his choice to work on issues of 
anger management and p~renting skills. 

(5) On August 19, 1993, Mr. Fowler moved to set 
visitation and to obtain a second opinion of Dr. 
Scolatti's psychological evaluation. In a 
hearing on September 20, 1993, this Court 
granted the motion for a second opinion, ordered 
that the State disclose all raw test data used 
by Dr. Scolatti in his psychiatric evaluation, 
and ordered that Dr.-· Wal ters =:'ouJ.d formulate a 
visitation plan. 

(6) In a hearing scheduled October 4, 1993, the 
Court granted Ms. Schofield and Ms. Sutherland's 
entry into this case. The Court denied :~. 
Fowler's motion for visitation during interviews 
to be conducted by Dr Walters. The Court 
ordered Mr. Fowler to obtain a written propos2d 
treatment plan in regard to visitation from Dr. 
Walters. 

(7) On November 15, 1993, Mr. Fowler again moved for 
temporary . visitation. After a hearing, the 
Court issued an order denying this motion based 
upon: (a) the rema.ining unproven sexual abuse 
allegations, (b) the potential for damage that 
continued to exist with unsupervised visitation, 
(c) the recent evaluation of Chris Fowler by 
Thomas Hearn which supported Dr. Scolatti's' 
initial determinations, and (d) the failure of 
Mr. Fowler to obtain long-term ~ounseling. 

(8) On November 24, 1993, Mr. Fowler moved to 
bifurcate the property settlement issues from 
the custody issues in the divorce proceedings. 
On February 24, 1994, this Court assumed 
jurisdiction over both divorce proceedings and 
the motion to bifurcate was found to be moot. 

Kem:>rarrin and Order 3 
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As stilted supra, the present-motions pending before thin cOurt 

are Mr. Fowler's motio(ls: (1) to dismiss the youths in need of 

care proceedings or, in the alternative, to set an adjudicatory 

hearing pursuant to S41-3-401(2), M.e.A. ; (2) to implement a 

S t~eatment plan; and (3) to prevent the state of Montana from 

6 

7 

8 

9 

financlng the divorce/custody proceedings. 

QISMISSAL OF THE YINC P~OCEEDINGS 

Under a Rule 12(cj, Mont. Rules civ. Pro. motion, in order 

to dismiss a claim, tr.e defendant must show beyond a doubt that 

10 the plaintiff can prove no set of facts in support of his claim 

II which would entitle him to relief. Fraunhofer v. Price, 182 

12 Mont. 7, 12, 594 P.2d 324, 327 (1979). Clearly, Mr. Fowler has 

13 not shown beyond a doubt that there is a basis for dismissal of 

14 this temporary investiaative'authoritv and protective services 

15 action at this juncture. 

16 HEARING PURSUANT TO 5~1-3-~Ol(2), M.C.A. 

17 Mr. Fowler argues that his "property" (i. e. children) have 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

been taken away from him without due process of law. He 

contends that he has never had his "day in court" to contest the 

merits of the initiating petition ,for temporary investig2'.tive 

authority, and that the state of Montana has never addressed the 

serious allegations that were originally made against him. 

23 A review of the record in this case reveals that a portion 

24 of the delay in bringing this case to a conclusion 1:: ~' been as 

25 

26 

a result of the actions of Mr. Fowler. This Court has 

maintained numerous show cause hearings in this matter. As 

27 stated supra, at the most recent hearing, after listening to the 

4 
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18 
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evidence, this Court found that Mr. Fowler had not complied with 

Dr. Scolatti' B recommendations for long-term and intensive 

counseling. It was not until Hr. Fowler's pending motions were 

fuJly briefed and before this Court that Mr. Fowler filed the 

"Notice or Voluntnry Complinnce" with Dr. Scointti'o 

recommendations. 

In addition, although Mr. Fowler was granted his motion to 

seek a second opinion of Dr. Scolatti' s evaluation, he has never 

provided sUbstantive information to either the DFS or thiz Court 

that would support re-unification of his family. 

A review of the case law interpreting Title 41, Chapter 3, 

Part 4 reveals that a show cause hearing is the only hearing 

required uhen a petition for t~mporary investigative authority 

is filed. In Re J.W. & J.C., 226 Mont. 491, 736 P.2d 960 

(1987) . The legislature never intended to consolidate a 

petition to have youths declared in need of care (541-3-401, 

M.C.A.) and a petition for temporary investigative authority. 

(541-3-402, M. C.A.) Id. at 497-498. This Court's continued 

19 authori ty in this case has been pursuant to the temporary 

20 

2\ 

22 

23 

24 

investigative authority statutes. Under ~~ose statutes, ~his 

Court has the authority to require that Mr. Fowler undergo 

psychological evaluation (541-3-40](2) (c), M.C.A.), and it has 

the authority to require that Mr. Fowler receive counseling 

services. (541-3-403(2) (c), M.C.A). The state has never filed 

25 a petition pursuant to 541-3-401, M.C.A. which would necessitate 

26 that this Court set a date for an adjudicatory hearing. There 

27 has never been an attempt by DFS to permanently remove the 
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children from the custody of Mr. Fowler. There has only been 

2 a petition for temporary investigative authority and protective 

3 services. The District Court has acted at all times pursu~nt 

4 to S41-3-403, M.C.A. This statute gives the Court the authority 

5 to provide immediate protective serviceR, and it also authorizes 

6 the District' Court to use brond power to mnkQ cont.inulng 

7 arrangements for the children's protection. Matter of H.O., 256 

8 

9 

Mont. 70, 76, 844 P.2d 114 (1992). The reason that Hr. Fowler 

has never had his "day in court" to contest the allegations of 

10 

11 

12 

abuse or, as required in this case, his initial show cause 

hearing, is because he reached a stipUlation with DFS and the 

initial show cause hearing was cancelled. This case has 

13 proceeded thereon based upon the ini ti(\l decisions of Hr. Fowler 

14 to forego a show cause hearing which would have required the 

15 

16 

state to present evidence establishing probable cause for the 

issuance of the ordc= f~~ i~mediate protection. NOW, three 

17 years later, HI'. Fowler has decided that he wants his "show 

18 cause" hearing whereby the State is required to establish 

19 probable cause for the issuance of an order for i:mmediate 

20 protection. 

21 This Court has the authori ty t.o continue to provide 

22 temporary. protecti ve services to Mr. Fowler" s children, and Mr. 

23 Fowler should not be allowed to take this case back to square 

24 one each time he hires a new attorney. Theref are, ~. Fo~:ler 

25 has 10 days from the date of this order to submit: (1) 

26 substantive ir.formation regarding a second psychological 

27 evaluation which differs from the psychological evaluation 

6 
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provided by Dr. Scolatti, and (2) sUbstantive information 

regarding his long te:;:-ru counseling on parenting skills and anger 

3 control. 

4 TREATMENT PLAN 

5 Hr. Fowler contends that the state of Montana has never 

6 implemented a tre.::tment plan or attempted to reunify his family. 

7 

8 

9 

10 

II 

12 

In this Court's Order which resulted from the November 15, 1993 

hearing, explicit reasons were given why family re-unification 

was not in t-~e best interest of the children, and an explanation 

was provided under what circumstances that temporary visitation 

would be allowed in the future. 

Although it is true that the policy of this state is to 

preserve the unity of the family (54.1-1-101(1) (c), M.C.A.), it 

is also the policy of this state to protect children whose 

health and welfare are being adversely affected by the conduct 

16 of those responsible for their care (S41-3-101(2), M.C.A.). 

17 

'0 

19 

20 

21 

22 

This Court will continue to provide protective services to those 

children until the issues a~dressed in this Court's Order have 

been resolved. Fami.:;.y unity will not be preserved at the 

expense of the best interest of the children. In Re. M.N., 199 

Mont. 407, 649 P.2d 749 (1982),: As it is now Mr. Fowler's 

contention that he is complying wi th Dr. Scolatti's 

23 recolIllnendations, this Court orders that Mr. Fowler file a 

24 written propo~ed treatment plan within 10 days of the date of 

25 this order. The DFS has 10 days thereafter i;, which to file its 

26 written proposed treatment plan. Thereafter, a hearing will be 

27 scheduled upon request of the parties. 
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rINfu~cING A DlVORCE ~ROCEEOING8 

2 Mr. Fowler has failed to explain how the state of Montana 

3 is financing this divorce custody dispute. 

4 ,I 

6 

7 

8 

9 

ORDER 

Dn~od upon tho rorogoing, Mr. Fowlor's motion to dismiss 

is DENIED. 

Mr. Fowler is hereby ordered to submit (1) a second 

psychological evaluation, and (2) sUbstantive information 

slrrrounding the counseling he has received on parenting skills 

10 and anger control. 

II Mr. Fowler is further orderzd to submit a written, proposed 

12 treatment plan within 10 days vf the date of this order. DFS 

13 has 10 days thereafter in which to submit its written proposed 

treatment plan. A hearing will the!1 be scheduled upon the 

is request of the parties. 

16 }(x. Fowler'S motion to prevent the state from financing the c 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

divorce custody proc~gs is without merit and DENIED. 

DATED thi s g., 3 day o'..:f~;r:.cr~::::u:i_ 

cc: Patrick Flaherty 
Attorney for William Fowler 

Carol Everly 
Attorney for Janet Pedersen 

Kerry Newcomer 
Attorney for Kelly Ball 

Leslie Halligan 
Deputy County Attorney 

Margaret Borg 
Attorney for Christopher and Jonathan Fowler 

8 
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(~XHIBIT 'D' 
EXHIBIT_--:;c;3~ __ mw, .. 

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STl\TE Or 

No. 94-459 

WILLIAM v. FOWLER, 

Petitioner, 

v. 

THE DISTRICT COURT OF THE 
FOURTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT OF THE 
STATE OF MONTANA, IN AND FOR THE 
COUNTY OF MISSOULA I and THE 
HONORABLE DOUGLAS G. HARKIN I 
Presiding Judge, 

Respondents. 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
} 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

P;\T Flj ... ~tt_b=.'r'{ 
ATTORNEY AT LAW 

o R D E R 

FILED 

Petitioner, William v. Fowler (Fowler), by counsel, has filed 

herein his Petition for Writ of supervisory 'control and supporting 

brief requesting that this Court issue a writ It directing the 

District Court to dismiss the case or to set a Hearing [sic) within 

30 days on Mr. Fowler's right to contest the underlying allegations 

that resulted in the ex parte removal of bis children from his 

home." Fowlerlg Petition is vigorously opposed by the District 

Court, by each of the mothers of the two children involved and by 

the Depa~ent of Family Services. 

While this case has been pending for some time, it must also 

be noted that t.~e allegations in the underlying proceedings involve 

child sexual abuse. It also appears that the District Court is 

\ . 
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acting within its jurisdiction and is attempting to protect the 
, 

best interests of the children involved; is not acting under any 

mistake of law; has already held various hearings at which Fowler 

has appeared personally and by counsel; has entered various orders 

to move this C<:I.se <:I.long tow<:I.rd <:I. final resolution; and has 

scheduled further proceedings to that end. Moreover, it appears 

that Fowler hilnself has not complied fully with certain court 

orders. Finally, there is an adequate remedy of appeal from any 

and all final judgments of the District Court. Accordingly, there 

being no basis for th~s Court's assumption of original jurisdiction 
.J 

of this cause, Fcwlerls petition should be .denied. 

IT IS ORDERED· that Mr. Fowler's Petition for Writ of 

supervisory ~ntrol should be and the same is, hereby, DENIED. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the Clerk of this Court forthwith 

give notice of this order by mail to all counsel of record and to 

the Hon. Douglas G. ~kin, Prssiding. 

DATED this ~ day of November I 1994. ~ 

-r -(J:; ltice 
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William V. Fowler, pro se 
3700 South Russell, Suite B-101 
Missoula, Montana 59801 
(406)728-4334 

IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 

DISTRICT OF MONTANA 

WILLIAM V. FOWLER ) 
) No. CV95-1-M-CCL 

Plaintiff, ) 
) 

vs. ) 
) 

STATE OF MONTANA, JOSEPH ) 
MAZUREK, Attorney General for the State of ) 
Montana, DEPARTMENT OF FAMILY ) 
SERVICES, ) 

) 
Defendants. ) 

; 

APPLICATION FOR TEMPORARY RESTRAINING ORDER 

COMES NOW the Plaintiff, William V. Fowler, and hereby moves the court, pursuant 

to 28 U.s.c. §2201 and Rule 65(b) of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, for an Order 

restraining the Defendants, the State of Montana, Joseph Mazurik, Attorney General for the 

State of Montana, and the Department of Family Services, or their attorneys, from enforcing 

M.C.A. §§41-3-402, 41-3-403 in a manner that deprives Montana parents generally, and the 

Plaintiff in particular, of notice and hearing before having their parental rights terminated or 

diminished, until Plaintiff's Motion for Preliminary Injunction can be heard and determined, 

APPLICATION FOR T.R.O. -1-



,; 

and for an Order setting a date for such hearing. 

The unconstitutional application by the defendants of the statutes challenged in the 

Plaintiff's Complaint in the instant action is imminent and continuing, and the Plaintiff has 

no adequate remedy at law other than to petition this Court on an emergency basis for a 

Temporary Restraining Order pending a determination of his application 'for preliminary 

Injunction. 

The Defendants have been notified by personal service of the Plaintiff's intention to seek 

injunctive relief. 

This application is made on the grounds that the Plaintiff will suffer immediate and 

irreparable loss, damage or injury before the defendants or thier attorneys can be heard :'} 

opposition to this Application, and that the defendants have illegally and unconstitutionaly 

effected a continuing de facto termination of the plaintiff's parental rights, as is described in 

the attached affidavit, and as is more fully recounted in the COMPLAINT filed in this case, 

and in the Plaintiff's MOTION FOR INJUNCTION and the supporting memorandum, 

copies of which have been filed herewith. 

Dated this & day of -~-A-"",--,-'-----' 1995. 

1J;~1J~~ 
William V. Fowler, pro se 
3700 South Russell, Suite B-101 
Missoula, Montana 59801 
(406)728-4334 

APPLICATION FOR T.R.O. -2-



\Villiam V. Fowler, pro se 
3700 Russel. Suite B-101 
Missoula, MT 59801 

EXHIBIT; 4= _ 
DATE .;>. - b - 9 S ,. 
1 ~ 5B dOlo 

IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 

DISTRICT OF MONTANA 

WILLIAM V. FOWLER 

Plaintiff, 

vs. 

STATE OF MONTANA, 
JOSEPH MAZUREK, 
Attorney General for the State of 
Montana, DEPARTMENT OF FAMILY 
SERVICES, 

) 
) No. CV95-1-M-CCL 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

Defendants. ) 
--~~====~---------------

AFFIDAVIT 

STATE OF MONTANA } 
: ss. 

COUNTY OF MISSOULA } 

I, William V. Fowler am the Plaintiff in the above-entitled action and do hereby make 

the following declaration, under oath, in support of my complaint: 

1. That I was adjudicated a joint custodial parent of Jonathan and Christopher Fowler, 

and that Christopher Fowler were in my care and custody as primary custodial parent and 

caregiver until June 14, 1991. 

2. That on June 14, 1991 the Missoula County Attorney, at the behest of the Montana 

Department of Family services, filed an affidavit alleging probable cause to assume temporary 

investigative authority, specifically alleging abuse of Jonathan by Christopher Fowler. 

AFFIDAVIT OF WILLIAM V. FOWLER -1-



.; 

3. That based solely on the affidavit mentioned in paragraph 2, above, and solely under 

their temporary investigative authority, Christopher Fowler was removed from my custody, 

and my right to have any contact with either of my sons was terminated. 

4. That under the guise of a "temporary" investigative authority, I have been deprived 
, 

of all of my parental rights in Jonathan and Christopher Fowler for almost.four years. 

5. That throughout the nearly four years since the State took my children from me, 

I have continually insisted upon, but have never been afforded, any hearing at which I could 

challenge the underlying allegations that were asserted in order for the state to assume its 

"temporary" investigative authority. 

6. That, as evidenced by the order of the district court, and the opinion of the Montana 

Supreme Court, (copies attached) the State has acted solely pursuant to its authority to assume 

temporary investigative authority under M.C.A. §§41-3-402 and 41-3-403. 

7. That the acts of the State of Montana, and the Department of Family Services, under 
< 

the authority of Joseph Mazurek, the State Attorney General, have effectively terminated my 

parental rights without affording me notice and a hearing at which I could challenge the 

myriad of allegations made against me, said unsubstattiated allegations being the sole basis for 

the State preventing me from seeing my children. 

8. That the acts of the defendants are continuing, and have caused and continue to 

cause me irreparable harm in that I have lost valuable years of the potential relationship 

between myslf and my sons that can never be recovered. 

9. That I have personal knowledge that the state has not only acted in excess of its 

authority to violate my personal parental rights, but that it is the policy of the state, as ratified 

ty the Montana Supreme COUll, to violate parental rights generally by exercising statutorily 

"temporary" authority for periods of time in excess of years. 

AFFIDA VIT OF WILLIAM V. FOWLER -2-



Further the affiant sayeth not. 

Signed this ! 0 day of~' 1995. 

EXHIBIT __ 4:'--__ _ 
DAT .... E _-.Jo2~-:o..:.b_-... 9 .... 5 ....... 

ll-"'""_:s~B:....;d-~Qb~_fII' 

IiJk~ 
William V. Fowler 
3700 Russell, Suite B-101 . 
Missoula, MT 59802 
(406) 728-4334 

.' fl2 -r: 
On this j(}..7 day of --.JVtJ71AftfV , 1995, before me, the undersigned Notary Public, ,. 

in and for the State of Montana, personally appeared William V. Fowler, and proved to me 

on the basis of satisfactory evidence, to be the person whose name is subscribed to the within 

Affidavit and acknowledged to me that he executed the same. 

WITNESS my hand and official seal. 

M@rA~ 
Notary Public 1ll and for 
the State of /hI 
Residing at: iJJ/~~"k 
My co~n:;ission expires: 

5/'.2c?ft9g 
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William V. Fowler, pro se 
3700 South Russell, Suite B-l01 
Missoula, Montana 59801 
(406)728-4334 

IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
DISTRICT OF MONTANA 

WILLIAM V. FOWLER ) 
) No. CV95-1-M-CCL 

Plaintiff, ) 
) 

vs. ) 
) 

STATE OF MONTANA, JOSEPH ) 
MAZUREK, Attorney General for the State of ) 
Montana, DEP AR TMENT OF F AMIL Y ) 
SERVICES, ) 

) 
Defendants. ) 

; 

NonCE OF APPLICATION FOR TEMPORARY RESTRAINING ORDER 

TO: Joseph Mazurek 
Attorney General for the State of Montana 
215 N. Sanders 
P.O. Box 201401 
Helena, MT 59620-1401 

Notice is hereby given that the Plaintiff will seek a Temporary Restral~J.ing Order on 
the _ day of , 1995, at the hour of o'clock_.m., or as soon thereafter 
as the parties may be heard, at which time the Defendants shall appear to show cause, if any 
they have, why the relief requested in their request for a Tempora:y Restraining Order and 
Comp:J.int, copies of which are attached hereto, should not be granted. 

Dated this /..L2 day Ofr' 1995. 

IL/dh~~~ 
William V. Fowler, pro se 
3700 South Russell, Suite B-101 
Missoula, Montana 59801 
(406)728-4334 

NOTICE OF REQUEST FOR T.R.O. -1-



William V. Fowler, pro se 
3700 South Russell, Suite B-101 
Missoula, Montana 59801 
(406)728-4334 

EXHIBIT'; :+ 
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
DISTRICT OF MONTANA 

WILLIAM V. FOWLER ) 
) No. CV95-1-M-CCL 

Plaintiff, ) 
) 

vs. ) 
) 

STATE OF MONTANA, JOSEPH ) 
MAZUREK, Attorney General for the State of ) 
Montana, DEPARTMENT OF FAMILY ) 
SERVICES, ) 

) 
Defendants. ) 

NOTICE OF APPLICATION FOR TEMPORARY RESTRAINING ORDER 

TO: Joseph Mazurek 
215 N. Sanders 
P.O. Box 201401 
Helena, MT 59620-1401 

Notice is hereby given that the Plaintiff will seek a Temporary Restraining Order on 
the _ day of , 1995, at the hour of o'clock_.m., or as soon thereafter 
as the parties may be heard, at which time the Defendants shall appear to show cause, if any 
they have, why the relief requested in their request for a Temporary Restraining Order and 
Complaint, copies of which are attached hereto, should not be granted. 

Dated this J1l day of~, 1995. 

~~ 
William V. Fowler, pro se 
3700 South Russell, Suite B-101 
Missoula, Montana 59801 
(406)728-4334 

NOTICE OF REQUEST FOR T.R.O. -1-



William V. Fowler, pro se 
3700 South Russell, Suite B-101 
Missoula, Montana 59801 
(406)728-4334 

; 

IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 

DISTRICT OF MONTANA 

WILLIAM V. FOWLER 

Plaintiff, 

vs. 

STATE OF MONTANA, 
JOSEPH MAZUREK, 
Attorney General for the State of 
Montana, DEPARTMENT OF FAMILY 
SERVICES, 

) 
) No. CV95-1-M-CCL 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

Defendants. ) 
----~====~----------------

NOTICE OF APPLICATION FOR TEMPORARY RESTRAINING ORDER 

TO: Department of Family Services 
602 Woody 
Missoula, MT 59801 

Notice is hereby given that the Plaintiff will seek a Temporary Restraining Order on 
the _ day of , 1994, at the hour of o'clock .m., or as soon thereafter 
as the parties may be heard, at which time the Defendants shall appear to show cause, if any 
they have, why the relief requested in their request for a Temporary Restraining Order and 
Complaint, copies of which are attached hereto, should not be granted. 

Dated this /0 day Of~, 1995. ./ 

@d~ <= z$(/~~ 
William V. Fowler, pro se 
3700 South Russell, Suite B-101 
Missoula, Montana 59801 
(406)728-4334 

NOTICE OF REQUEST FOR T.R.O. -1-
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURr-- I---=..::..:.....:::::;..~-

DISTRICT OF MONTANA 

\V'ILLIAM V. FOWLER 

Plaintiff, 

vs. 

STATE OF MONTANA, 
JOSEPH MAZUREK, 
Attorney General for the State of 
Montana, DEPARTMENT OF FAMILY 
SERVICES, 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

No. CV95-1-M-CCL 

ORDER 

Defendants. ) 
-----=======~----------------

The Court, having been presented with a Complaint, Affidavit, Application for Injunction 
or Declaratory Relief and supporting Memorandum, and an Application requesting a 
temporary order restraining the State of Montana, Attorney General Joseph Mazurek, the 
Montana Department of Family Services, their agents, or their attorneys, from enforcing the 
provisions of M.C.A. §41-3-402 and §41-3-403 so as to deprive Montana parents of their right 
to due process prior to having their parental rights diminished or terminated, until Plaintiff's 
Motion for Preliminary Injunction can be heard and; 

The Court being of the opinion that the Plaintiff's motion is supported by good and 
sufficient cause, 

IT IS ORDERED that the above named defendants, their agents and attorneys be 
temporarily enjoined from removing children from their custodial parents without affording 
them prompt hearings to determine the probable cause for such removal, and an adjudicatory 
hearing to determine the truth or falsity of any allegations on which the State relies in 
asserting its authority to remove children from their custodial parents, pending further action 
of the Court. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Defendants appear before this Court on the _ day 
of , 1995, at the hour of o'clock .m., or as soon thereafter as the 
parties may be heard, to show cause, if any they have, why the relief requested in the 
Complaint should not be granted. 

Dated this ___ day of ___ , 1995. 

U. S. DISTRICT COURT JUDGE 



William V. Fowler, pro se 
3700 South Russell, Suite B-101 
Missoula, Montana 59801 
(406)728-4334 

IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
DISTRICT OF MONTANA 

WILLIAM V. FOWLER 

Plaintiff, 

vs. 

JOSEPH MAZUREK, 
Attorney General for the State of 
Montana, et al., 

) 
) No. CV95-1-M-CCL 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

Defendants. ) 
----~====~----------------

MOTION FOR PRELIMINARY INJUNCTION 

; 

COMES NOW the Plaintiff, moves this court for an Order preliminarily enjoining the 

defendant, Joseph Mazurek, his agents, and subordinates, and the Department of Family 

Services, from enforcing ortaking any action pursuant to M.C.A. §41-3-402 and §41-3-403 until 

such time as this court has reviewed and made a final decision regarding the constitutionality 

of said statutes. Alternatively, the Plaintiff requests that this court issue an order requiring the 

State of Montana to hold an adjudicatory hearing to determine the underlying accusations of 

abuse and/or neglect within a reasonable period of time (perhaps 60 ot 90 days) after the state 

seizes children pursuant to a "temporary investigative authority." In support of his Motion, 

the Plaintiff states as follows: 

MOTION FOR PRELIMINARY INJUNCTION -1-
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1. The defendant, Joseph Mazurek, through his agents and subordinates, partlcu ar y 

the Department of Family Services, is charged with enforcing the laws of the State of Montana, 

including M.C.A. §41-3-402 and §41-3-403. 

2. In enforcing, M. C.A. §41-3-402 and §41-3-403 out of the context of the statutory 

framework in which it appears, Joseph Mazurek is acting in pursuance of an unconstitutional 

statute (or more accurately, enforcing an apparently valid statute in an unconstitutional 

manner), and is thus acting in his individual capacity. 

3. This court has jurisdiction to enjoin the enforcement of M.C.A. §41-3-402 and §41-3-

403 pending its determination of the Plaintiff's challenge to the constitutionality of said 

statutes pursuant to 28 U.s.c. §1651(a) and F.R.C.P Rule 65. 

4. Failure of the court to enjoin defendant Mazurek from enforcing the challenged 

statutes will result in immediate irreparable harm to the Plaintiff, as well as other affected 

parents in the state of Montana. 

5. The Plaintiff has no adequate remedy at law, and thus seeks to avail himself of this 

court's equitable jurisdiction. 

WHEREFORE, the Plaintiff prays that this court issue the requested injunction, as is 

more fully supported by the accompanying memorandum of law. 

SUBMITTED this 10 day of ~ 1995. 

William V. Fowler, pro se 
3700 South Russell, Suite B-101 
Missoula, Montana 59801 
(406)728-4334 

MOTION FOR PRELIMINARY INJUNCTION -2-



William V. Fowler, pro se 
3700 South Russell, Suite B-1'Ol 
Missoula, Montana 59801 
(406)728-4334 

IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 

DISTRICT OF MONTANA 

WILLIAM V. FOWLER 

Plaintiff, 

vs. 

JOSEPH MAZUREK, 
Attorney General for the State of 
Montana, et al., 

) 
) No. CV95-1-M-CCL 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

Defendants. ) 
----~~~~---------------

MEMORANDUM IN SUPPORT OF 
MOTION FOR PRELIMINARY INJUNCTION 

; 

In support of his motion for a Preliminary Injunction enjoining defendant Joseph 

Mazurek from enforcing M.e.A. §41-3-402 and §41-3-403 until such time as this court has 

reviewed and made a final decision regarding the constitutionality of said statutes, the Plaintiff 

states as follows: 

1. 

This Court Has Jurisdiction To Issue The Requested Injunction. 

MOTION FOR INJUNCTION; SUPPORTING MEMORANDUM -1-
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DATE- ;;'-(, -95 _ 
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This court has jurisdiction to entertain suits seeking to enjoin a state official from 

enforcing an unconstitutional statute pursuant to 28 U.s.c. §1651 and F.R.C.P. Rule 65. Such 

a suit is not a suit against the State of Montana, but is a suit against a state official, Joseph 

Mazurek, in his indivi4ual capacity, since the unconstitutional nature of the statute renders the 

enforcement thereof an illegal act, which is outside the scope of official duty. Osborn v. Bank 

of the United States, 9 Wheat 728 (1824); Board of Liquidation v. McComb, 92 U.S. 531 (1876); 

Poindexter v. Greenhow, 114 U.S. 270 (1885); Reagan v. Farmers'Loan & Trust Co., 154 U.S. 

362 (1894); Smyth v. Ames, 169 U.S. 466 (1898); Ex parte Young, 209 U.S. 123 (1908); Truax v. 

Raich, 239 U.S. 33 (1915); Public Service Co. v. Corboy, 250 U.S. 152 (1919); Sterling v. 

Costantin, 287 U.S. 378 (1932); Davis v. Gray, 16 Wall. 203 (1873); Tomlinson v. Branch, 15 

Wall. 460 (1873); Litchfield v. W'ebster Co., 101 U.S. 773 (1880); Allen v. Baltimore & Ohio R. 

Co., 114 U.S. 311 (1885); Gunter v. Atlantic C. L. R. Co., 200 U.S. 273 (1906); Prout v. Starr, 

188 U.S. 537 (1903); Scott v. Donald, 165 U.S. 58; also 165 U.S. 107 (1897). 

This court has jurisdiction to issue an injunction enjoining the enforcement of 

M.C.A. §41-3-402 and §41-3-403 until such time as this court has reviewed and made a final 

decision regarding the constitutionality of said statutes as applied. Ex parte Young, supra. 

II. 

The Challenged Statutes Have Been Interpreted By The Montana State Courts .. 

Even if the Montana State Courts had not previously interpreted M.C.A. §41-3-402 and 

§41-3-403, and even if defendant Mazurek had not enforced said statutes in a manner so as to 

MOTION FOR INJUNCTION; SUPPORTING MEMORANDUM -2-



violate the constitutional rights of the citizens of Montana, this court would have jurisdiction 

to preemptively interpret said statutes, especially in light of the manifest oppression that has 

resulted from the enforcement of said statutes. Ex parte Young, supra; Home telephone & 

Telegraph Co. v. Los 1ngeles, 227 U.S. 278 (1913); Traux v. Raich, 239 U.s. 33 (1915); 

Cavanaugh v. Looney, 248 U.S. 453 (1919); Terrace v. Thompson, 263 U.S. 197 (1923); Hygrade 

Provision Co. v. Sherman, 266 U.S. 497 (1925); Massachusetts State Grange v. Benton, 272 U.S. 

525 (1926); Hawks v. Hamill, 288 U.S. 52 (1933); Georgia R. v. Redwine, 342 U.s. 299 (1952). 

However, this court need not preemptively interpret the challenged statutes, because the 

Montana Supreme Court has already done so, as shall be illustrated herein. The Plaintiff bases 

his claims of unconstitutionality on the challenged statutes as they have been interpreted by 

the Montana Supreme Court. 

The Plaintiff relies on the interpretation of M.C.A. §41-3-402 and §41-3-403 by the 

Mon:ana Courts to support his contention that the challenged statutes are unconstitutional. 

Although said statutes are not unconstitutional on their faces, the statutes are violative of 

fundamental constitutional rights as they are interpreted by the courts and applied by 

defendant Mazurek. M.C.A. §41-3-402 and §41-3-403 read as follows: 

41-3-402. Petition for temporary investigative authority and protective 
services.(1) In cases where it appears that a youth is abused or neglecd or is in danger 
of being abused or neglected, the county attorney, attorney general, or an attorney hired 
by the county welfare department or office of human services may file a petition for 
tempc:-ary investigative authority and protective services. 

(2) A petition for temporary investigative authority and protective services shall 
state the specific authority requested and the facts establishing probable cause that a 
youth is abused or neglected or is in danger of being abused or neglected. 

(3) The petition for temporary investigative authority and protective services 
shall be supported by an affidavit signed by the county attorney, attorney general, or 

MOTION FOR INJUNCTION; SUPPORTING MEMORANDUM -3-
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an attorney hired by the county welfare department or office or human services or a 
department of family s'ervices report stating in detail the facts upon which the request 
is based, 

41-3-403. Order for immediate protection of youth. (1) (a) Upon the filing of 
a petition for temporary investigative authority and protective services, the court may 
issue an order granting relief that may be required for the immediate protection of the 
youth. . 

(b) The order, along with the petition and supporting documents, must be served 
by a peace officer or a representative of the department on the person or persons named 
in the order. When the youth is placed in a medical facility or protective facility, the 
department shall notify the parents or parent, guardian, or other person having legal 
custody of the youth, at the time the placement is made or as soon after placement as 
possible. 

(c) The order must require the person served to comply immediately with the 
terms of the order or to appear before the court issuing the order on the date specified 
and show cause why the person has not complied with the order. The show cause 
hearing must be conducted within 20 days of the issuance of the order by the judge or 
a master appointed by the judge. The person filing the petition has the burden of 
presenting evidence establishing probable cause for the issuance of the order. Except as 
otherwise provided in this part, the rules of civil procedure apply. Hearsay evidence of 
statements made by the affected youth is admissible at the hearing. 

(d) Upon a failure to comply or show cause, the court may hold the person in 
contempt or place temporary legal custody of the youth with the department until 
further order. 
(2) The court may grant the following kinds of relief: 

(a) right of entry by a peace officer or department worker; 
(b) medical and psychological evaluation of the youth or parents, guardians, or 

person having legal custody; 
(c) requirement that the youth, parents, guardians, or person having legal 

custody receive counseling services; 
(d) placement of the youth in a temporary medical facility or a facility for 

protection of the youth; 
(e) requirement that the parents, guardian, or other person having custody 

furnish services that the court may designate; 
(~ inquiry into the financial ability of the parents, guardian, or other person 

having custody of the youth to contribute to the costs for the care, custody, and 
treatment of the youth and requirement of a contribution for those costs pursuant to 

the requirements of 41-3-406(3) through (6); 
(g) other temporary disposition that may be required in the best interest of the 

youth that does not require an expenditure of money by the department unless the 
department is notified and a court hearing is set in a timely manner on the proposed 
expenditure. The department is the payor of last resort after all family, insurance, and 
other resources have been examined. 
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To understand the impropriety of the Montana Court's interpretation of these two 

sections, it is helpful to exa:.ine the statutory context in which they appear. Viewing Part 4 

of Chapter 3, Title 41, M.C.A. as a whole, the above two sections would appear to be an 

integral part of the st~tutory scheme dealing with youths who are in need of care. Title 41 

pertains to minors generally, and Chapter 3 covers child abuse, neglect and dependency. Parts 

3 and 4 of Chapter 3 deal with emergency protective care of children who are alleged to be 

abused and/or neglected. Part 3 specifies the situations in which emergency protective services 

are called for, the state's responsibility in providing such services, and representation of affected 

youths by a guardian ad litem. Part 4 covers the process for implementing emergency 

protective services of youths in need of care. 

On its face, Part 4 would seem to encompass sufficient procedural safeguards to ensure 

that a parent received due process prior to having his or her children permanently oeized by 

the state. The first section in Part 4 appears to cover all petitions filed by the state which 

allege abuse, neglect, or dependency of a minor child. It states in pertinent part: 

41-3-401. Abuse, neglect, and dependency petitions. (1) The county attorney, attorney 
general, . .. shall be responsible for filing all petitions alleging abuse, neglect, or 
dependency. The county attorney or attorney general, . .. may require all state, 
county, and municipal agencies, including law enforcement ag;;ncies, to conduct such 
investigations and furnish such reports as may be necessary. 

(2) Upon receipt of a petition, the court shall set a date for an adjudicatory 
hearing on the petition. 

* * * * * 

(10) The petition may ask for the following relief: 
(a) temporary investigative authority and protective services; 
(b) temporary legal custody; 
(c) termination of the parent-child legal relationship and permanent legal custody 
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M.C.A. §41-3-401 [emphasis added]. Following this section, §41-3-402 further explains the use 

and procedure for obtaining the temporary investigative authority specified in §41-3-401. 

Section 41-3-402 mak~s no reference whatsoever to any type of notice or hearing. It does 

specify that "the petition for temporary investigative authority shall be supported by an 

affidavit of probable cause." Following section 41-3-402, section 41-3-403 guides the court's 

immediate action after the filing of a petition requesting temporary investigative authority. 

Section 41-3-403 requires that a probable cause hearing to establish the necessity of assuming 

temporary investigative authority be conducted within 20 days of the issuance of the order 

granting temporary investigative authority. 

On its face, the statutory scheme dealing with the state's intervention where child abuse 

IS alleged would seem to protect the rights of parents as well as children. The plaintiff 

emphasizes that the following description is based on how the law plainly reads, rather 

than how the courts have implemented the law. If a situation of alleged abuse is serious 

enough for the state to intervene and remove a child from a dangerous environment, a petition 

detailing the situation and the intended intervention must be filed within 48 hours (M.C.A. 

§41-3-301). Said petition must conform to the requisites of M.C.A. §41-3-401. If the petition 

seeks temporary investigative authority, it must be supported by an affidavit an of probable 

cause in which the county attorney personally verifies the reasons that a temporary 

investigative authority is needed. (M.C.A. §41-3-402). In all cases where abuse is alleged, the 

court must set a priority date for an adjudicatory hearing (M.C.A. §41-3-401(2)), and if 

temporary investigative authority is sought, the court must set a date for a probable cause 
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hearing within 20 days of the filing of the petition (M.C.A. 41--3-403(1)(c)). This scheme 

allows the state to intervene when there is reason to believe a youth is in danger and in need 

of care. At the same time, it allows a parent an initial hearing in which he or she can 

challenge the allegatiom of probable cause for state intervention, and a prompt adjudicatory 

hearing at which the matters alleged by the state can be disputed according to the rules of 

evidence and civil procedure. Further, the statutes provide for the allegations leading to state 

intervention to be reviewed at least three times prior to temporary investigative authority 

being authorized: first, under M.C.A. §41-3-301, a case worker from the Department of 

Family Services makes an initial determination that a youth is in immediate or apparent danger 

of harm; second, a county attorney, attorney general, or other independent attorney must 

personally sign an affidavit confirming the results of the DFS caseworker's investigation (§§41-

3-401, 402); third, a judge must review the conclusions of both the DFS caseworker and the 

attorney who has filed the supporting sworn affidavit, and determine if an order for the 

immediate protection of the youth is warranted (§41-3-403). 

The above description and analysis of the statutory scheme dealing with youths alleged 

to be in need of care is based on the wording and structure of the law itself.! However, this 

is not how Montana courts and enforcement authorities view these statutes. Montana courts 

do not read the statutes dealing with minors as a coherent whole. Rather, the courts and 

This interpretation of the statutory scheme is not based solely on the plaintiff's 
opmlOn. Relatively similar statutory frameworks exist in other states, one of which is the 
State of Connecticut. Excerpts of the Connecticut statutes are juxtaposed with the Montana 
Statutes in EXHIBIT III, attached hereto, and incorporated herein by reference. The 
Connecticut Supreme Court's analysis of said statutes is included in the Annotation attached 
as EXHIBIT IV, and incorporated herein by reference (In Re Juvenile Appeal, 189 Conn 276, 
455 A.2d 1313, 38 ALR 4th 736 (Conn. 1983)). 
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enforcement authorities admittedly view M.C.A. §§41-3-402 and 41-3-403 as isolated grants of 

authority by which the State can and does remove children from their custodial parents 

without due process of law, as the following statements by the Montana courts indicate. 

The Montana district court has stated that the cessation of parental rights can continue 

for periods of many years under the state's "temporary investigative authority and protective 

services" John Harkin's Memorandum and order, Cause No. ]-2689, In the Matter of 

Declaring Christopher Fowler and Jonathan Fowler Youths in Need of Care (attached as 

EXHIBIT I and referred to hereinafter as Harkin Order), at p. 4. How do the Montana 

courts circumvent the requirement of M.C.A. §41-3-401(2) that an adjudicatory hearing be 

given priority on the court docket? They hold that "the legislature never intended to 

consolidate a petition to have youths declared in need of care (§41-3-401, M.C.A.) and a 

petition for temporary investigative authority (§41-3-402, M.C.A.)." Harkin Order at p. 5. 

In holding that §41-3-401 and §41-3-402 are unrelated, the courts ignore the following 

facts: first, that it is §41-3-401(10)(a) and (b) that give the authority to request the temporary 

investigative authority and protective services under section 41-3-402; second, on its face §41-3-

401 applies to all petitions alleging abuse, neglect or dependency; and third, the filings in Cause 

No. ]-2689, as well as every other petition requesting temporary investigative authority, 

indicate on their faces that they are indeed "Y outh In Need Of Care" proceedings, as 

described in §41-3-401. 

Despite the fact that §41-3-401 mandates an adjudicatory hearing, the Montana courts 

hold that by denying the integral nature of the statutes dealing with youths in need of care, 

it can avoid an adjudicatory hearing ever being held, even though the underlying allegations 
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allege child abuse and neglect: "The state has never filed a petition pursuant to 41-3-401, 

M.C.A. which would necessitate that this Court set a date for an adjudicatory hearing." 

Harkin Order at p. 5. Montana state courts further hold that so long as the state characterizes 

its actions as temporary, it can effect a de facto termination of parental rights without an 

adjudicatory hearing: "There has never been an attempt by DFS to perman~ntly remove the 

children from the custody of Mr. Fowler. There has only been a petition for temporary 

investigative authority" Harkin Order at p. 6. "A review of the case law interpreting Title 41, 

Chapter 3, Part 4 reveals that a show cause hearing is the only hearing required when a 

petition for temporary investigative authority is filed." Harkin Order at p. 5. How long is 

"temporary" according to Montana courts? In the Plaintiff's case the State has taken his 

children, and terminated all contact with them for over three and one half years. In the matter 

of FH., jK., and B.K., 51 St.Rep. 0649 (1994), "temporary" was thirteen years. In fact, 

Montana courts hold that any length of time necessary for the state to maintain custody until 

a minor reaches age 18 is "temporary." Id. 2 

The State of Montana contends that M.C.A. §§41-3-402 and 41-3-403 each stand 

independently from the rest of the Montana Code. This flies in the face of statutory accepted 

interpretation, which requires that these statutes be read in conjunction with other statutes 

dealing with state intervention for the protection of the children. In Re Juvenile Appeal, 189 

Conn 276, 455 A.2d 1313, 38 ALR 4th 736 (Conn. 1983). Pursuant to the challenged statutes, 

2 In the Matter of FH., jK., and B.K., the court contended that it "did not 
terminate S.T.'s parental rights ... " but instead merely "granted DFS temporary custody until 
B.K. and F .H. reached age eighteen." This is a blatant, disingenuous, and hypocritical way for 
the state to steal children without troubling itself with the requirement of notice and hearing 
to determine whether the facts warrant terminating parental rights. 
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the defendant has exercised the authority to take children from their parents indefinitely 

without the necessity of a hearing on the underlying reasons for the state's intervention: "The 

District Court has acted at all times pursuant to 41-3-403, M.C.A. This statute gives the Court 

the authority to prov~de immediate protective services, and it also authorizes the District 

Court to use broad power to make continuing arrangements for the children's protection." 

Harkin Order at p. 6. The court contends that under the authority of §41-3-403, which on 

its face covers only court orders ensuing from petitions for temporary investigative authority, 

it can effect permanent custody of children under the guise of "continuing arrangements" 

resulting from a request for immediate protective services. How long can these "continuing 

arrangements" last? According to Montana courts, the state can continue to "protect" children 

without an adjudicatory hearing for as long as an individual judge pleases. "This court has the 

authority to continue to provide temporary protective services to Mr. Fowler's children." 

Harkin Order at p. 6. 

The interpretation of M.C.A. §§41-3-402 and 41-3-403 related above is not the 

construction of an individual renegade judge; it is the holding of the Supreme Court of the 

State of Montana. Shortly after Judge Harkin extolled his power and authority to order 

children removed from their parents without the necessity of ever having any adjudicatory 

hearing, the Plaintiff presented Harkin's reasoning to the Montana Supreme Court, requesting 

that they exercise their supervisory jurisdiction over the lower court. In response, the 

Montana Supreme Court ratified Judge Harkin's interpretation of the law and adopted it as 

their own. The Montana Supreme court held that the lower courts are within their 

jurisdiction when they remove children from their parents for indefinite periods of time 
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without affording the affected parents the opportunity to be heard at an adjudicatory hearing. 

The Montana Supreme Court held that when the district court removed the Plaintiff's 

children, restrained any contact with them, and did so without any opportunity for the 

Plaintiff to be heard, it, was "acting within its jurisdiction." Montana Supreme Court Opinion 

in Case No. 94-459 at p. 1-2. (attached as EXHIBIT II). It further held that in acting pursuant 

to authority purportedly granted by the challenged statutes (M.C.A. §§41-3-402 and 41-3-403), 

the district court "was not acting under any mistake of law." id. 

The state's position on M.C.A. §§41-3-402 and 41-3-403 is clear: The state contends that 

pursuant to the authority granted in those sections standing alone, it can take children from 

their parents based solely on the allegations of a DFS bureaucrat, which are then rubber 

stamped by a county attorney. After a hearing establishing nothing more that probable cause3 

to conduct further investigation, the state can retain custody of the children until the child 

reaches age 18. Parents are never entitled to an adjudicatory hearing in which to challenge the 

underlying allegations of abuse, so long as the state purports to be acting under the authority 

of §§41-3-402 and 41-3-403, rather than under §41-3-401. When the state removes a child from 

their parents, and terminates all contact between parent and child until the child reaches 18, 

they have in fact terminated the parental rights of the parent. According to the state, they 

can effect such a termination with nothing more than demonstrating probable cause to conduct 

an investigation. The state's assertion of authority to take children from their parents 

without the opportunity of a hearing is given effect by the defpndant Joseph Mazurek, 

utilizing the police power of the State of Montana. 

In the Plaintiff's case, even a probable cause hearing was denied. 
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The Challer:ged Statutes Violate A Fundamental Constitutional Right. 

The rights of parents to raise their own children is a fundamental liberty interest 

recognized at common law and protected by the Constitution. "The rights to conceive and 

to raise one's children have been deemed 'essential,' 'basic civil rights of man,' and 'rights far 

more precious . . . than property rights. . . . The integrity of the family unit has found 

protection in the Due Process Clause of the Fourteenth Amendment, the Equal Protection 

Clause of the Fourteenth Amendment, and the Ninth Amendment." (Citations omitted.) 

Stanley v. Illinois, 405 U.S. 645, 651, 92 S.Ct. 1208, 1212,31 L.Ed.2d 551 (1972). A parent's 

liberty interest in their own children is a natural and legal right. Moss v. Vest et aI., 262 P .2d 

116 (Idaho, 1953). Although the right to parent one's children is burdened with concomitant 

responsibilities, and although the state has a legitimate interest in protecting children from 

abuse, it is still the state that has the burden of overcoming the prima fascia case favoring 

parental custody once the parent-child relationship is established. !d. at 119. 

Once it is established that a fundamental right is being affected, the following question 

arises: what procedural process is necessary before the state can remove a child from its 

parents? In the Plaintiff's case, this issue need not be addressed, because the state afforded the 

Plaintiff no notice, no hearing, and what amounts to no procedural due process whatsoever. 

However, the Plaintiff's case notwithstanding, the state of Montana claims that the only 
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procedural due process necessary for it to remove a child from its parents, and mamtam 

custody of that child with the state Department of Family Services, is that of establishing 

probable cause to do an investigation. The courts in Montana are absolutely clear on this 

point. The state can ~ssume "temporary" authority under M.C.A. 41-3-402, and the only 

hearing necessary is a preliminary probable cause hearing. At that hearing, the common 

practice in 1bntana is for a county attorney to ratify a DFS worker's allegation of abuse. No 

investigation whatsoever need be done on the part of the county attorneys, who sign their 

names to sworn affidavits without personally ascertaining the truth or falsity of the allegations 

made therein. Once probable cause to conduct an investigation is established, the state claims 

the authority, again under §§41-3-402 and 41-3-403, to grant "temporary" custody to lJFS until 

the child reaches age 18. 

IV. 

The Necessity For An Injunction To Issue. 

The defendant continues to proceed in enforcing the challenged statutes, in violation 

of the due process rights of parents, and will continue to do so unless stopped. Every day 

that tb-: defendant is allowed to proceed under the unconstitutional authority of tl-:~ 

challenged statutes, Montana families, both parents and children, are harmed. The state has 

made its final determination regarding the application of the challenged statutes, and its 

interpretation is clear: children can be taken from their parents and made wards of the state 

until they reach eighteen years of age, with no more than a showing of probable cause to 
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/ILdI~~ 
William V. Fowler, pro se 
3700 South Russell, Suite B-101 
Missoula, Montana 59801, 
(406)728-4334 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I hereby certify that on this day I placed a true and correct copy of the foregoing 

Motion for Preliminary Injunctio and Supporting Memorandum in the u.S. mail, postage 

prepaid, addressed as follows: 

Joseph Mazurek 
Attorney General for the State of Montana 
215 N. Sanders 
P.O. Box 201401 

Department of Family Services 
602 Woody 
Missoula, MT 59801 

Dated: C1-n ((, (79)' 
Z; 
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conduct an investigation into alleged abuse. According to the state, no finding of abuse is 

necessary. A preliminary injunction is warranted because of the continuing, imminent and 

irreparable nature of the damage being caused based on the enforcement of the challenged 

statutes. This harm wi~l continue if a preliminary injunction does not issue. 

The Plaintiff has already suffered irreparable injury at the hands of the defendant due 

to the loss of consortium between himself and his SOlls. There is no remedial measure that 

can restore the time and experience lost between a parent and child when the state wrongly 

steals a child from the parent. The potential harm caused by the state's oppressive practice 

whereby it swoops down and snatches children, with no due process safeguards whatsoever, 

eclipses the state's alleged motives to protect the best interests of children. The state's 

warped, fascist-like actions have the potential of causing more harm than they prevent. 

Every day that the state is allowed to break up families and effect de facto terminations of 

parental rights under the challenged statutes, results in irreparable injury to the people of 

Montana. Without an injunction issuing from this court, the defendants will continue to 

overstep their bounds, operating on their own ex ante conclusions, rather than findings of 

fact and conclusions of law that would result if the state of Montana subscribed to the 

concept that citizens are entitled to due process of law. 
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V. 

CONCLUSION 

The defendants' assertion of power is admitted and absolutely clear: they claim the 

authority to take a child from their parents and terminate their parental rights, with 

nothing more than a showing of probable cause to investigate allegations of abuse. This 

scheme violates the most fundamental concepts of due process. It is a scheme worthy of 

the most despicable tyrants and treasonous usurpers of basic human rights, a description 

that aptly describes judge Harkin in particular, and the members of the Montana state 

judicial system and their executive branch cohorts generally. Without the intervention of 

this court, the usurpation of rights and rule by the whim of bureaucrats, rather than by 

rule of law, will continue unimpeded. 

A parent who has lost his or her children has little else left to lose. There are few 

situations which would cause a law abiding citizens to exercise their first prerogative of self 

government: that right which was exercised to the detriment of many a British soldier in 

the year 1776. Having one's children kidnapped by gestapo-like government agents is one 

such situation. The federal courts are the next-to-Iast resort that citizens have to remedy 

the actions complained of herein. It is imperative that this court act, so that We, the 

People, need not reach that last resort. 
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Ladies and Gentlemen I am here today to speak in 
C";Iu mJ __ . __ .::5 6. 2o~ 

support of --.. -... --------

senate Bill 206. I have no intentions of speaking poorly or 

against the Child Protective System of Montana. I do however, 

have a story to tell all of it fact! 

I have a friend who came from a home in Central Montana 

where he was raised with traditional Christian values and 

beliefs by his mother and grandmother and, the home was in my 

opinion abuse free. My friend attended University of Montana 

in Missoula at age 18. Briefly before dropping out to pursue 

his true career love" Law Enforcement". He applied to several 

agencies in the area but, due to poor economic conditions at 

this time he was unable to find work. During this period he 

met a girl and fell in love and got married at age 19. Due 

to the added responsibility of a wife they moved to Billings Mt. 

Where he figured they had a better chance of being financially 

able to support a family. He worked at various jobs including 

starting his own company yet still testing for any Law Enfor-

cemen~ positions that came along. In April 1987 he was 20 

when their first child was born, this was the proudest moment 

of his lifetime. But due to the added responsibility of a child 

he became even more diligent in finding a means of support for 

his family. 

He soon realized that if he was going to make it in Law Enfor-

cement that he needed some formal training. So he received his 

Associate of Applied Science Degree in Law Enforcement in June 

1990 . He was 22years of age. 

During this two year period his wife began showing a severe 

lack of responsibility as well as disclosing memories of past 

abuse from both her father and older sister of sexual and physical 



a 1 .e. My friend and his wife attended numerous counseling sessions 

to address her anger,pain; .abuse and their marital problems, 

however, his wife was apparently unwilling to address the problems, 

or at best unable too. Subsequently they divorced in Febuary 

1990. She was given primary custody of the child. In March 

1990 she called her ex-husband threatening suicide' because 

she had broken up with a boyfriend.) Her ex-husband advised her 

to get some professional help. He also volunteered to help by 

taking the child early( before his summer visits) so as she 

could get her problems worked out with out the pressure and 

responsibility of raising and caring for a child, she agreed. 

Soon after he took custody he saw some glaring signs of 

physical abuse on his daughter. After numerous phone visits 

with her sister who she (ex-wife) had lived with, he confirmed 

that not only abuse was going on but, his ex-wife was also 

using illegal drugs. Which resulted in the sister kicking her 

out, his ex-wife was now living in her car. Due to all these 

circumstances my friend returned to court to gain full custody 

of his daughter, it was granted. During the time of custody in 

Glendive he continued school and provided the best of daycare 

and babysitters for his daughter when he was away. He and his 

daughter had a relationship that rivaled any father - d~ughter 

relationship I've ever seen. She was ecstatic when he would 

pick her up from daycare. They often played in the yard, at the 

park,and played games in the house before her bedtime. They 

also attended church on sundays. 

During this time her mother never called to visit or to talk 

to her daughter. Her mother wrote two cards of which were read 

~_.&- ____ .L __ _ 
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did she ever inquire or ask about her mother. 

In August 1990 my friend and a classmate moved to Lolo, Mt 

to put their college degrees to work either as security guards 

or police officers. However,nothing was available at this time 

so they both went to work at a retail store in Missoula" This 

arrangement worked out well at first as one would work during 

the day the other at night. My friends daughter was always with 

a responsible adult. Soon however, their work schedules became 

the same and the need for daycare arose. As funds were extremely 

tight and all daycare center's rosters full, my friends ex-wife's 

parents volunteered to watch his daughter for a few hours every 

day when he worked. He was of course extremely sceptical 

because of all the stories he had heard but, after several 

visits that were monitored by my friend. He felt more at ease 

leaving his daughter with the maternal grandparents. At about 

this time the mother moved back into the area and my friend and 

his ex-wife began talking reconciliation, after a lot of 

convi~cing conversation from his ex-wife and her family. 

In September 1990 his daughter had blood in her urine which 

was noticed by the maternal grandmother during an extra visit. 

My friend immediately took his daughter to a clinic where she 

was diagnosed with a urinary tract infection. The doctor did 

not alert anyone to the possibility that a three year old girl 

with a urinary tract infection may have been sexually abused. 

So no action was taken except typical treatment of the infection. 

In October 1990 they found out that they were going to be 

blessed with their second child. Again my friend diligently 

pursued his career and volunteered for more hours at his current 

job. His ex-wife for no apparent reason quit her joh 



Approximately 1 week before Thanksgiving 1990 my iriendarid 

his ex-wife went over to the grandparent's house to pick-up their 

daughter. When they arrived they found there daughter sitting 

on the floor in what I would describe as a listless state; she 
~~o 

appeared to have~her personality completely removed. She wasn't 

happy to see her father or mother, she wasn't interested in any 

kind of activity: play,eating sleep,television, nothing. When 

my friend inquired as to the reason for this behavior or rather 

the lack of behavior, the grandparents responded "SHE'S BEEN LIKE 

THIS ALL DAY". When mother and father questioned their daughter 

at home; she stated that her grandfather had hurt her. When 

asked how she was unable to state how, just that he said bad 

things about her dad. Mom and dad were to say the least 

OUTRAGED. However , after a visual exam by mom and dad no signs 

of physical abuse were found. So to prevent any further instances 

they wrote a letter to the grandparents condemning their actions 

and denying any further visits with their granddaughter. That 

was the end, so they thought. 

Soon after my friend and ex-wife moved to California (approx. 

June 1991) his daughter now 4 years old and my friend now 24 

years old. He got a job as a security guard and advanced 

through the ranks rapidly, he worked many 16-18 hour days due 

to his training and level head. 

His daughter spent time with her father but most was spent 

with her mother at home. In August 1991 my friends ex-wife 

gave birth to a boy. Both were very happy. however, problems 

soon arose. Their daughter who had developed a stuttering 

problem early 
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¥toblemS ea.~t jjY 1991; this became so bad that the child was 

unable to say two words with out stuttering. This was assumed 

to be a typical developmental problem that she should out grow. 

The main issue was his daughter's behavior problem. It was 

reported to him by his ex-wife, that his daughter would:·Get 

up in the night and wander off, play with kitchen knives, break 

glass hide it, and most disturbing of all she had allegedly 

attempted suicide and spoke of going to heaven. My friend 

never saw any of this behavior but, took his ex-wife at her word 

and made arrangements for a visit with a counselor. After the 

visit with the counselor she was unable to draw any positive 

conclusions but, recommended "intensive therapy" 3-4 times a 

week. Which was more than acceptable to my friend. :&f oerae 

At this time their daughter was yelling and screaming at both 

her mom and dad saying " she hated both of them and did not want 

to go with them". This shocked them both. As they all left the 

counselors office their daughter tried to jump out of the moving 

car. This was the first time my friend saw any suicidal inten-

tions by his daughter. Immediately they returned to advise the 

counselor of the incident. The counselor admitted the child 

to the county PSYC WARD. 

Two days later my friend was called to the CRIMES AGAINST 

CHILDREN DIVISION OF THE SHERIFFS DEPT. on suspicion of sexually 

abusing his daughter. When he asked the detective how and where 

he got this information. He told my friend that his daughter 

had told the detective and counselors that her had molested her. 

The detective told my friend that 4 year olds dont lie so he 

knows she is telling the truth. My friend spent 3 hours trying 

to convince the detective that he didn't do this horrid act and 



advised him of the previous suspicions he had of the grandfather 

as well as other possible scen~rio's including coaching. This 

proved to be a futile attempt as his daughter was immediately 

removed from his custody and placed in a less than acceptable 

foster home. Here his daughter was told that daddy was'bad and 

daddy did bad things to her and himself and to mommy. To make 

matters worse my friends daughter was not examined for abuse 

for almost a month after placement. My friend had to schedule 

supervised visits with his daughter and son at the DEPARTMENT 

of PUBLIC SOCIAL SERVICES/ CHILD PROTECTIVE SERVICES office 

for a hour a week. He further had to move out of his apartment 

and live in a hotel as he was under a restraining order by his 

ex-wife. Approximately twice a month my friend was in court 

but, court was always continued as " new evidence" kept surfacing, 

such as my friend was a cross dresser ,used drugs,tied his 

children up, cut parts of his children's bodies off, and the 

list goes on and on. This subjected my friend to random drug 

test which was no problem for him as his illegal drug use was 

a complete joke ; He is however , a insulin dependent diabetic 

he takes med~~ation for that, he gets headaches and takes some 

aspirin, occasionally he gets an allergy attack which he takes 
VV'ft? 

a pill for and, last he smokes cigarettes. This drug use~not 

investigated or sustained or even inquired about ,nor were any 

of the other ludicrous allegations investigated, he was 

presumed gui 1 ty, 

" My friend was forced to putAhlS pursuit of being a cop 

on hold, until this ordeal was over and he was cleared . My 

friend then took some very poor legal advice and took his all 

time pet peav . A plea bargain which was that he had knowledge 
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of abuse and neglect but did not know the perpetrator. With 

the guarantee of his attorney that in 6 months he would have 

his kids back. Now his son was removed and placed in a separate 

foster home because his ex-wife was suspected of physically 

abusing their son. 

The DEPARTMENT of PUBLIC SOCIAL SERVICES/ CHILD PROTECTIVE 

SERVICES reunification plan required both parties to attend 

sexual abuse group therapy, parenting classes, and private 

counseling to address sexual abuse issues as well as participate 
Coml'L~D 

in co-counseling, with his daughter. My friend nomp'i@d all 

of the above requirements except co-counseling with his daughter 

because his daughters counselor would not allow this to happen. 

My friends ex-wife didn't attempt to complete anything. My 

friend during this time had to deal with four different 

social workers two of which presumed him guilty with out 

investigation. Two foster homes for his son one of which 

purposely sabotaged visits by scheduling doctor appointments, 

pictu~e appointments ect. during visits. One foster home for 

his daughter in which the foster parent manipulated his daughter 

to what they wanted and to quote the social worker " is using 

her for her (the foster mother) own selfish needs". This was 

accomplished by co~ching his daughter to say anything damning 

about her dad, sending spies to monitor private visits between 

social worker and child , giving birthday and christmas gifts 

from dad to the less fortunate, dreaming up negative behaviors 

from his daughter after visits with father ( I say dreaming 

because none of the social workers witnessed any unusual 

behavior from his daughter even hours after the visits with dad 

were concluded. These dreams (lies) resulted in the termination 



of visits with her father, because they were detrimental to 

her well being. 

My friend had to drive to another town to visit his son 

once a week. He had to drive approximately 85-90 miles to 

court one way. He had to drive 95 miles one way to see"a 

counselor. 40 miles to group therapy and still hold a full time 

job and sleep. All these trips were of course on different 

days and times~epeated over again each and every week. 

My friend went .. so far as to subject him self to a 

polygraph test at his own expense, to prove beyond a doubt he 

was innocent. The results" no signs of deception". 

The initial intake interview in the hospital PSYC WARD was 

video taped however , when the counselor wanted a yes answer 

he/she would nod there head. When a no answer was required they 

woul] shake their head. None of the subsequent interviews were 

taped All "new evidence" was gained from a 4 year old at the 

foster home with foster parent present or some neutral spot with 

foster parent present. It doesn't seem to me to be fair to a 

child or parent to conduct a so called investigation this way. 

Sexual abuse of a child or any living person is a very serious 

crire and should be severely dealt with. However, sexual abuse 

has turned into a modern day witch hunt, which is wrong why do 

we punish parents and children that don't deserve this? Why 

take such a drastic measure such as removal of ones children 

on unsubS'tanciated allegations ? 
'-..;0 

I feel that the social 

workers of child protective agencies nation wide have a huge 

and stressful responsibility as they can make or break a family 

unit in the blink of an eye. I don't want to talk poorly about 



® EXHIBIT 5" 
DATL-E ----=,;;.:::...--~b'---_q~)?_ 
~l ~~ __ ~5~lB~~cr_O __ b~_ 

the numerous workers or agencies in fact I want to compliment and 

commend all of them for protecting those children who were truly 

in dangerous situations but, maybe, just maybe some became over 

zealous or power hungry and~omething wrong. This is why I 

support Senate Bill 206 it creates a few more checks and'balances 

to prevent a terrible mistake. I further feel that social workers; 

law enforcement, counselors and medical personal need to have 

more investigative training and abuse / neglect recognition 

training. These hopes and desires of mine now become your 

responsibility please take it upon yourselves as law makers 

and professionals to fill in the gaps. 

Well in conclusion let me finish this story. After three 

plus years of fighting for his children my friend in the social 

workers eyes didn't do enough therefore, her recommendation 

was this: My friends daughter is now 7 soon to be 8 will remain 

in the same foster horne until she is a legal adult (18 yrs). 

No visits or contact from her father. Even though this is not 

a go00 spot for his daughter. The social worker states" THE 

GOOD OUT IvEIGHS THE BAD. SHE'S BONDED TO THE FAMILY". 

My friends son, now 3~ years old is an adoptable child. Even 

though none of the allegations were found to be true; in the 

eyes of the court. "If he were returned to his father he 

would be at risk" Therefore on January 23rd 1995 my friends 

parental rights were terminated. Th~ taking any contact what 

so ever away from father and son. 

My friend, well, that's me 1 lived this nightmare!!! I moved 

back to Montana with my new fiance' who has been my strength 

through almost all of this whole ordeal. I have had severe 

close calls with my diabetes requiring hospitalization. I have 



lost 30% of my kidneys due to the stress and, several run-ins 

with severe depressions. Now we'll try to start over, my fiance' 

Ida and I. 

The mother went to only 5 or 6 of the court dates. Left the 

state moved in with a boyfriend left him, moved bat~ home with 

her mom and dad, moved back to California for about 1 month, 

fell in love got married moved to Texas, got divorced, moved 

back in with mom and dad's to go with her new boyfriend who 

drives trucks across country. It is unknown if she has attempted 

to contact the children in the last year. 

This all happened in the state of CALIFORNIA how everftt 

can happen anx=Yhere 

THANK YOU FOR THIS OPPORTUNITY AND YOUR TIME! 
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TO OUR FRIENDS AND FAMILY: 

:Xr!!~'fr :i~L_~L-~­
\;!,rf-__ ~_,".? ~,,:=?~ 
~:i.J FrJ __ 56 ~J~. ,~ 

RON AND JOAN AUSTAD 
100 RIVERVIEW C 

GREAT FALLS, MT 59404 
452-5804 work 

761-4192 home 

WE ARE WRITING TO ASK FOR YOUR SUPPORT ON NOV. 28TH. AT 9:00 AM IN JUDGE 
LARSON'S COURT (CASCADE COUNTY COURT HOUSE IN GREAT FALLS). 

THIS IS A BRIEF BACKGROUND OF WHAT HAS TRANSPIRED: 

IN APRIL OF 1992, TERRY MURRAY, (INVESTIGATOR FOR DEPARTMENT OF 
FAMILY SERVICES) CALLED OUR SON, KEN BAILEY, AND SAID HE NEEDED TO BRING HIS 
TWO CHILDREN, BRITINEY, 2 1\2 YEARS OLD, AND JACOB, 4 1\2 MONTHS OLD, UP TO 
HER OFFICE. TERRY MURRAY FELT THAT BECKY, 4 YEARS OLD, AND NOT KEN'S 
NATURAL CHILD HAD BEEN MOLESTED. SHE STATED THAT BECKY HAD NAME KEN AS 
THE PERPETRATOR. ALSO, AT THAT TIME THEY TOOK GINGER'S, (KEN'S WIFE) 
CHILDREN CARRIE AND ANDY. KEN OFFERED TO LEAVE THE HOME SO CARRIE AND 
ANDY COULD REMAIN WITH THEIR MOTHER, BUT TERRY MURRAY SAID SHE WAS CO­
DEPENDENT, SO THEY REMOVED THEM AND PLACE THEM WITH HER PARENTS. KEN'S 
CHILDREN WERE PLACED IN A FOSTER HOME ALONG WITH BECKY. 

KEN WAS FIRST ORDERED TO TAKE A SEXUAL EVALUATION WHICH INCLUDED 
BOTH A WRITIEN AND ORAL EVALUATION, POLYGRAPH AND PLETHYSMOGRAPH. 
THERE HAS SINCE BEEN SEVERAL OTHER COURT ORDERS ASKING FOR PARENTING 
CLASSES, ANGER MANAGEMENT CLASSES, AND A SUBSTANCE ABUSE EVALUATION, 
ALL OF THESE TESTS AND CLASSES HE HAS COMPLETED AND PASSED. 

IT HAS BEEN TWO YEARS SINCE KEN HAS SEEN HIS DAUGHTER, AND HAS NOT 
SEEN HIS SON SINCE JANUARY OF 1994. 

KEN WAS SERVED WITH PAPERS TO SEVER HIS PARENTAL RIGHTS AND PUT 
THE CHILDREN UP FOR ADOPTION IN MAY OF 1994. 

JOAN HAS REQUESTED UNSUPERVISED VISITATION WITH OUR 
GRANDCHILDREN ON SEVERAL OCCASIONS AND HAS BEEN DENIED BECAUSE WE 
BELIEVE OUR SON IS NOT A PEDOPHYLE AND THEY DO NOT FELL SHE WILL PROTECT 
THEM. 

FAMILY SERVICES TOOK OUR GRANDCHILDREN ON THE PRESUMPTION THAT OUR SON 
HAD MOLESTED THEM. HE HAS NEVER BEEN CHARGED, AND ALL OF HIS EVALUATIONS 
ORDERED BY THE COURTS HAVE CAME BACK TO IMPLY THAT NO GUILT EXISTS. YET, AFTER 
TWO AND A HALF YEARS WITHOUT OUR CHILDREN, THOUSANDS OF DOLLARS IN COURT 
ORDERED EVALUATIONS AND ATIORNEY FEES, THE FIGHT FOR OUR CHILDREN GOES ON. 
NOW THEY WANT OUR SONS PARENTAL RIGHTS SO THAT THE STATE CAN PUT THEM UP FOR 
ADOPTION, 

THEY HAVE HELD OUR GRANDCHILDREN HOSTAGE FROM US, OUR SON, AND OTHER 
FAMILY MEMBERS WHILE WE'VE JUMPED THROUGH THEIR HOOPS AND SPENT THOUSANDS 
OF DOLLARS. BUT MOST OF ALL IS THE PAIN THAT THE CHILDREN HAVE HAD TO GO THROUGH 
BY BEING REMOVED FROM THEIR FAMILY AND HOME AND PUT WITH STRANGERS, AS WELL AS 
THE ANGUISH WE HAVE GONE THROUGH DOING WITHOUT OUR CHILDREN AND HAVING 
SOMEONE ELSE MAKING THE DECISION AS TO HOW THEY SHOULD BE RAISED, PLUS HAVING 



TO LEAVE THE CHILDREN AFTER A ONE HOUR VISITS KNOWING IT WILL BE AT LEAST ANOTHER 
MONTH BEFORE WE CAN SEE THEM AGAIN. 

I THOUGHT WE LIVED IN A FREE COUNTRY, YET, WE'VE BEEN AFRAID TO SAY OR DO 
ANYTHING THAT WOULD GO AGAINST FAMILY SERVICES FOR FEAR THAT IT MIGHT JEOPARDIZE 
THE RETURN OF OUR GRANDCHILDREN TO THEIR HOME. 

HOW CAN THIS HAPPEN? WE ARE LAW ABIDING CITIZEN WHO ARE ONLY GUILTY OF 
LOVING OUR CHILDREN AND GRANDCHILDREN AND WE CAN'T SIT STILL ANY LONGER WHILE 
FAMILY SERVICES DESTROY FAMILIES IN THE NAME OF PROTECTING CHILDREN AND WE THE 
TAX PAYERS PAY THEM TO DO IT. WE CAN NOT UNDERSTAND THE POWER THAT FAMILY 
SERVICES HAS, AND WHY THEY ARE IMMUNE TO THE LAW WE MUST ABIDE BY, "OF INNOCENT 
UNTIL PROVEN GUILTY." 

OUR FIGHT IS ALSO FOR MANY OTHER FAMILIES WHO WE DON'T KNOW, BUT WHO TOO 
HAVE FELT THE INJUSTICE OF OUR SYSTEM. IF YOU ARE ONE OF THESE FAMILIES OR IF YOU 
JUST FEEL LIKE THE SYSTEM HAS GONE AMUCK, WE NEED YOUR SUPPORT TO BALANCE THE 
SCALES OF JUSTICE. 

WE WILL BE GOING TO COURT TO FIGHT THE DEPARTMENT OF FAMILY SERVICES FOR 
THE RIGHT TO HAVE OUR GRANDCHILDREN REMAIN IN OUR FAMILY. IF YOU ARE UNABLE TO 
ATTEND THIS COURT HEARING A LETTER STATING YOUR OPINION WOULD BE GREATLY 
APPRECIATED. 

THANK YOU FOR YOUR SUPPORT AND YOUR PRAYERS 

YOURS TRULY 

RON AND JOAN AUSTAD AND FAMILY 

.. ... 
+'+:~~!i;!~!~±1i;$±~!;i?£~! +;. 



EXHIBIT_ ........ 7 __ _ 
DATE.. ,;2.--10"- q '5 

Montana 

The Last Best Place? 

In their fiscal year 1992, the Montana State Department of Family Services 
removed over 3,300 children from their homes and placed them in state funded foster 
homes. With the state child population less than 180,000, this raises some very 
disturbing questions. Coupled with the fact that Montana, listed among the lowest states 
in crime and population, is ranked 2nd in the nation in reported child abuse cases. Is 
this a state of child abusers and molesters. Or is this a state whose children and families 
are pawns in political power games? 

In 1992, San Antonio, Texas, 12th largest city in the nation, with a population of 
over 360,000, twice Montana's child population, their Department of Family Services 
investigated 8,302 cases of reported child abuse involving almost 13,000 children. With 
the 6th highest crime rate in the nation, they "constitutionally", in accordance with due 
process of the law, substantiated 3,524 cases of abuse, involving 5,414 children. Yet, 
they only removed 945. If, as the Montana State Department of Family Services claims, 
that they are "about average" in the percentage of children removed from the home, then, 
according to these "average" statistics, DFS had to have investigated 29,057 cases, 
involving 55,674 children, finding 12,334 cases of substantiated abuse involving 18,949 
children. 

Montana San Antonio 
Total Population @800,OOO @873,000 
Child Population @189,000 @367,000 
#Cases Investigated 29,057 8,302 
Children involved 44,674 12,764 
Cases substantiated 29,057 3,524 
Children involved 18,949 5,414 
Children removed 3,310 945 
Removal rate 3.6% .43% 
Foster care budget 16+ million 7 million 
Total budget 101 million 40 million 

According to these statistics, almost 20% of families with children in the state of 
Montana could fall suspect through investigation by the Department of Family Services. 
The question again: is this a state of child abusers and molesters? Or is this a horrible 
example of a department out of control; a department that stands alone in its dealings, 
free to operate beyond the safeguards guaranteed by the Constitution of The United 
States? In America, could you be removed from your home and placed under 
confinement for an indefinite amount of time, unaware of the charges against you and 
powerless to seek recourse? Of course not. Unless you are dealing with the Montana 
State Department of Family Services. Then the freedoms and rights that this country 
were built upon are lost. Is Montana truly the last best place? Not if you love your family. 
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". February 2, 1995 

State Capital 
- Capital Station - Box 14 

Attn: Senator Jim Burnett 
Helena, MT 59620 

Dear Senator Burnett: 

Pursuant to our telephone call of February 1, 1995, enclosed are articles my finance' and I wrote to the Roundup Record 
Tribune as well as other articles which have appeared regarding the Department of Family Services. Following is the 

.. scenario which happened to me, my daughter and my finance'. We believe it is about time DFS was made to stand 
accountable for their actions and support your Senate Bill 206. If we can be of any further help please feel free to call us 
at (406) 323-1451. 

A verbal exchange occurred on May 8th between Kara, my daughter, and myself. My fiance', Karen Kowalczyk, was 
also present. We had gone out for "Mother's Day Dinner" around 3:00 p.m. After dinner and returning home, I told 
Kara we were going to finish fencing the dog kennel. Karen and I had already started the kennel, setting the posts in 

... concrete and stringing part of the cyclone fence for the dogs. I told Kara that beings it was for her dog, as well as 
Karen's, that she could help and with three of us working on it, it wouldn't take very long to complete it. Kara then 
proceeded to pout all the way home making for a very tense and uncomfortable atmosphere. Upon arriving at home, Kara 
and I exchanged words because she didn't want to help with the fence. Kara went to her room, slamming the door. We ,.. 

.... 

went in to change clothes. Before we got changed, Kara tore out of the house, got in my pickup and was gone. We had 
no idea where she was headed, but figured she was headed out to Curtis Goffena's , her boyfriend, because that is where 
she wanted to go. Karen and I went out to work on the dog kennel. Later that day, around 5:30, we got a telephone 
call from Vicki Fawcett, of Department of Family Services, saying Kara was up at the Sheriffs Office and had filed a 
complaint against me alleging child abuse. We have yet to see a copy of the complaint. There was absolutely no abuse 
involved in this whole exchange. I also asked that Kara be returned home so we could sit down and discuss the whole 
situation and that was denied by Vicki Fawcett. 

Because Kara is a minor (16), Department of Family Services was called. DFS called me and indicated that Kara could 
come back home after a 48 hour "cooling off' period. However, after 48 hours I was told to come up and sign papers to 
place Kara in foster care. I questioned why she was not being returned home after the 48 hours and was told "because 
we feel it is a .threatening situation." No investigation was ever done. To our knowledge, the Department of Family 
Services did not appear in District Court within 48 hours to show cause why the child had to be removed from the family 
home. No investigation was ever done in our home to find out if the child was telling the truth. I went up to DFS and talked 
to Michelle Sobonya and she explained to me that it was in Kara's best interest to be placed in a foster home. 

When I questioned the choice of foster home, I was told Kara had requested she be placed with Betty Goffena and that 
is where DFS was placing her. I questioned the placement of Kara at Betty Goffena's because Betty Goffena was not a 
licensed foster care home and that Curtis Goffena, Kara's boyfriend, has a mobile home and lives on the same property 
apprOXimately 50 yards from Betty's back door. I felt this was not a safe or healthy situation that Kara had expressed 
wanting to live with Curtis, however DFS did not see anything wrong with this as this is where Kara wanted to be. I then 
told DFS I was holding them totally responsible for my daughter. 

I did not admit to any of Kara's allegations of abuse. I admitted to having an argument with Kara regarding the building 
of the dog kennel and that we had exchanged words in this regard. But not once was there any abuse - just an exchange 
between myself and my daughter. 

I am self employed and have my own construction building business. I was scheduled to be out of town most of the 
summer. I did come home, however, on weekends to see my family and take care of business. I had told DFS what my 
situation was and asked that they keep Karen apprised of the situation as I would be talking to her in the evening. DFS 



agreed at that time to this arrangement. Karen contacted DFS on several occasions to find out if an appointment could 
be made so I could call in or if I could reach a counselor after hours as I was up in the mountains, away from a telephone 
from 7:00 a.m. un!:1 6:00 - 6:30 p.m. every day. I was informed of the office hours and that I would have to call in at that 
time. Karen explained to DFS that this was impossible, that I was concerned about Kara and wanted to find out how 
she was doing, but again was INFORMED that these were the hours and I could call collect during that time. Karen told 
them the collect cal: part wasn't the problem - the hours were because I was at least a 1/2 hours drive away from a 
telephone and could not leave my partner on the job by himself because of the risk factor of an accident. DFS was not 
willing to make any concessions so I could talk to them. 

Within 20 days after Kara was removed from home, I have no knowledge of DFS returning to District Court to show cause 
why the separation must continue. 

Only one mediation meeting was ever set up for me and my daughter. Present at that meeting were Michelle Sobonya, 
social worker for DFS, Curtis, Kara's boyfriend, Kara and myself. This meeting was supposed to be between only myself, 
Kara and Michelle so we could work on getting Kara back in the family home. Having Kurt there made the meeting very 
uncomfortable. Some 10 to 15 minutes into the meeting Michelle Sobonya was called away on an "emergency". Kara, 
Curtis and I were left to finish the meeting on our own. If I was such a threat to my daughter, why was it okay to leave us 
alone in an unsupervised situation? No attempt was made to set up further meetings between my daughter and I. 

Michelle signed an agreement, on t:>ehalf of DFS saying that we would be informed of any medical or dental attention Kara 
needed and it was "by chance" ,lat we found out she had her wisdom teeth out. We were never even informed of that 
fact that she needed this work done. Kara was at her Grandfather's house and Karen happened to stop in to talk to my 
sister who was visiting from Minneapolis. Kara had gone to change some gauze in her mouth. Karen asked Kara what 
was wrong 2nd Kara told her about her oral surgery. We were never contacted by DFS about the dental work Kara had 
done. She also later found out that Kara had a mole removed and there were some telltale signs of pcssible cancer so 
Sf";; had to go back for more tests. We were never told about this either. We found out about it through one of Kara's 
teachers in whom she had confided. 

In July, Kara was allowed to take a trip out of state with the approval of DFS. We were never told about the trip and found 
out about it only after someone asked if Kara had gotten back from Idaho. Again DFS had signed an agreement stating 
we would be kept informed of what was going on and yet she went to Idaho without our knowledge. 

I had also asked for periodic progress reports on meetings Kara was having with Donna Johnson, a counselor, over in 
Billings. This was never done. I were told she was going, but was never told of the outcome or when we might be able 
to meet as a family unit so as to resolve any issues that may be present. 

In August I was served with a "Petition for Temporary Investigative Authority and Protective Services". This is the first 
document through this whole ordeal I had ever seen regarding the charges which were being held against me. Due to 
the lack of communication on behalf of DFS, I refused to sign the documents and hired an attorney, Randy Spaulding. 

I decided to try and settle this wj~;'out the help of DFS. Vicki Knudsen, Musselshell/Golden Valley County Attorney, Flo"j 
Brower, Guardian at Litem for Kara, our attorney Randy Spaulding, myself and my fiance' Karen Kowalczyk, met ar.::; 
reviewed a document dr;::~ed by Floyd Brower to keep Kara at the Goffena Ranch. I again questioned the fact of Kara 
living with her boyfriend with Floyd Brower admitting that Kara and Curtis were in fact sleeping together. Kara being 16 
years old and her boyfriend being 21. Floyd Brower and Vicki Knudsen didn't seem concerned even though I was 
objecting to my daughter being out there. I signed the document as I was threatened to be taken to court and it was in 
Kara's best interest that I signed it. 

Things seemed to go along fine until Kara and her boyfriend Curtis Goffena split up. On October 28th, Kara asked Bette 
Goffena if she could spend that Friday night in town with one of her friends. To this Bette agreed. Evidentally, Bette 
didn't gi\':: Kara a speCific time to return home and began to worry about her. On Saturday, October 29th, Bette sent Kurt, 
now the ex-boyfriend, in to town to find Kara. Evidentally Kurt said some nasty things to Kar. rd an argument ensued. 
The local police were called and things were broke up. Later Vicki Knudsen picked Kara up 3r,j took her to the ja:'. Kara 
was taken into custody and Kurt was allowed to leave. According to Kara and in front of Kara's friends, Vicki swore at 
her and told her how inconvenient it was to be called as she was in the middle of fixing a hole in her daughter's waterbed 
and because she had to take Kara to Billings, she would miss her daughter's ball game and took Kara to the jail where 



"" she sat for approximately four hours. Kara was taken to Billings and placed in a Youth Detention Center. I was never 
infonned about her being sent to the facility, or being held in jail, and it was not until my sister-in-law called the following 
day, October 30th, did we find out that she was over there. I still, to this date, do not know what charges were placed 

.... against her to warrant her time at the detention center. I was never told when she would be allowed to leave. I told my 
attorney, who contacted Vicki, Donna and Floyd that I wanted Kara to come back home rather than being locked up in 
the center. I was never told what the rules as far as telephoning and visiting with Kara while at the facility. Kara finally 
found out the only people who could call her were myself, my father and his new wife, and her mother. Kara indicated 

... she needed some clothes, shoes and miscellaneous personal items. We asked her if she was permitted to leave the 
facility and she said yes but it had to be arranged 24 hours in advance. 

... On November 2nd I contacted Donna Marmon, County Probation Officer, requesting to take Kara out of the facility to get 
her the clothing items she needed. Donna indicated she would have to talk with Floyd Brower, Guardian at Litem for his 

. approval. I had not heard from her by Friday, November 4, and our 24 hours was drawing to a close. I tried to reach 
Donna at home but only got her answering machine so left a message seeking permission. Because of the 24 hour 

... window, I called Floyd Brower myself. Floyd said Donna Marmon had not contacted him but as far as he was concerned 
he didn't have a problem with my taking Kara shopping. Donna Marmon then called back and said she would not give 
me permission to take her out of the facility, but would not offer an explanation as to why. 

On November 12th, Kara called home and talked to Karen as I was helping at a Rotary Auction. Kara indicated that "a 
friend of my mom's" was taking her on Sunday and she needed some money. She said Donna Marmon was coming to 
Billings to take Kara to the Girls Basketball Tournament and would she get hold of her and send some money over with 

... her. Karen called Donna Marmon at home and tried to explain the situation, however was met with a very rude and 
belligerent "You don't have telephone privileges and I won't talk to you" from Donna Marmon. Donna then slammed the 
receiver down. Karen tried to call her back within a few minutes to see what the problem was and only got her answering 

... machine. 

Kara was finally released on Tuesday, November 15th. Even though I had told my attorney, Vicki Knudsen and Donna 
Mannon, I wanted Kara to come back to the family home, Kara was told that was not an option for her. Her options were 

'" to either go live with the mother who abandoned her at age 11 or go to another youth detention facility. Not wanting to 
go to another facility, Kara agreed to go live with her mother in BOise, Idaho. Brenda Lekse, had to pick Kara up at the 
Youth Facility and bring her to Roundup. Donna and Vicki would not let Kara even stay in town overnight. She had to 

"" be driven back to Billings and then come back on Wednesday for a meeting with Donna. Brenda was included in the 
meeting with Donna Marmon, however, I was not. Kara claims that Donna wrote some additional stipulations into the 
Petition after everyone else had signed, however, we have been unable to get a copy of this document to find out if in fact 
Donna did write things in there. Kara claims Donna and Vicki told her she could not come back to Roundup to even visit 

.. with her family until Spring break and she could not come back to live in Roundup until after she reached 18. She cannot 
graduate with her class in the spring of 95, nor can she even attend the graduation exercises of her classmates because 
of this stipulation. 

On October 31st, Karen called the Department of Family Services and spoke with the secretary. She requested 
names and telephone numbers of supervisors over DFS in Roundup and was given these. She then called Hank Hudson, 
the State Director at Helena and explained what I had been through. Mr. Hudson said he wouldn't get involved until "all 
other people had been contacted" and I should follow the chain of command. Mr. Hudson informed Karen that she should 
contact Jim Moe in the Lewistown office and have him investigate the matter and if all else failed to call him back. 

November 1, 1994 - Karen spoke with Jim Moe's receptionist. Jim was in Harlowton but she would give him the 
message. She also indicated he was scheduled to come to Roundup the following week. 

November 3rd - Karen spoke with Jim Moe and explained the situation with Kara. Gave Jim names and 
telephone numbers of people to talk to. He indicated he would like to meet with us with November 10th or 15th. He said 
he would investigate the matter and get back to us to set up the meeting. 

November 7th - Talked to Jim Moe. He will meet with us at 3:00 on Thursday November 10th at our home. 
called Randy Spaulding, my attorney to ask him to attend the meeting also. Jim took down all the information and said 
he would investigate the matter and get back to us. 



December 5th - Called Jim Moe regarding status of case. He was on another call but would be given the 
message. 

December 6th - Talked with Jim Moe. He indicated no major thing was done wrong. He felt the case had been 
handled properly, however it should have been handled as a "Child in Need of Supervision" vs. "Child in Need of Care". 

Jan. 10, 1995 - Wrote a lengthy letter to the editor. It was published on January 11th. Consensus of people in 
town was case was handled very improperly and have heard numerous other horror stories along the same lines. (See 
attached copy of article). . 

Senator, hope this helps support your bill. Wish we could be their in person to testify on your behalf. Even though this 
bill will not help us a whole lot, if we can prevent other families from living through the nightmare we have this last year, 
we will have accomplished something. 

We also heard that DFS is asking for an additional $8 million to finance their department. Until they are held accountable 
and can justify the $8 million right up front, we vote that their request be denied. 

Thank you very much for keeping us informed. Please put us on your mailing list so we can keep abreast of what is going 
on with DFS. We are on your side. 
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ing III her dog and helping wilh budd· 
ing J dog kennt.:1. After an exchange 
orwurJs, Ill)' daughter went up lO the: 
polil.'c !:olJtiulI anu filed OJ complaint 
•. dlc.:glllg verhal abu!:oc. Kara b J mi­
nUT, tht:rl.!furc. tht: Dcpanml.!ot of 
Falnily Services (DFS) was called 
OJ'S called Illy Ii nance' and me anJ 
infurt1lcJu~orthc(hargcs. WCJ.'::Ilt:J 
Kara be relurned 10 Ihe family horne. 
Thallhe oi"u"ion was jUsllhal "nd 
nothing more-no threats, \lcrhJI or 
physical "buse ur anYlhing-jusl In 
jjfgulllcnt. HlIwc;vcr, the department 
leI! " 4H hour '"cooling off' perioJ 
Wa:o:. in oH.kr-to thi~ we agreeJ. 

F,\CT: Aner 48 hours and ~O 
in"e~tigatiun. }'()ur child(ren) can 
be plat:td in a non·ro~tercart: home. 

Alter the ''L:04dlng orr' period, we 
were tuld wc h,ld tOL:uille up Jlld ::.ign 
p.ljx:r .... lo put K.II...1 III lu~tL'1 ~""IC. \Vc 
...... ked \1\0 hy ')iI..:,", il ')11 , t heing rL'tul lied 

L.. 
10 'he fJmily home and were lold il 
wa~ a "threatening" environment. 
TIl< home environment was NEVER 
inve"igaled, Iherefore, how could II 
b<.: dctenTlined it was a "threatening" 
cn \I irunment? 

FACT: A childean requesl wh~1 
home Ihey wish 10 be placed in. 

K,lfa had lalked aboulmoving in 
wilh her hoyfriend, Curlis Goffena, a 
couple of weeks before Ihis incidenl 
look place. Being only 16, we lold 
her 'oI.e were very much iJgain~l it. 
However, she reljuesled 10 be placed 
in Belly Goffena's home and was 
granled her requesl by OJ'S. Of'S 
was nol al all concerned aboul Ihe 
fau Curtis lived in a mobile home on 
Ihe same properly as Belly. Even 
after we ex pressed OUfconccrns ~bout 
Ihe silualion and lold Ihem of Ihe 
cOfi\cr~..Ition we had relative to her 
mming in wilh Cunis. they slill lot 
her remJin there. W~ were a~~ureo, 
Ihol as long as Ihe Iwo of Ihem were 
al Beny's house, nOlhing was going 
on. However, we were also laid Ihal 
she spem'"many lale nighL>" wilh her 
ooyfriend. We were recenlly laid 
Ihall f DFS had checked Ihe silualiun 
UUI. W% of !Cara's sluff was al Curtis' 
nOI Belly's. 

FACT: EvenlhoughOFSclaims 
10 be a mtdiator belween family 
members, nothing will be done to 
reunile Ihe family. 

We ",ere luld Ihal DFS would sel 
up mt:::::tlOgs between us and Kara so 
we could once again be a family. In 
[he three months DfS was involved, 
there w~ only one mc=eting set up. 
The meeling which should have been 
C<t'r'l-!.."en immediate f..lmily members, 
as ",ell as Michelle Suoonya from 
DFS, Jbo included Curtis. Aboul 
10-15 minutes into the meeting, 
~Iichdle Sot>onya WaS calkd away 
on ''In emergency'" and my daughler 
and I ""ere left thcre to mediate on 
uur ll"" n. Even though I requcsleJ 
OlJJillunJI mec=tings tht!y were nOl set 
up. 

FACT: If you are working in an 
out oftht! way place and are unable 
10 e""ily gel 10 a Ielephone, DFS 
"ill not make conce~sions as to 
omce hours. 

I" os building acabin in Ihe moun­
lain> aoJ was approximalcly 30·45 
II11nul<.:~ Iinc W'..Jy frO!!l ;, L..:icphnnc. 
We lfied lU gel DFS 10 set up an 
evening and lime I could call in and 
gel periooic updales on Ihe slalUs of 
being rt:uniled with my daughta, only 
10 bt: IOIJ thai the officc hours were 
X I).) J.m. 10 5:UO p.m. and I woulo 
h...l'n': td get loa tclephone at thattirnc. 

FACT: Even Ihough you reo 
4u~t;;t !!pecific penon.as OJ contact 
p<rsun, DFS WILL NOT hunor 
}our request. 

B~,-:Ju'ie I was working in tht:. 
rnuuntJins and aWJY from a tele­
phune, I J>ked OJ'S 10 keep my fi­
.1n...:.:', KJrcn Kowakzyk, intormcJ 
of K...I.IJ·~ progress ",nd any nceds shl! 
m") hJ'e. DFS was always re4uesl· 
jfl~ lhlng!! of Karen, i. c. letting KJrd. 
come gel her pcr~onJI belongings. 
Slt.'n.:u, e!...:. hut would not tell her 
\olr holt 'r'I- JS going on with the case. It 
'r'I-;"IS 'lot until we rerused to sign fur­
ther )JolI<rs tOL:ontinue the foslcrcnre 
JnJ ')l..lfi.cd a~king quc::.tions as the 
I..h:~ lif cUllllTlunication on their PJrI, 
""ert.' .... e told there was a "special 
furm" '" hich needed 10 be signed in 
urJr:r for DFS 10 give her (hIS infor­
ITIJtlon ~(au~e ~hc w'..Js not a "Iegal 
fJlnrl) nlemhcr." 

FACT: Once YOllr chihl(ren) 
OJ rt" pl .. ICl'd ill roster ('are, DFS can 
rt"qll(."';)t .1S IIli1l1y pcr~onal bdollg­
ing") .I, ,Ill'}, red indillecJ to get 

DFS called and asked if we would 
bring all of Kara's personal ilems up 
10 Ihe oflice. To Ihis we agreed. 
After Iransponing all her clolhing, 
make-up, elc. we were Ihen ""ked for 
such ilems as a daybed, lelephone, 
lelevision, horse, piano. elc. lIad I 
nol pUI my fOOl down and slarted 
saying '"NO'" I feellhey would have 
almost emptied my entire home, 

FACT: If your child(ren) ne.:d 
medical allenlion while in Ihe care 
of OFS, you will nol be lold aboul 
il. 

Kara had doctors appoinlnlCnls 
and her wisdom lcelh pulled while 
she was in Ihe care of DFS and even 
though Ihey had signed an agreemenl 
Slaling I would be infonned of dny 
anJ all medical iJllention she was to 
receive I found oul aboul everYlhing 
'"Ihrough Ihe grapevine.'" 

FACT: DFS can give your child 
permission to go out o(state with~ 
out )our knowledge or approval. 

KJra, wilh Ihe penni»i"n of OJ'S, 
w"" allowed to lake a (fip 10 Boise, 
Idaho. I was nOI aware oflhis unlil a 
family member menlioned she hJd 
gone. I would have approved il any· 
way as she v.cntlu visit her mOlht!f, 
bUI shouldn'lI have been consulled 
lirsl or al kasl been lold she was 
going, aher all thai was Ihe agree· 
menl wilh DFS? 

FACT: The Counly Allorney, 
Vicki Knud.;en and Youth Proba· 
liun om(cr, Donna rtlarmon, can 
send your child 10 a Youlh Delen· 
lion Facilily and Ihey do nol have 
to lell you about il. 

K.lJ"a wassenllolhe Billin~s Youlh 
Service FacililY on Salurday, OcIO­
bcr 29, after an altercation with Curtj~. 
We "'ere NEVER called and !Old 
Jbou{ this ot!cision and found out 
about it JJ'ter J telephone! call frum a 
family memher. When we a,ked 
Kara why she didn'l call us, she indio 
ca,ed Ihey lold her she couldn'l call. 
H"v.ever, she cuuld call her Grand­
falheror anolher family member and 
Icll Ihem. Nonnally a child heing 
s~nt 10 a Youth Services Fa-.:dity h~IS 
to he charged ""Ith ~olTle ::.ur! of ...,io· 
lalian. Hov.l!ver. to J.l!C, we hJ\e 
nt!ver been (old eXJctly ...... h3t that 
..... iolation WJS. I Cunis Goffena W;JS 

never r~llrim;Jnded even though. ae­
Lording III l,4{jt11c~~L'.'::I. II..: .... 1.HlL'd Ih(: 
whole allerc"(i0n~ Upon Ihe CounlY 
Allomey, Vicki Knudson,' being 
c<llleJ, K.lrJ, in fronl of wilnes~cs. 
was sworn JI and told how intonve­
nient it was fur Mrs. Knudson to 
come Jown bccJu~c her Ji.lughlL:r 
h'..JJ a hole in her watcrbed whICh 
needed fi}.ing and ::.he was ..Ibo gOIng 
to l1li~s her dJughlcr's b;:..dl g..J.ll1c. 
Whcn a pcr::.on filc::. for.J county job 
and the (UUnly is raying their wagt.:s, 
sinL:e when did J person hJ\ C to UJO­

~ider whal family probkms 'Were 
going on and whetha or not i~ con '.e­
nienl fur Ihem 10 do Iheir jub? l3e­
~iJcs, It was nol Kara's choi<.:c 10 
have Vicki Knuoson called, some­
one cl~c made that Jcc.:bion for her, 
so why was Vrcki laking Ihis oul on 
hd' Is Ihere a personalilY conilici 
here, or ~houlJ thiS person cven ha'.e 
been repfl,:~cllting the county? 

FACT: The Counly Anorney 
and Yuulh Probalion Omce can 
Udictatc" \\ho )our child Gin ~ec 

and 1~lk 10 onre Ihey are placed al 
a YOllih Correclion F~cilily. 

I WJS lold Ihe only people ",h" 
could (.tll K..lra ,"crc her Gri.JOdfdther 
dnd hI::' wife, 11l)'~L"lr. anJ her MI,Hhn 
EVL'II though KJra ..Ind K,lrL'1I gol 
along fl",tlly well, I\.I(CI1 WJ .... ,knicd 
any ..Iud ..III 1..'00 [,11..: t with K,lrJ JI [ttL' 

f...ll..'tlJly even thllugh K.lrJ n:quc::.teJ 
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olherwise. I re4ue;led a four hour 
oUling wilh Kara 10 go shopping and 
oul fordinner as il was Karen's binh· 
day and Kara needed some clolhe,s 
and personal ilems. I was lold I 
needed to make iJrriJngements 24 
hours in iJuvam:c, soon WedncsdJY, 
November 2,1 called Dunna Marmon 
to see if she woulJ make the arrange­
ment!!. I was luld ~hc would consult 
wilh Hoyd Brower, Ihe guardian ad 
lilem for Kara, and gel back 10 me. I 
had nOI heard back from Donna 
Martnon on Friday and was unable 10 

reach her by phone so a message was 
left on her answering machine. I then 
c"lkd Fluyd Ilrower. lie indicaled 
Ihal Donna Marmon had not con· 
tacted him bUI as far as he was con­
cerned, we COULD go shopping wilh 
Kara on Sunday. When Donna fi· 
nally relurned my lelephone call, she 
!Old me I COULD NOT lake my 
dJughleroul orille facililY. I was not 
given a rea~on as to this decision, 
However. Ihe following Sunday, a 
'"friend'" of Kara's mol her (nol a fam· 
ily member) was allowed 10 lake her 
oUI shopping for four hours. 

FACT: Even though your 
child(ren) is placed in a Youlh Fa· 
cililY and you tell the County AI· 
lorney, Prubalion Officer and 
Guardian Ad Litem Ihal you would 
like Ihem back home, )'our child 
will nol be given Ihal oplion. 

KJra was in Ihe Youlh FacililY for 
sevaal days wilhoul being (old when 
she would be able 10 leave. In Ihe 
meantime, ha homework was being 
brought uver to her So she would nol 
get hchinJon her a.s~ignments. ,"'hen 

Ihe CounlY Allurney and Probation 
Officer lalkeo 10 her, Ihe only op· 
lions she wa; given in order 10 leave 
w.!" III ~o I,ve .... 1111 her IllOlh..:r in 

Boise, Idaho, or Het ItUlveO \0 all· 
olher correclion facililY." The 0Plion 
of coming back 10 Ihe family horne, 
even though then! woulJ be 24 hour 
supervision, was nol an option. 

Pruhal ion Olliecr Donna tvt.ULnon, 
CounlY Allorney Vicki Knudson and 
Fluyd firower decided K,lfa was '"A 
chilli in ncell of SUpef\II')ion." After 
.tllthi::. time, six. months to be exact, 
,hc:o:.1.! three "wi~e" people haVe! come: 
to a conclusion. bn', il allliJLing!!! 
This is exacrly ",h,ll KJra rebelled 
agJirhl from the hcginning. KarJ 
had ~upcr\'isi{)n at home: and she 
dldn'lllke it. She wanled more free· 
dum .. lIlJ Ic~s supcrvi~lOn. The: circle 
i~ n~)w complete. K.HJ hiJS been scnt 
to live out of ~Iate with rules and 
gUidelines sci hy Ihe court. The Ihree 
"wi,e"' people hJve reached a con­
clusion and we,lhe fJmily, have been 
pUllhrough undo hJrdship and pain. 

Quc::.tions rcftlJining unanswered 
by {hI...' "three wi~e people" arc: 

-\\'t:rc Ihc~e three "wisc" people 
wor~ing tugethcr? I r ::'0, why ",eren 't 
V\t': abk 10 gCllhc ~alTll.! an::.wer~ frulil 
...III three instcJJ uf being hanJullhc 
run ,Iround'! 

- Old tckplwllc t:OJIIs actu;dly 
t.1~e pl...lcc udwccn the thrce "WI~C" 
peuplc or i\ II J ,,:a~ of CY A! 

-\Yh .. H W,l\ wrung willi K.Jf<l Itv-

ing in Roundup? 
-Did Ihe probalion officer or 

counly anorney have a personal con· 
fliel wilh Kara? 

-Why weren'l Ihe parenls al­
lowed 10 help decioe whal was beSI 
for Ihe child? 

-Why didn'llhe counly invesli­
gale Ihe living arrangements and work 
schedules ofbolh parenls and make a 
decisiun b~cd on fac~, not he..1f~ay. 

-Did Ihe counly aClually con­
sider whal was beSI for Ihe miner 
child or did someone who is in a 
posilion wilh a linle aUlhorilY, lei 
Ihal aUlhorilY go 10 Iheir head and 
iJPpoinl thcmselve~ as the tlecision 
maker'! 

-Was il in Ihe child's beSI inler· 
est to uproot hcr from a community 
she lived in and loved, lake her away 
from friends and a school she looked 
rorward 10 gradualing from in Ihe 
spring, as well as the securilY of a 
supervised home, immediiJte f<.tmily 
and close friends and place her in Ihe 
home of Ihe mother who hod aban, 
doned her only 7 years earlier' 

My fiance', Karen, and I woulJ 
like 10 Ihank everyone for Iheir worJs 
of concern while we have been deal· 
ing wilh Ihis. We have nOlhing 10 
gain from writing Ihis Ieller olher 
Ihan 10 make people aware of whal rs 
going on in our community and with 
our children and possibly prevenlrng 
olhers from having 10 go Ihrough Ihe 
same. We have lived Ihrough a 101 of 
heanache and lense limes due 10 Ihe 
Deparlmenl of Family Service, Ihe 
Counly Probalion Officer, Donna 
Marmon,lhe CounlY Allorney, Vicki 
Knudson, and Allorney, f'loyd 
Brower. We hope Ihal someday Ihey 
will have \0 endure Ihe pme son or 
hL':.t.rI;,.h.:hc. ::.Ircs~ and humiJiJlion they 
hJ,YC pUI III throuHn.. .·Mayb.: Ihen 
they can be a little more compassion. 

; ale and underslanding IOwards Iheir 
fellow cilizens. 



------_._-- .. _._--

To the Taxpayers of Musselshell 
County: 

Do you know what is going on in 
your community when it involves 
your children? Here is an incident 
that happened to me a couple of 
months ago and I feel it is time these 
kind of things are brought to people's 
attention. After all, it is our tax dol­
lars that are paying these peopk's 
wages. Don't you think we deserve 
better treatment than this'! I do ... 

On Saturday, November 12th my 
fiance's daughter, Kara, called our 
home and asked to speak with her 
Dad. Her Dad was helping with the 
Rotary Auction, so Kara and I visited 
for quite ~;ome time on the phone. 
You see, Kara was placed in the 
Youth Services Facility in Billings 
by Mrs. Donna Marmon, Youth Pro­
bation Officer, and Mrs. Vicki 
Knudson, County Attorney, the end 
of October. In our conversation, Kara 
mentioned that she was in need of I 

some money and Mrs. Marmon was 
coming over to take her to the Girls 
Basketball Tournament that evening. 
Kara asked if I would call Mrs. 
Marmon and arrange to get the money 
to her. Not knowing whether or not 
Mrs. Marmon had already left for the 
game, I called her home to explain 
our situation and see if she would 
help. Before I could explain the whole 
conversation, Mrs. Marmon rudely 
and belligerently INFORMED me, 
"You DO NOT have telephone privi­
leges and I will not talk to you." The 
phone was then slammed down on 
the receiver. I tried to call her back 
immediately, in hopes of obtaining 
her help, and alii was able to get was 
her answering machine. 

I have two children of my own 
:lges 18 and 21. I know their needs 
haven't :llways happened between 
the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. 
Monday thru Friday. I have always 
been led to believe a prob:ltion 
officer's job was to help a family 
who's child was in need, whether it 
was 3:00 p.m. or 3:00 a.m. 

After this exchange a lot of ques­
tions have crossed my mind: 

* Since when docs a citizen need 
to be granted "telephone privileges" 
to talk a youth probation officer­
especially since the child involved is 
a family member? 

*lsn't it the duty of the Youth 
Probation officer to work with the 
parents and/or step parents, as well 
as the child, to help the child get back 
on the right path in life? 

*Why was I treated so ruddy? 
Mrs. Marmon was going to see Kura 
anyway. Was I asking too much when 
I needed her to take money to her'! 

* If Mrs. Marrnon treats mein this 
manner, how is she treating children 
and young adults in this community'! 

·What have I ever done to Mrs. 
M.armon to deserve treatment like 
thiS? 

*Is the Youth Probation Officer 
~ositio,n a 5 day a week 8 to .5 posi-
tIOn? -

. *If a child gets into trouble, must 
II be between 8 a.m. and 5 p.m. Mon­
day thru Friday? If so, shouldn't all 
the children/young adults in this 
county be given a set of rules to 
follow so they are sure not to need the 
Youth Probation Officer between 
5:01 p.m. and 7:59 a.m. each day 
and, heaven help them if they get in 
tr~u~le on the weekend! Guess they 
will Just have to sit it out in jail until 
~onday mor.ning because the proba­
tIOn officer IS only available 8 - 5 
Monday thru Friday. 

*Because I am engaged to Kara's 
Father, wh~ couldn't I talk to or go 
see her while she was in the Youth 
Services Facility? Why was Kara 
able to call me, however, I couldn't 
call her. I never did anything but try 
to be a "mother" figure to her after 
her own mother walked out on her 

when she was II years old. 
If anyone in the community can 

answer any of the above questions'I 
would love to talk to them. Obvi­
ous;y, I cannot go to Ms. Marmon 
e.v~n though they do involve her po­
SitIOn, because "I do not have tele­
phone privileges." Or, if someone in 
the community is authorized to give 
me these privileges so I could speak 
to Ms. Marmon, I would be greatly 
indebted to them. 

Just for the record, I would not 
know Mrs. Marmon if! met her face 
~o face ~n the street. They say a first 
ImpreSSIOn is a lasting impression. If 
this turns out to be so, she and I could 
b~ off to a very bad start. The only 
things I may be guilty of are: 

*falling in love with Kara's Dad 
L~, and accepting a proposal of 
marnage from him; 

*making a house into a home for 
Larry and his family; 

*good home cooked meals and 
another adult for Kara to come home 
from school to ask for guidance to 
everyday problems and situations; 

*offering Kara and her brother 
Jason the same kind of love affec­
tion and respect I have given ~y own 
two children; and 
.. *making plans with my future 
step-daughter" to tJke riding les­

sons from her in exchange for my 
I tcaching her how to cook, sew and 
u~c a ..:omputer. 

Karen Kowalczyk 
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Letter to the editor: 
Please parents, take notice!! Be­

ware of D.F.S.!!! It has been our 
experience that no mailer what the 
families go through, the chIldren are 
hurt the worst. 

Think of yourself as a small child, 
not in school yet, his only exposure 
to the outside world has been through 
his parents. Some strange woman 
and police officers (who children are 
to go to for help) come into your safe 
and secure life. They take you away 
without mommy and daddy. Mommy 
and Daddy are crying and are upset. 
You are taken 10 a place you have 
never been before, left with people 
you don't know. Everything you 
know and love are far away. You 
don't know why you can't be with 
mommy and daddy. You don't know 
why you can't go home. If you are 
lucky you might get to see mommy 
and daddy for a few minutes. Just to 
see them leave crying without you!! 
You wonder if you did something 
and mommy and daddy don't w::nt 
you anymore. 

When you get back home (if you 
get back) then you never trust anyone 
(police officers or not). You are ter­
rified that mommy and daddy will 
disappear again. It will affect your 
entire life. 

Isn't it about time we think of 
these children as part of a family. 

It has been my opinion on whatl 
have seen and heard, D.F.S. was 
named wrong. Department of Fam­
ily Services are no lo.nger for ~he 

"" families, they are for Job srcunty. 
They have no care of the ~ama~e 
they do to children or the family unl~. 
All they care for is how to keep t~elr 
jobs and how to get more fundmg 
from the government. 

If you care about children, it is 
time to speak up and stand up to 

- D.F.S. We need this to stop. 

-

Here is a phone number to call for 
your opinions, personal experiences 
and as concerned citizen,s: 1-800-
222-4446. Call now!!! 

Parents for Happy and Healthy 
Children, 

Larry Anderson 
Lisa Melton 

\ 

Leller to the editor: 
A mother's cry for help!! 

I never once in my wildest 
dreams, ever thought the joy and the 
miracle of giving birth, becoming a 
mother, could or would ever come to 
this, a nightmare. 

For tive years, we have been fight­
ing D.F.S.-our crime is not being 
rich. 

Last Thursday, January 5th, 
around 2:30 p.m., D.F.S. came to our 
door. They took our two youngest 
children ages 4 years and 18 months. 
They informed us that our other chil­
dren; 13, II, 10, 6, and 5 years had 
already been picked up and placed. 
The reason was they had two more 
calls; it was the last straw for D.F.S. 

We have met with D.F.S. and 
others, trying to get our children 
home. We were informed that if we 
had our own home, we would prob­
ably (not prom ised), get our chil.dren 
back. We were told 75 % at our 
problem was not having a home. 

My husband, Bill Anderson, has 
always worked hard for our family. 
He has always helped anyone who 
needed help, if he could, sometimes 
even when he couldn't. 

Some history on my husband: (1) 
Has worked since 15 years old full 
time-ranch work, five years in the 
oil field, tearing up railroad track 
here in Roundup, three years at Fos­
ter ranch and feedlo!. He hurt his 
back which cost him his job at 
Foster's. He settled and bought his 
family a home, which was lost due to 
circumstances out of his control. (2) 
No doctor has yet fou nd what is wrong 
with his back-quit smoking, lose 
weight and learn to live with the pain. 
(3) Health problems are still there, 
still untreated and doctors ask if he 
could work would he-is he really 
hurt or is he trying to get someone 
else to pay the bills? (4) His problems 
have worsened. (5) Bill started a fire­
wood business and became self·em­
played. He loves his work, he can 
take time off when he can't work, he 
would take the family with him to 
make family time when time was 
hard to come by. (6) He never took 

.-A R n. JI 01 it be haft unD.1he.r. c.bD.ice. .. 

:)I5nw OSdAlll;} ':J!snw SSIlJH llUtmf!.L 
:lill!1 II op OJ SJ;}Allld jU;}wrulSU! SSIUq 
;}JOW;}WOSJoJ ~U!){ool:lJ{l 04''' lS!Uoq 
-UlOJ)1l pUll J:llddwrul II S! ;:)J:lLU 

'IlJ;:) 
jC41 JO SJ:J410 pUll 'S;}lI 11:lH ;}41 'S!AI3 
AO :lIIon ~~IIO- 10 ~,(:1In;)11I 1P.I:1A:1~ 

EXHIBIT 9. -
DATE if -b-~~ • 
1~ 5"5 d-S!.0 

.-.. ------
without so his family could have. 

Now he watched his children to­
day cry, brokenhearted, a~king him 
to take them home. 

Our children now are split up in 
five different homes. One is in a 
youth home in Billings. 

All because we need a five bed­
room home. We Qeed a (low cost) 
house to rent or buy with low cost. 
We need to be able to do this in less 
than three months. We are not finan­
cially able to do this, especially this 
quick. 

We have eight children in all. 
Between probation and D.F.S., Hel­
ena has had our 12 year old for three 
years. 

Please if anyone can help my hus­
band to accomplish this let us know. 
Why does money mean more than 
love?? FOR OUR CHILDREN, 
PLEASE!!! 

Kim Anderson 
119 Quail Drive 

Roundup, MT 59072 
, Message phone: 323-3989 

. 1/;(5l75-
Dear Editor: . 

I am writing In regard to 
Roundup's D.F.S. system 

The D.F.S. in Roundup .has put 
brothers and sisters 10 foster 

me, my . C ter 
. . d is the Youth ServIces en 

care an t us at this 
for reasons unknown 0 

. t Now they arc thinking abo~t 
P~~~i~g me and one of my brot~ers In 
~Oy for foster care. I think that It IS all 
. 'k and that they should leave our acroe ne 
family alone and pick on someo 
who is in danger or needs help. 

The head of D.F.5: has requested 
that I have a chemical depe.ndency 

test done on me. Not that I mmd, b~t 
I'm not into drugs and she knows~t. 
She also had put on my contract t at 

This proves my I was very poor. 

. . 'king on us be-
belief that she IS pIC 

h· c little money. 
cause we av Id be home 

1 think that we shou > 

d h ethatanyon<.: 
with our family an a? , t 119 

I '1\ wnte to us a 
willing to. he p WI MT 59072. 
Quail Dnve, RounduP'h >d at phone 
My parents can be reac e 

. number 323-3989. than me 
The others are younger 

"a baby and one S 'William Anderson 

Id k'td t'lken from family 13 year a • 



Letter to Editor, 
As I read Ihe feller wrilten by Mr. 

Lekse in the RoulldLlp Record last 
week,l was frustrated, saddened, and 
shocked. How any parent could write 
all of this informal ion about Iheir 
own child in a public forum is be­
yond me. And after all Ihe lilll\.! we 
spent on this case, and how long I 
have known Mr. Lekse, I was also 
very disappointed. 

Although I am no longer County 
Attorney, I do still praclice law in 
Roundup and plan to for a long lime, 
and therefore felt the personal at­
lacks by Mr. Lekse had 10 be ad­
dressed. There is no way to respond 
to all of the allegations he makes 
under the guise of "FACT" because 
he and others like him convenienlly 
attack the people he knows cannot 
respond or defend themselves with 
any detail because of the confidentI­
ality laws. These laws were passed to 
protect families, and especially Ihe 
Youth, but are being used by angry 
people so only their hearsay and per­
sonal views orlhe facts can be printed 
in places like this editorial. I can, 
however, address the specilic details 
Mr. Lekse has already decided to 
make public through his letter. 

Several "facts" were left out of 
Mr. Lekse's I illle story. One is that he 
was represented by an allorney, Mr. 
Spaulding, during this case from at 
least the1ime documents were filed 
in Court. Another is Ihal the Youth 
was represenled by an attorney, Floyd 
A. Brower. The third is l,at Mr. Lekse 
signedan agreement in ordeno avoid 
going to Court and consented in wrjt­
~ to the placement of his daughler 
with the Goffenas. 

Mr. Lekse's detailed description 
of what happened on October 29, 
1994, was very interesting, since he 
wa~ no where to be found when prob=-_ 

lems started thai day ana therefore 
has NO IDEA what happened. The 
conversation that day ~1etween his 
daughter and I were in reference to a 
meeting just the day before about 
everyday common courtesy, keep­
ing your word, thinking of others, 
and selfish behavior that could result 
in removal from her current place­
ment. But I guess the story sounds 
better to him as written and he didn't \ 
find it necessary to talk to any offi- l 
cials to get more accurate infonna­
tion. Attempts were made to contact 
everyone when the placement was 
changed, but only the mOlher of the 
Youth could be reached. Me. Lekse 
was nOI able to be reached, but we did 
contact has attorney as soon as we 
were able. 

~s far as the "great relationship" 
between the Youth and her father's 
"fiance," talk to any junior Of senior 
at the Roundup Hi~h School and you 
will hear all about that relationship. 
It was discussed by the Youth often 
and clearly, and may have nothing or 
everything to do with the state being 
involved in the lives of this family. 

For clarification, I will try to ex­
plain someofthe mystery that seems 
to surround Ihe Department of Fam­
ily Services (DFS) and Youth Proba­
tion. These departments only get in­
volved in cases where a problem 
already exists, and has been reported 
by someone. The main goal is always 
to reunite the faniily, bUI all .1em­
bers of the family must want to be 
reunited or it cannot be done. This is 
sometimes difticult when older chil­
dren are involved. 

Youth Services IS located in Bill­
ings and is a pb~;;ment facility for 
people who are under 18 years of 
age. There are two "sides" to the 
facility. One is referred to as "lock­
up" and the other is the "open side." 
Those who have committed felony 
offenses, are determined 10 be dan­
gerous, or are a night risk are placed 
in lock-up, also known as detention. 
The open side is used for placement 
of those who Cllnnot be placed 
elsewhere for a temporary period of 
time, but are not "locked up" and can 
walk out the unlocked doors al any 
time. There are consequences if they 
do walk, but they are .!lQ1locked up. 
The Youth in this case was on the 
"open side" ancj the outing Mr. Lekse 
complains was denied to him was 
due to reasons I am not free to discuss 
because of confidentiality restric­
tions. 

I want to thank everyone who 
supported me and asked r:.,;.! 10 run for 
County Allorney again. I tried to 
explain as best r could why the job 
was just not worth it. Everyone who 
read the slanted, inaccurate, and vi­
cious letter wrillen by Mr. Lekse in a 
father's CY A will hopefully under­
stand now Ihat it was numerous cases 
like this thai influenced me to not run 
again, and why it is so very hard to 
get people to stay in Ihe public ser­
vices jobs he atlacks. Wouldn't life 
be beller if ~very0ge look .responsi­
bility forthelr own ~cllons Instead of 
just blaming everyqne else? And we 
wonder where OUf c·bi!dren learn it!?! 

lsI Vicki Knudsen 
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Department of Family Services Testimony 
in opposition to SB 206 

POBOX 8005 
HELENA, MONTANA 59604.8005 

The Department of Family Services respectfully opposes SB 206. 
If passed this bill would make it impossible for the state to 
adequately protect children in danger of abuse of neglect by the 
same individuals who are supposed to love and protect them. 

Most problematic to the agency is the requirement that criminal 
charges be filed against a perpetrating caregiver if the agency 
is going to remain involved with the family through temporary 
investigative authority or removal of the child from an abusive 
home. This contradicts the agency's mission of protecting 
children through supporting family and community strengths. It 
would be detrimental to the families DFS works with to 
unnecessarily force a parent into the criminal law arena when it 
would be possible to provide support to the family, enabling a 
previously abused or neglected child to return home. The 
criminal justice system is not based upon family support, 
reunification or treatment. It is based on punishment. Families 
involved with DFS typically need help, not punishment. It would 
not serve the majority of these families to remove one parent in 
punishment when intervention could salvage the family unit. 

Another area of great concern is the requirement that reporters 
of suspected abuse or neglect of a child must report their 
suspicions under oath. Frequently concerned citizens make valid 
reports of serious child abuse, but are reluctant to give their 
names for fear of retribution or revenge. The law currently 
protects the identity of these reporters of child abuse, but also 
requires that DFS have probable cause before it can obtain a 
court order to continue its involvement with a family. A 
requirement that exposes the identity of all reporters of 
suspected abuse will discourage valid reports of abuse and 
greatly increase the risk to children in Montana. 

A third area of concern regarding this bill is the requirement 
that DFS videotape all interviews with children and be 
accompanied by psychologist or physician representing the family. 
DFS has no budget to provide each office with an adequate number 
of video cameras to tape each investigation conducted. Further, 
in emergency situations, there is no time to arrange for the 
family's choice of doctor or psychologist to be present. 
Physicians and psychologists generally have very busy schedules 

'AN EOUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER" 



and could not get away on short notice to attend an interview of 
a child. Further, neither families nor the agency has the funds 
to pay for such a service. This requirement could not 
realistically be complied with and, if mandated, children could 
be left in risky or abusive situations. 

Another major problem with the bill is that families of all 
children in temporary foster care have access and contact with 
the family and foster family. There are situations when this 
would be very damaging and dangerous to the child and foster 
family. The department makes every effort to keep children who 
are placed in temporary foster care in contact with their parents 
when feasible. Contact should not be mandated, but encouraged 
when appropriate. 

There is a flow chart attached to this testimony to visually 
demonstrate the process of how a child abuse referral received by 
the Department of Family Services is handled through agency 
procedures and the civil legal system. 



EXHIBIT ____ ' d-_____ .... 
DATI;....E __ ;)._--=0_-...... 9 ..... 5 __ _ 

eB J-Qb 

REFERRAL OF CHILD ABUSE OR NEGLECT TO DFS 

.--_________ --, / Inve,tlgatlon by Social Woeker ~r------------...., 
Child Abuse or Neglect Child Abuse or Neglect 

Unsubstantiated Subst"mtiated 

CASE 
CLOSED 

Problems Continue 
Child Removed 

from Home 

r----R-ef-er-ra-I----._--------------------

L...-__ ---.::----' 

________ ~ CHILD PROTECTION TEAM I 

Disposition Hearing to Decide if 
/.... Child is Abused or Neglected 

In-Home 
Services 

Problem 
Solved 

To County Attorney 
For Court Action 

__________________ ~ Guardian Ad Litem Appointed for 
Child. Attorney may be Appointed 

I 
f 

I Treatment 

1 
Plan 

~ 
Foster Care Review 
(Every Six Months) 

i , 
Problems Corrected 
Child Returns Home 

• Case Closed 

"':a.,. 

I 

for Indigent Parents. 

Temporary Investigative Authority 
or Temporary Custody to DFS 

~ 

Case 
Closed 

Problems Continue 
Treatment Plan Not Successful 

+ 
Referral to County Attorney For Court Action 

to Terminate Parental Rights 
(Attorney must be Appointed for Indigent Parents) 

I , 
Child Placed Adoptively 
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Molestation is rape 
Child molestation is rape. 
The definition of rape in the dictionary is: 

";\ sexual act committed by force, usually 
with violence." The definition of molestation: 
"To disturb, as to cause injury; to make inde­
cent sexual advances to." 

When a child is "molested," this child is 
raped. The torment, pain, violence, fear and 
shame a child carries after being "molested" 
remains all of his or her life. It affects every 
aspect of a child's life into teenage, adulthood 
and old age. How he interacts with other chil-

o dren, siblings, parents and other relatives, 
dating partners, classmates of either sex, 
marriage partners, children and grandchil­
dren will be based on the way his particular 
case is handled - once he has the courage to 
expose his "molester." 

If a victim sees his offender prosecuted and 
punished, put away where he or she cannot 
commit this despicable crime again, the vic­
tim has a chance to become a whole person 
again, to heal. When the offender is slapped 
on the wrist and set free, how can the victim 
trust the judicial system? How can he trust 
anyone? How can he heal? 

It is time to take the shame from the vic­
tims. Help them become whole again and 
place the blame on the offenders where it be­
longs and lock them away where they belong; 
where they wiII never have access to innocent 
children again. 

Let's take away the rights of the offenders 
instead of the victims. 

Sharon Bakerson, a member of MACEM 
(Majority Against Child Molestation) 
2912 Village Road 
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MAJORITY AGAINST CHILD MOLESTATION 

MESSAGE PHONE: 227-5173 



CLUES TO POSSIBLE VICTIMIZATION 

Sometimes children don't tell us they are in crisis, they show us. A change in a child's behavior could be due to the stress 
of being abused. These changes in behavior can alert adults to their problem. 

Abuse and neglect can also sometimes leave physical marks on a child's body which adults can observe. Knowing both the 
physical and behavioral clues to abuse 'can help adults intervene on behalf of children. 

Keep in mind that some clues can be normal behavior for a given child at a given time. Therefore it is important to be aware 
of new behaviors, extreme behaviors, or combinations of the following characteristics. 

Abused children can not be identified by racial, ethnic, religious or socioeconomic c1a..<iS. Abuse crosses these lines. 

Abused 
Children 
Are Often 

Physical 
Symptoms 

Activity and 
Habit Clues 

Age 
Inappropriate 
Behavior 

Educational 
Concerns 

Emotional 
Indicators 

• fearful of interpersonal relationships or overly compliant 
• withdrawn or aggressive, hyperactive 
• constantly irritable .or listless, detached 
• affectionless or overly affectionate (misconstrued as seduction) 

• bruises, burns, scars, welts, broken bones, continuing or 
unexplainable injuries 

• urinary infections (particularly in young children) 
• sexually transmitted diseases 
• chronic ailments, stomachaches, vomiting, eating disorders, vaginal or anal 

soreness, bleeding, or itching 

• nightmares 
• inapp: priate masturbation 
• a child afraid to go home or to some other location, running away 
• delinq<.: 2:lCY 

• fear of being with a particular person 
• lying 
• prostitution 

• an onset of thumb sucking 
• sexually active or aware 
• promiscuity 
• bed wetting 
• alcohol/substance abuse 
• older child assaulting younger children 
• child takes on adult responsibilities 

• extreme curiosity, imagination 
• academic failure 
• sleeping in class 
• inability to concentrate 

• depression 
• phobias, fear of darkness, public restrooms, etc. 
• chronic ailments 
• self-inflicted injuries 
• injuring/killing animals 
• excessively fearful 
• lack of spontaneity, creativity 



February 9, 1994 

My name is Sharon Brown Bakerson. L.P.N. 

EXHIBIT l:f 
DATE J-h -9 S 

L 5'5 dOh 

I am writing this statement because of my concern regarding my 
twenty-eight month old grandaughter, Autumn S. Haskett and her 
relationship with her father, Wm. (Bill) Haskett. 

Autumn was eight,months old when my daughter, Erinne M. Haskett 
left her husband and she and Autumn moved in with me. ,She was 
introverted and would respond only to her mother. If her mother 
left the room, the baby would cry hysterically, until her mother 
picked her up and held her. 

The total dependency on her mother was so strong, I would sit in 
the bathroom holding Autumn while her mother bathed. It took 
approximately 3-4 months before Autumn trusted me enough to be 
alone with me while her mother went to doctor appointments, etc. 

Judge McCarter gave sole custody of the child to her mother. Mr. 
Haskett was granted four hours a week visiting rights with 
supervision. 

Because there is a restraining order on Haskett and he is not 
allowed near Erinne or her home, we set up a schedule for Hasketts' 
visits. 

I would transport Autumn to Hasketts' mothers' horne and his step­
sister, Dawn Wilson, would be the visit supervisor. His mother, 
Judy Wilson, would call me to set up the visits every week­
Thursdays from 4 p.m. until 8 p.m. was agreeable to all parties. 
This was not a regular schedule as Haskett didn't want her every 
week, only when he "felt" like it. Sometimes he would want her 
only for an hour at a time. 

Before his surgery, he wanted her pretty regularly and we complied 
with his wishes. 

One day in November when I changed Autumn's diaper, I observed a 
slit on the baby's genital area between her vagina and anus. 
This was the day after her paternal visit. 

Autumn had constant urinary tract infections and was under a doctor's 
care. I baby sit Autumn regularly and know her well. 

On the days Autumn visited Haskett, there are highly noticeable 
changes in her personality and general humor. On the way to the 
visits, she became extremely quiet. She would not sing with me 
or even answer me on simple questions which she knew. She would 
sit with her head down, not looking out the windows, a complete 
90 degree turn in personality. When she came out to the car after 
visits, she walked with her head down and would'nt show interest 
in anything until we drove away and the complete change in her 
demeanor was startling, she would sing and point out the windows. 



For three to four days after a visit, she was hostile and angry 
and acting out what is apparently frustrations. 

She would kick and slap and hit my dog and cat, slam toys on the 
floor, scream and be physically ab~sive to her stuffed animals. 
Only her mother could hold her and handle her. On C:lristmas Eve, 
I was buckling her in preparation to an hour visit with her father. 
She said, not to me, but as a statement, "Be nice to Daddy and 
you'll get presents". When I tried to question her, for example, 
"Are you going to see Santa at Daddys?" She put her head down and 
would not respond. 

Christmas was spent at the horne of Autumn's aunt Donna Gregg. 
This is family tradition. Family get togethers are frequent. On 
Christmas she clung to her mother, cried, screamed at her cousings 
who she usually plays with and was extremely hostile all day. The 
whole family-14 persons- all commented on her behavior and asked 
if she had seen Haskett lately as it was totally out of her 
character for Autumn and she only acted out like that after a 
paternal visit. 

I babysit Autumn when her mother works and I will now list my 
observances after these visits. 

1. One day I was playing with her and tickling her ribs, knees 
and feet and said "Do you want to tickle my pee?" I said 
that knees were more fun and passed her remark over. 

2. She used a toy hammer handle and pressed it, (jabbed) into 
the genital area of her stuffed animal saying, "it's okay 
if I hurt you there because I love you." 

3. After visits, she won't let me wipe after going potty, saying 
"Don't hurt my pee Gramma, it's got an owie." Her genital 
area was red and inflamed. 

4. It usually takes 3 days after a visit for Autumn to calm down 
and become an outgoing happy little girl again. 

Autumn has not seen Haskett (his choice) since Christmas Eve and 
there is no hostility or anger apparent except a little temper 
tantrum once in a while which is normal for her age. If she is 
asked anything about Haskett she clams up and refuf)s to answer 
then seems withdrawn into herself. 

It is my opinion that there is a very unhealthy relationship 
between Haskett and Autui~n. After one hour with him the changes 
in the character and behavior of this child are que$tionable and 
apparent to everyone who knows her. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Sharon Brown Bakerson L.P.N. 
2912 Village Road 
Helena, Montana 59601 
(406) 227-7043 
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TO WHOM IT MAY CONCERN, 

My name is Nina Marie Pullman. I am the mother of 3 children, 
Levi, Clint and Tiana Pullman. The purpose of this letter is to 
inform the proper authorities about a person n3rned William Joseph 
Haskett aka Bill. In my opinion, Bill should definitely not have 
any kind of visit~tion with his 2 year old daughter, Autumn. I 
am basing this op~inion on personal experience. Bill sexually 
molested my daughter, Tiana, from the time she was 9 - 11. I 
know this actually happened because my daughter, Tiana, kept a 
diary during part of this time span. 

I read what she wrote and believed what she told me about 
everything that Bill did to her. Again, I stress the fact that 
Bill should definitely not have any kind of contact with his own 
natural daughter, Autumn. He is a very sick person. My family 
was subjected to numerous times of abuse in all forms, including 
mental, physical, emotional, verbal and sexual to my daughter, 
Tiana. 

At this point in time, Tiana is ready to press charges against 
Bill for sexually molesting her. I feel that she is strong 
enough now to successfully prosecute him and get a conviction. 
Hopefully, with the help of everyone involved in this situation, 
he will finally get what he deserves. 

It is my understanding that he is in contempt of court right now 
for not attending alcohol treatment. I would think that would be 
enough to cancel his visitations with his daughter, but 
apparently it isn't. I would truly love to see the right thing 
done for the sake of a 2 year old child that needs to be 
protected from her own father. 

It is very had to put into words with enough emphasis that will 
convince the proper authorities to take whatever action is needed 
to prevent Bill from ever seeing his daughter again for any 
reason. He is a very sick, deranged, vile, uncontrollable, evil 
maniac. I realize those are very strong words, but they describe 
him exactly as he is. Lies, deceptions, cons, guilt trips, mood 
swings and betrayal are a few of his better qualities. Please 
excuse me for sounding so rude, but that is the only way I can be 
when it comes to Bill. He stole my daughters innocence and put 
the fear of man in her. No one should have to live in fear of 
anyone else. What kind of life is that? Not a very happy one. 

Bill told my daughter, Tiana, that he would kill me if she told 
me or anyone else about the things he was doing to her. She was 
scared to death. The one person that could help her, me, 
couldn't because she would be dead if Tiana told her. What a 
terrible thing for a child to have to live with for 2 whole 
years! 



Bill was responsible for that terrible thing, and I certainly do 
not want him to hurt his own daughter, Autumn. Not every child 
is fortunate to have the best of all material things, but no 
matter what station in life a child has, they 3re all.entitled to 
their innocence and to be protected from anyone ~ho dies them any 
kinJ of harm. 

As I have already stated, Bill is capable of dno has caused harm 
to myself and my ~ family in many different ways and more than 
once. If this person, Bill, is allowed to see his daughter, then 
there is definitely something wrong with our laws concerning the 
protection of our children from perverts. 

I know that without some long range psycho-therapy and maybe not 
even then, that Bill will not get any better. He will only get 
worse. I am very sure that pushed enough, he would actually kill 
someone. I am afraid of him and so is my daughter. But not to 
the point of not fighting back, the right way in a court of law. 
I sure hope justice shows up that day. 

I know what Bill is capable of and none of it is good. I can see 
no good reason why he should ever see his daughter, Autumn, 
again. All he will do is hurt her more than he already has. 
Children aren't here for anyone who chooses to hurt them. They 
are here to be loved and cared for by their families. by 
sexually molesting or "grooming" his daughter, Autumn, Bill is 
not showing any kind of love or care for his daughter, Autumn. 
Again, I stress that in my opinion, bill should not ever have any 
kind of contact with his daughter, Autumn, ever, ever again. 

I know that I have not gone into any great detail about any 
particular events concerning Bill. Most of my l~mories of him 
are very painful and hard to talk or write about. I am just 
about mentally and emotionally exhausted from writing this. I am 
more than willing, however, to write anything else that may be 
needed to keep Bill away from his daughter Autumn. If you need 
this statement notarized or if anyone has any questions or wants 
me to elaborate on anything I've written here, I would be happy 
to do so. 

I realize that Bill needs a lot 
friends can't give him, 
right now, is Autumn. 

but the 
of help 

one that 
that his 
needs the 

family and 
most help 

I truly hope that what I have written on these pages will help 
accomplish what is in the best interest for all concerned. 

Sincerely, 

Nina M. Pullman 
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In Feb. ' 94 my divorce .... as final. We tGok j oint custody on our 
t .... o girls 3 & 7 years old. I .... anted joint custody because I have 
al .... ays believed children should have equal time .... ith both 
parents. He .... anted joint custody only becaus~ he didn't .... ant to 
pay any child support to me. Never the less, we agreed on joint 
custody; 3 days .... ith one 4 days .... ith the oth~r. 

From the start there .... ere problems. Both girls cried every time 
that it .... as time to go to his house. The oldest was constantly 
angry and confused_~ on .... here "home" .... as. The 3 year old .... ould 
hide when it .... as time to go she cried and ran irom me. Basically 
didn't .... ant to go. But there was nothing I could do, they had to 
go. About 3 .... eeks after these visitations started, I noticed my 
3 yr olds vaginal & anal area was bloody red, bleeding very 
irritated when she came home from his house. I thought this .... as 
because she .... as not .... iping after going to the bathroom. I put 
medicine on her and never had a second thought about it. 

April 24th, my daughter was in the bathroom going to the 
bathroom. She suddenly screamed. I ran back to the bathroom 
.... here she told me her pee-pee hurt and she couldn't go to the 
bathroom all the .... ay. I told her to bend over and let me see, 
she bent over and not to my surprise, she .... as iire rent and 
bleeding. 

A friend of mine .... as sitting in my living room, I yell at her to 
come look at Jerika. She sa .... exactly what I sa..... Rhetta (my 
friend) asked her "Does anyone ever touch you do .... n there?" 
Jerika got the most terrified angry look on her face and said, 
"no, nobody but my daddy Randy." 

I left it at that. At the same period of time, the night before 
r caught my older daughter Shandi laying completely naked on top 
of her friend that .... as at our house. (They .... ere separated and 
told I .... ould talk to them in the morning. ) 

When Rhetta (the mother of my daughters friend) came the next 
morning, .... e sat both Shandi (my 7 yr old) and her child (7 yrs 
old) down and told them that .... e .... anted to talk about this .... ith 
them and they .... ere not in trouble. 

r asked Shandi if she kne ........ hat she .... as doing, .... hat it meant. 
She stated, well yes, Daddy, Randy, does that to me all the time. 
She was then asked .... hen does this happen and where. 

She said it happens when .... e go to Daddy Randy's house to stay 
with him. She was also asked .... here Janice (Randy's ne .... wife) .... as 
when this was happening. She stated that most of the time she 
was gone getting her back fixed at the hospital but sometime she 
was in the living room .... hile they were in the bedroom. She said 
she saw him a couple of times because she got mad at him. 



l 1mm~di~t~ly Q~lled Terry 
her what I should do. 
immediately. so I called 
told me to bring Jerika in. 

Taylor (the girls counselor) and asked 
She stated call the doctors office 

Dr. Keefe at Childrens Clinic. She 
I did immediately! 

She didn't have time to do a complete sexual abuse exam but she 
took a little time to check her briefly to see it she could see 
anything out of the ordinary. She saw some very unusual things 
and told me she wanted to see both girls on Monday morning first 
thing. I returne~ronday morning first thing. 

she first started to take to Jerika, when Jerika started talking, 
Shandi jumped up and looked very scared and started to cry. The 
doctor immediately stopped talking to Jerika and started talking 
to Shandi and asked Shandi what she was upset and crying about. 
Shandi stated, Randy was going to get mad and smack her if Jerika 
told. she was reassured that she ~as safe now and she needed to 
tell what was happening to them. 

Jerika continued with her story, then Shandi was fully 
interviewed. After the interviews, she did the sexual exam on 
Jerika where she discovered she has been penetrated both 
vaginally and anally. Jerika is 3 years old. 

She then did the sexual exam on shandi, while doing the exam, she 
was talking to shandi about the places that were touched. She 
found that Shandi was not penetrated but there was fondling, 
rubbing, simulated sex with her. The doctor imnlediately called 
the Department of Family Services. 

I took the girls immediately to the counselors office. She then 
interviewed the girls where I heard in more detail things that 
had happened at Randys house. I had never in my life felt the 
way I did that day. It felt as if my heart was being ripped out 
of my chest. A mothe~s worst nightmare. 

That day, CPS informed the cOJnty attorney's office, Carolyn 
Clements, and made an official report. They immediately took all 
visitation away. During the period of the next 3-4 weeks, 
Carolyn Clements never contacted me once. Never returned my 
phone calls. One of her comments to Jeff Aldridge at CPS was she 
had the idea that this was just a ploy for a custody battle. 

A week after that, I received a phone call from Jeff Aldridge 
stating he had received a call from Carolyn Clements and Randy 
had contacted her and requested a visit and she ok'd it. 

I immediately called Hank Hudson State Directors Office at CPS 
and informed him of what was happening. He immediately called a 
supervisor at CPS and stopped the visit. The girls were video 
taped by DFS (CPS) both separately and different days also. 
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I made a call to Mike McGrath and did not tell him who I was, but 
asked him. I explained the case. If this was his case would he 
order a visit or OK a visit, even with the psychologist 
recommendations, CPS recommendations very much against this. "He 
said "absolutely not. Who would do something like this?" I then 
told him his deputy county attorney did that. I told him I had 
called the state directors office and they absolutely would not 
OK this. 

I then also told ~~m if something was not done, I was going to 
the media public about this because this was not right. Two days 
after that phone call, I received information that Mike McGrath 
had taken over my childrens case. 

It is now January 1995 and this man that totally violated his own 
little girls has never even been charged. I have called 
requesting responses from Mike McGrath and I never get any 
answers, they keep telling me they haven't heard anything and 
nothing was happening with this yet. It takes time. We have all 
the information we could possibly need; doctors interviews, 
doctors sexual exams, cps interviews, CPS video tapes, 
psychologist interviews. 

The County Attorney, Mike McGrath himself told me there was no 
doubt in his mind that Randy is guilty. also DrS informed me the 
girls are very reliable, they believe them. The counselor 
supports the girls story totally and has made written reports to 
the County Attorneys office stating they are very believable. 

But yet he is still not charged. He's free on the street to do' 
this to another child. He has complete access to his common law 
wifes grandchildren because they are at his house daily, also his 
sisters children are left there daily. 

My girls were appointed an attorney, Randi Hood, in Mayor June. 
My girls don't even know who this lady is. she has never even 
met my girls. How can she represent my girls if she does not 
even know them? I don't understand this so I finally called a 
meeting with her on December 21st, to find out what was going on. 
The meeting took place and she also could not understand why he 
(Randy) has not been charged. 

These people at the county attorneys office are supposed to be 
here for my children, yet they suggest to his attorney an expert 
witness for them to call. Whos side are these people on? 

Randy Renn the criminal that goes around violating little girls, 
his own little girls, has more rights than these two little girls 
do ages 3 & 7. 



Hew oan I the mether tell these precious little girls of mine 
that they are safe now and they won't have to worry about going 
back to him and have them be hurt for telling what happened to 
them. If I can't even get the court system (Mike McGrath) to 
take action against him for violating his own little, girls when 
all the proof they need is there. 

Connie Griffin 
5940 Aaron Dr. 
Helena, MT 
458-4754 
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This is my statement regarding my suspicions about my daughter's 
times spent with her father, Bill Haskett. 

In the past, Bill had never shown any interest in Autumn (my 
daughter). When I filed for divorce, I made every effort for 
Autumn to spend time with Bill. I wanted her to know her Dad 
and his parents. He was given supervised custody every Thursday 
from 4:30 to 8:00 p.m., at our divorce hearing, which he did 
not bother to attend. 

The supervision was ordered because of Bill's alcohol abuse and 
temper. His step-sister, Dawn, provided the supervision at his 
mother's house, where he and Dawn both lived. 

Dawn has been ill for some time now and at times when she got 
home from work, she was extremely tired. There were times when 
she had to lie down. Bill did have some time alone with Autumn 
although I am not sure how much. 

Autumn's behavior around her father'was strange. He did not 
see her every week-only when he felt like it. I know for a 
fact several times he did not take her because he was hung-over. 

When Autumn was with Bill, she would have nothing to do with 
anyone else there. Dawn has babysat Autumn for me on several 
occasions and as long as Bill wasn't around, Autumn played with 
Dawn and talked to her. Dawn told me several times of Autumn's 
behavior when he was there. Autumn's behavior was different at 
horne, also, for 2-3 days after a visit with him. Immediately 
after she came horne, she was angry. For the next couple of 
days she was belligerent, angry-out of control. She was not 
my Autumn-totally different. Then in August and September 
Bill saw her frequently. He was going into heart surgery and 
wanted to spend time with her. At that time I let him have her 
at his convenience. Sometimes he only wanted her for an hour 
because she was "too much for him". After his surgery, he didn't 
see her for about a month. The he started seeing her pretty 
steady again until November, 1993. At that time, he was ordered 
into treatment in Butte by Judge Jewell. He went overnight 
and walked out of treatment. Since then he has been living in 
Butte to avoid contempt of court charges. 

In October 1993 I started working 3 days a week at the Bullseye 
Casino. My Mom babysat for me at these times. I got home from 
work one day and Morn told me Autumn had told her to "tickle my 
pee". I didn't worry too much about it at that time. Autumn 
had a bladder infection around mid-September. It took me awhile 
to catch on to the symptoms. I took her to the doctor on September 
30 and she was diagnosed with an urinary tract infection. She had 
one again in October and then in November 1993. Dr. Keefe ordered 
some tests on her in November. These tests came back normal. 
During this time Autumn had told me to "tickle my pee" also. 



Once she climbed up into the chair with me, put my hand between 
her legs and said the same thing. She was rubbing her genital 
area on everything also. One day while playing with her 
stuffed animals she was talking to them and popped off with 
"I'm sorry this hurts, but I love you". At this time Autumn 
was potty-trained, except at night she wore a diaper. Several 
times when I took her diaper off in the morning, there was a 
tan colored spot about 1/4 inch long in the area of the diaper 
that touched the vaginal area. I also remember one time on a 
Friday after Autumn had seen Bill, she had a bowel movement 
and when I wiped her bottom she said "ow, you hurt me"'. She 
never said thac before or since. I know it was the day after 
or~ of their visits because I remember thinking "she saw Bill 
y, :terday" and some ,-,larning bells went off in my head but I 
just couldn't believe it. I put it in the back of my mind. 
When Dr. Keefe diagnosed her third urinary tract infection she 
examined Autumn's bottom because there was some irritation there. 
She found a small split in the skin at the base of the vagina 
(epesiotomyarea). My first thought was Bill. But the doctor 
said it was fresh and Autumn hadn't seen Bill for 2 i-,leeks. 
Dr. Keefe said it could have been caused by a fall. I put it 
in the back of my mind. Then Autumn didn't see Bill again 
until Christmas Eve. During that time, she got back to her 
usual self. She would play alone in her room again and didn't 
have to be with me all the time. 

When Bill and I were together Autumn was tiny. I left him 
shen she was 8 months old. While we were together, Bill drank 
a lot. He would stay out until 2 or 3 a.m., then come home 
mad and drunk and slam things around, all the time yelling at 
me. This, of course, would wake her up-she was very nervous. 
When I left him, I stayed with my Mom for awhile. I couldn't 
get out of Autumn's sight without her getting hysterical. It 
took about 3-4 months pefore she trusted Mom enough for me to 
even leave the room. 

Well, after Autumn's visits with BIll in 1993, she got that 
way again. For those 2-3 days after a visit, she would cling 
to me. We live in a trailer and I couldn't even walk down the 
hall without her chasing me crying "Mommy's finger". She had 
to hold onto me. 

I should have put this all together but I didn't until Christmas 
Day. Autumn saw Bill Christmas Eve for 2 hours. Christmas Day 
she hung on me all day. I could hardly put her down and she 
would be screaming at me, "carry me". She v·las behaving terrible 
all day and the next 2 were almost the same. My whole family 
commented on it. 

The Monday night after Christmas Autumn was up all night. I 
took her to Dr. Reynolds Tuesday, he found ear infections. I 
talked to him about my concerns and he referred me to Dr. Gunderson 
he said she specialized in the area of molestation. I talked to 
Dr. Gunderson on the telephone that afternoon and told her 
everything. She said Autumn's comments were not normal for 
her age. She had to have heard them somewhere. She told me to 
contact Family Services and we set up an appointment for her to 
examine Autumn. 



october 6, 1994 

I am writing this letter and enclosing a newspaper article from 
the Independent Record date october 3, 1994. 

Hopefully, after reading the article and what I have to say, the 
lawmakers of the state of Montana will wake up and take notice 
of this crucial p~oblem. 

The problem of children being sexually molested by anyone is 
something that nobody wants to deal with. It's been a problem 
for many years. How maL! more years do children have to live 
in fear of child molesters being treated too leniently by~the 
law that is supposed to serve and protect us all? I certai~ly hope 
not one more year goes by without our laws being changed. 

Child molesters in my mind are just as bad as someone who kills 
someone else. When a c~ild is molested a part of that child dies. 
No-one really knows what part is dead and gone, but something 
inside of that child is taken away and can never be replaced. 

I am appalled and dismayed by the lack of laws to protect our 
children from child molesters. There are more child molesters 
out in the world than people care to think about. Well, this 
rerson cares because I have to th!nk about one everyday until 
he's arrested and brought to court. I don't like to have to look 
over my shoulder every waking moment of my life and to sleep 
with a gun under my pillow and I shouldn't have to if the laws 
were more severe against child molesters. My daughter will have 
nightmares for the rest of her life. There is nothing anyone 
can do about that. But, if you as a group change our laws to 
be more severe, then maybe, just maybe, it would deter some of 
these sick people to not commit that crime in the first place. 

I understand that there is a problem with prison over-crowding. 
Build more. Criminals are supposed to be in prison, not free 
to commit crimes again. Child molesters are the worst kind of 
criminal there is. They pick on helpless, defenseless children 
who can't fight back. What cowards they are. They torment 
their victims not only physically cut mentally too. My daughter 
was told by her molester chat if she told anyone about what 
he was doing that he would kill me (her mother) and her 2 brothers. 
We were all she had! what a horrifying thing for a child to live 
with. Be molested and be quiet about it or your mom and brothers 
are dead and go .. e forever. Child molesters are the sickest 
most vile people in this world. Something has to be done to 
change the way our laws deal with them. I am sickened every day 
by another news report of another child being sexually molested. 
I'm sure a lot of other people are too. Hence, the reason this 
letter is being sent to you. 

You are a person in a position to change the laws. Make them 
tougher than they are now. A child molester is allowed out of 
jail on their own recognizance. I think not. My plea to you 
as a member of the Lawmakers of this state is to please do what­
ever you can to change our laws as they are now to laws that 
are firm, hard and will carry a jail sentence for life without 
the possibility of parole. There is no-one who will ever 



I called the Department of Family Services and talked to Don 
Thompson. I laid it all out for him along with the accusations 
made against Bill by Tiana Pullman. Mr. Thompson told me that 
Autumn's comments were definitely abnormal. He said it sounded 
as if something were going on. He said there may not be any 
physical signs on Autumn but BIll could be grooming her. He 
said she's too young to interview and they basically couldn't 
do anything. 

I talked to Dawn and asked if Bill had been alone with Autumn 
during Christmas ~ve. She said he had taken Autumn downstairs 
at one point for 10-15 minutes. She said "and that's really 
strange, Rinne, because there's nothing down there but bedrooms­
nothing to show her". She also told me that Bill carried Autumn 
the whole time she was there. Don Thompson said that wasn't 
normal and who knew what he did while he carried her. 

We went to see Dr. Gunderson and the only physical thing she 
saw was the scar tissue where she'd had the split. 

All of these things put together point to the same thing-Bill 
has been messing with my (his) daughter. Dr. Reynolds, Dr. 
Gunderson, Don Thompson and my counselor, Bailey Molineaux all 
agree that something has been happening. But, because of 
Autumn's age, (2 years) no one can help me protect her. My 
lawyer Vivian Marie at Legal Aid Services says I don't have 
enough evidence to take before a Judge and get Bill's visitation 
pulled. 

Autumn's behavioral change, her comments, the bladder infections 
and visits coinciding, her regression-no one can tell me that 
Bill is not molesting my 2-year old daughter. I will do whatever 
it takes to stop him. I just wish I could protect any of the 
unknown children to come, if he isn't stopped. 

ERINNE MARIE HASKETT 
Erinne Marie Haskett 

You should also know that Bill is very violent when angered. 
Nina and I both have restraining orders against him. He can 
be dangerous. 
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convince me that these people can be rehabilitated and be able 
to function normally in society. It has already been proven 
time and again that they keep on doing it whenever and wherever 
they get a chance to. How many more of our children have to 
be subjected to a "cured" child molester? I certainly hope 
not one more. One is too many. Adults are supposed to love 
and protect children, so lets see how many adults we have in our 
Legislature who care what happens to children. I want to see 
a change in our laws that will do that and I am sure any loving 
parent wants the same thing. 

I understand that it is hard to relate to this problem unless 
it affects you personally. Please listen when I say that this 
problem does affect us all as a society in more than one way. 
If something drastic isn't done soon, people will see more and 
more child molesters. Children live what they learn. It is 
a proven fact that most molesters were at some time in their life 
molested also. If this vicious cycle of child molesting does 
continue you will also see more angry parents taking the law 
into their own hands and dealing with these criminals on their 
own. That is one way of dealing with this problem but it is 
not the right way. Please, please help our children to be 
protected as much as is humanly possible. That means, don't 
let them out on their own recognizance for any reason at any time. 
They are a danger to our society which does include our minor 
children. If we as parents now can't raise our children in 
a safe environment, what kind of a world will it be when they 
are ready to earn their way? Not good, I would suspect. 

You are where you are to provide us as citizens with laws to serve 
and protect us. I would really appreciate seeing some changes 
in our laws that do that, serve and protect us better than they 
do now, especially for our children. 

Sincerely, 

Nina 
MACem Member 



Tiana 

Hello, my name is Tiana Jolene Pullman. Most friends and family 
members call me T.J. I am your average teenage American student. 
I go to school, I have a job, have friends, do the occasional 
mishaps that kids will do etc. However, there is one· hing that 
makes me different from a lot of my peers. I was sexually, 
l~otionally and mentally violated from the time I started kinder­
garden to my sixth grade year. The person that did this to me is 
Bill Haskett. This is hard for me to write about, but I am 
stronger now and I know that this needs to be done. I need to 
lay it to rest, so that I can hopefully, for once in my life, be 
at peace with myself. 

Bill Haskett is a danger zone for anyone that comes into contact 
with him. I can now finally face what he did to me, but I can't 
live with myself if I don't help stop him now,before he hurts 
someone else. He is very good at making people think he is the 
one who is the poor soul in any situation. If he doesn't get 
stopped now he'll keep doing this and it's about time I've told 
my story. 

First of all, let me explain my relationship to Bill. Bill was 
my Mom's Nina M. Pullman, boyfriend. He lived with us. I have 
two older brothers as well, Clint A. Pullman and Levi A. Pullman 
who will also be mentioned in my story. There will also be 
another person whom I will mention, Aaron LaPierre, that was my 
brother Levi's best friend who lived with us for awhile. The 
person that can best help us out is Jeni M. Apperson, she was 
my best friend from the 4th-6th grade. She was there during 
the different times of different things happening. 

I will not start off by saying and telling about things that 
happened to me personally. He (Bill) hurt my mom and my brothers 
in various occasions. Then I will tell my own story. 

While reading this please keep in mind that I do not think of 
myself as a hateful person. I believe all people are special in 
their own way. Bill Haskett, in my opinion, is a scum and 
definitely, not a human being in my eyes. I hate him and I believe 
I have the right to hate him. He took away my childhood, my 
innocence, and for the rest of my life I will have nightmares 
and even with the man I love I get scared at times. I know 
that they don't hang child molesters but God how I wished they did. 
My nightmare of him coming after me will never go away until 
he's dead or locked up in prison where he belongs. I just 
don't want him to have the opportunity to do what he did to me 
to someone else. I think he should go to prison and have 
counseling while in prison. I think that if he continues to be 
able to see his daughter, supervised or not, he'll find a 
way to do the same things to her that he did to me. In other 
words, let that child have a chance in life and keep him away 
from her permanently. 



The first thing I want to tell about is my Mom. I love my Mom. 
She's my best friend in the world. It took me a long time to 
find that out, but I finally have. My Mom struggled to make the 
best life possible for my brothers and I. She worked long hours 
at whatever job she had at the time. Bill didn't believe in a 
job for himself. He was an "artist". Even when he did get a 
job, he thought he was worth his weight in gold or something 
because he never had one for very long. He drank and smoked 
away every damn penny he got his damn hands on. Bill was a very 
mean drunk. The littlest things would set him off and he would 
always take them out on my Mom. If I had a penny for all the 
times he beat my mom, I could go on one hell of a shopping trip. 
The thing he liked to do the most was back her into a corner 
and just start punching her. He didn't slap, he punched. He 
thought she was his own God-damn punching bag or something. I 
remember one time, I think it was second grade or something, he 
was having a fit and he broke one of these flower things we made 
in school for my mom. Mine was one of the prettiest. I'll never 
forget that. One time I heard my mom screaming and then the next 
thing I heard was Bill screaming and gasping, she threw hot tea 
allover his neck to protect herself. All I have to say about 
is good for her. I don't think the physical pain was half as 
bad for her as the mental and emotional strain he put on her. 
It hurts to even remember all of this. I know that she really 
was in love with Bill. Obviously, he knew her weak spots left 
and right. No matter what he did to her, he could always get her 
to take him back. Somehow he could always make her to feel 
bad when it was him who should feel like the shit that he really 
is. I don't really know everything that he put her through 
because I was young and for a long time I blocked that whole part 
of my life out. It's hard to just wake up one day and have to 
tell about a part of me that I'd just like to forget. I think 
with that part you would have just had to be there to see what he 
did to her. 

Levi and Clint were my life when I was younger. I thought my 
older brothers were God. Sure we fought. What normal siblings 
don't. But, I love my brothers and when it comes right down 
to it, I'd die for either one of them. Bill drove Levi away in a 
big way. I hate him for that. One time, Levi was probably 13 
or 14, they were having a poker party and the music just shook 
the whole house, it was a school night and it was late. Levi 
went upstairs and turned it down, Bill freaked and cranked it up 
louder than before. Well of course that set things right off. 
I was in my room so I didn't see anything but I heard a struggle. 
Another time Levi went to help my Mom when Bill was beating her 
and then Bill started in on Levi. That time Clint and I both 
snuck upstairs to see. I was terrified, I though he was really 
going to hurt him. I don't remember what happened at the end of 
that. The scariest thing I remember about Bill and Levi, still 
makes me shiver to this day. Levi had broken his jaw and it was 
wired shut. 
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He had just gotten it unwired and I remember Bill and Levi had 
been fighting about something. Levi and Aaron were in their room 
talking to Mom about Bill and Bill walked in. I wasn't there at 
that time but then I heard yelling, so I ran downstairs to see 
what was going on. Bill had Levi down on the floor and was 
just about to punch him in the mouth when Aaron jumped on Him. 
God, if Aaron wouldn't have been there that could have done some 
serious damage. I don't remember all what happened afterwards, 
but Bill left for awhile. Shortly after that Levi got a job. 
He was helping a guy cut wood and whatnot. Levi did not like 
people using his things. One night he came home, something of 
his had been move~ or gone or something, I wasn't there and I 
don't remember everything that I was told but at any rate, Levi 
got kicked out and was staying with my Mom's Mom and her husband. 
Next thing I knew he was moving to Texas to live with our dad. 
The night he came to say good-bye to me I started crying. He 
thought it was just because he was leaving. But when he left 
a part of me died. Levi was protection for all of us and he 
was leaving. The more people I had, the more protection I had. 
Clint was rarely home after that. Before that he was with Levi 
and his friends a lot. Anyways, they had paper routes and were 
older so they could leave more, whereas I always had to be home 
with Bill. Clint and I are so close in age that it caused a lot 
of conflicts. I don't remember a lot of him. He was there, 
but I didn't cling to him like I did Levi. I loved Clint just as 
much as I loved Levi, but we had a much different relationship. 
I've never talked to Clint about any of this. I don't know why 
but I just never did. I don't even remember Bill hitting Clint, 
he was just more the type to leave other than stay around and get 
into it. He still is that way. He played sports and band, had 
a lot of friends, etc. I think that was his escape after Levi 
left. Clint left after Bill was gone for good, but I do know 
with all my heart and soul that if he would have left when Bill 
was still there I would have lost the little bit of sanity that 
I had left at that point in time. Just to point out Clint's 
calmness in situations I can recall the Christmas of my 6th 
grade year. I had told my Mom and Bill was out for good. I 
think it was the evening of Christmas Day. Mom, Clint and 
myself were at the table in the kitchen playing rummi-kube. 
We heard a knock at the back door and Mom went to answer it. 
It was Bill and he wanted to come in and talk. Mom stayed 
calm and told him to please leave. He wouldn't leave and :hen 
he proceeded to try and knock the door down. There was a butcher 
knife sitting on the counter and I immediately jumped up and 
grabbed it. I've never been filled with so much hatred in my 
life than in that point of time. All I wanted to do was run 
down those three stairs and plunge that knife right into his 
heart and then twist it a bit. Through all of this Clint sat 
there and looked calm as a cucumber. He told me in a low voice 
calm and steady to just sit down and relax. Then he took my knife 
away. Bill finally left .and Mom immediately call over to Bill's 
Mom's house and told her to keep her son away from our house. 
Then Jim (Bill's brother) got on the phone and said she was 
crazy because Bill had been home all night and hadn't left to 
go anywhere. Whatever. 



After that night I slept with that butcher knife for a long time. 
Even now I sleep with a knife. I don't think I've ever exactly 
felt safe. I hope someday I do. But I have a feeling that that 
day will only come when I know he's in prison where he belongs 
behind bars or dead. 
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To write about what Bill did to me is very hard for me. I felt 
embarrassed and ashamed for my whole life. I not only feel anger 
because things that happened should have been saved for me for 
when I was with the man I love and want to be with. He took 
away that innocence and no matter what I do, did, or thought cDout 
I could and never can change that. 

I don't remember a lot of things that happened. I'll see or hear 
something and I'll have this "flashback" it doesn't matter where 
I am. It's very ,scary and I'm glad in one way that I can remember 
but on the other hand I just wish that I could forget all of it 
forever. Maybe writing this will help me, but I guess only time 
will tell. I feel that one reason I don't remember a lot is 
because I was so young. But the real reason is mainly because, 
as things escalated I put myself in this shell. I would just 
go to this far off land and not think about what was happening. 
I guess I'll just start by telling about different incidents that 
happened. 

When things first started it would start out with Bill saying 
"give me a back-rub". That was fine. Then it would start with 
"rub me allover". He told me not to be afraid to touch his penis 
because it was just skin. That went on for the first few years. 

I started to develop at an early age, on top of that I was fat, 
so that made it even more so noticeable. Bill started to grab 
my butt and breasts when no-one was around whenever he could. 
I think I was about nine or ten when he grabbed once and I told 
him "you best keep your hands off of mel" Then he told me that 
if I ever said a word of this to anyone that he would kill my 
Mom and my brothers. What was I supposed to do? That was all 
I had in my entire life. So, I continued to do whatever he 
wanted, whenever he wanted. 

A short time after that I came home from school one day. Bill 
told me to come into his room. He was in bed, naked, and he told 
me to rub him. I did and he started to ejaculate. It scared me 
so I ran down to my room and backed up in my closet. Bill ran 
downstairs after me and grabbed me and told me to grab him on the 
penis. I was so scared. I remember crying and screaming, but 
he wouldn't leave. I did what he told me until he ejaculated 
again. He made me taste it. I threw-up after that. That was 
definitely the most degrading thing in the world. 

I remember another time Bill made me stay horne from school two 
days in a row. He made me take off my shirt and he would straddle 
me and just rub and rub. Both days I was to act like nothing 
was wrong and just pretend I went to school when my Morn found 
out she thought I'd skipped school, so she grounded me. That 
one I'll never forget. 

I remember one time my Morn found my shoes in her room. She 
asked me what they were doing in there. I was so scared. 
What would she do, better yet, what would Bill do? I told her 
that I just kicked them off in there while Bill was talking to me 
I don't remember what happened that day, but I do remember how 
much I just wanted to hug her and tell her everything. 

One of the most scariest times of all, and that will always stick 
in my mind was the day he showed me "what Mommy likes," that's 
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exactly what he said. He made me strip down and then he got on 
top of me. He licked me from my throat all the way down to my 
vagina. That was the first time he had oral sex with me. THen 
we heard a knock on the door. It was a police officer. Bill 
made me go answer the door and say he wasn't there. I had been 
crying and the officer asked me what was wrong. I don't 
remember what I said to him, but I remember he wasn't, or at 
least didn't seem to be, convinced. I wanted to scream at the 
top of my lungs, '.'He' s in the bedroom!", but I didn't. God 
knows what would have happened if I did. 

I remember hiding behind the furnace a lot. You had to be 
really small to fit back there and I knew he couldn't get back 
there. It was the safest place in the whole house for me. I 
remember it being kind of like my "sanctuary". 

I know I didn't write a whole lot about the things that Bill 
did to me, but the things I do remember I live with "24-7". 
The things I don't, corne alive every night. Now so more than 
ever. I just want this to be done and over with. Mainly so 
that I can go on with my life and definitely so that he can 
be stopped. He's hurt enough people for one lifetime. 

I'm not doing this to hurt anyone or cause anyone problems, 
except, Bill deserves this. I've never got to confront him 
myself and I really think that that is something I need to do 
in order to move on with my life. 

To anyone whom may read this, please remember I was just a child 
when all of this occurred. I never said anything until the 
beginning of my sixth grade year in school. Please also 
remember that writing this was the hardest thing I have ever 
done in my whole life. I will come back there whenever I need 
to for whatever reason. Whether it is for Erinne's case or 
my own. We all need to corne together and stop this man. It's 
never too late. I am going to be fine, but he doesn't need to 
be on the loose and able to harm anyone else ever again. 

T.J. Pullman 
01/30/94 
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AMENDMENTS TO S8 206 AS INTRODUCED 

AMENDMENT 1) LINE 18- FOLLOWING: "because"; INSERT: "of an allegation" 
(SEE ISSUE 1) 

AMENDMENT 2) LINE 26- FOLLOWING: "whenever"; INSERT: "temporary" 
(SEE ISSUE 2) 

PAGE 5: 
AMENDMENT 3) LINE 14- FOLLOWING:"(b)"; STRIKE:: "knowingly"; FOLLOWING: "commits or"; 
STRIKE:: "knowinglv"; 
(SEE ISSUE 3) 

PAGE 6: 
AMENDMENT 4) FOLLOWING LINE 2: INSERT: "(13) "Investigator" means an official trained 

- by, or who has had training verified by the department and who meet definite qualifications set by the 
department in the investigation of child abuse, neglect and endangerment. Investigators can be, but 
are not limited to being social workers, officials of the county attorney's office, and peace officers." -

:~ 

RENUMBER SUBSEQUENT SUBSECTIONS 
(SEE ISSUE 4) 

- AMENDMENT 5} FOLLOWING LINE 16: INSERT: "Treatment Professional" means any 
physician or mental health practitioner who has knowledge, training or experience in the diagnoses 

- and treatment of child abuse, neglect or endangerment cases." 
(SEE ISSUE 5) 

""'" AMENDMENT 6) LINE 21- FOLLOWING: "person"; INSERT: "who has not been involved in a 
verified sexual offense,· 
(SEE ISSUE 6) 

AMENDMENT 7) LINES 26 AND 27- FOLLOWING: "(20)"; STRIKE: ENTIRE SUB-SECTION; 
"'" INSERT: ""Social worker" means a person who has been educated or trained or is receiving 

education or training in a program of Social Work; and who has had verifiable training or who has 
specific training by the department in the investigation of child abuse, neglect and endangerment." 

_ (SEE ISSUE 7) 

PAGE 8: 
- AMENDMENT 8) LINE 27- FOLLOWING: "(5)"; INSERT; " Except if the person is a minor or a 

family member of the subject of the report;· FOLLOWING: "must be made under oath"; INSERT: "to 
the best of their knowledge" 

- (SEE ISSUE 8) 



AMENDMENTS TO S8 206 AS INTRODUCED (CONT.) 

PAGE 9 
AMENDMENT 9) LINE 5- FOLLOWING: "believe"; INSERT: "believe to the best of their 
knowledge and" 
(SEE ISSUE 8 ). 

AMENDMENT 10) LINE 10- FOLLOWING: "neglected," ; STRIKE: "a social worker or the county 
attorney or a peace officer"; INSERT: " an investigator"-
(SEE ISSUE 4 ) 

AMENDMENT 11) LINE 14- FOLLOWING: "section," ; STRIKE: "a social worker"; INSERT: " an 
investigator" 
(SEE ISSUE 4 ) 

III 

iii 
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AMENDMENT 12) LINE 20- FOLLOWING: "home"; INSERT: "except as provided for in 41-3-301, 
or for the purpose of an examination at a health facility to corroborate evidence of abuse, neglect or 

. endangerment suspected by the investigator pursuant to subsection 4 of this section. Ii 

(SEE ISSUE 9) 

AMENDMENT 13) LINE 21- FOLLOWING: "rn The" ; STRIKE: "the social worker"; INSERT: "the 
treatment professional"-
(SEE ISSUE 5) 

AMENDMENT 14) LINE 22- FOLLOWING: "facility," ; STRIKE: "the social worker, county attorney 
or peace officer"; INSERT: " the investigator"-
(SEE ISSUE 4 ) 

AMENDMENT 15) LINE 25- FOLLOWING: "by" ; STRIKE: "the social worker, county attorney or 
peace officer"; INSERT: " the investigator" 
(SEE ISSUE 4 ) 

AMENDMENT 16) LINE 28 and 29- FOLLOWING: "by" ; STRIKE: " the independent examining 
psychologist or physician"; INSERT "an examining treatment professional not employed by the 
state"; 
(SEE ISSUE 10) 

AMENDMENT 17) LINE 29- FOLLOWING: "child" INSERT: "is taken to a medical facility for the 
purpose of determining whether there is evidence of abuse, neglect or endangerment of the child" 
(SEE ISSUE 10) 

AMENDMENT 18) LINE 29- FOLLOWING BOTH OCCURRENCES OF: "by"; STRIKE: "the social 
worker"; INSERT: "the investigator" 
(SEE ISSUE 4) 

III 

l1li 
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.. 
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ill 
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AMENDMENTS TO S8 206 AS INTRODUCED (CONT.) 

AMENDMENT 19) LINE 30- FOLLOWING: "family"; INSERT: "or a treatment professional 
representing the family or both." 
(SEE ISSUE 5 and 10). 

PAGE 10: 
AMENDMENT 20) LINE 11- FOLLOWING: "report" INSERT: "pursuant to 41-3-205." 
(SEE ISSUE 11) 

PAGE 11: 
AMENDMENT 21) LINES 3 THROUGH 5- STRIKE ENTIRE SUBSECTION (5). RENUMBER 
SUBSEQUENT SUB-SECTION. 
(SEE ISSUE 12) 

AMENDMENT 22) LINE 30- FOLLOWING: "without"; STRIKE: "with"; INSERT: "without" 
(SEE ISSUE 13) 

PAGE12 
AMENDMENT 23) LINES 21 AND 22- FOLLOWING: "by" ; STRIKE: "a social worker, county 
attorney or peace officer"; INSERT: " an investigator"-
(SEE ISSUE 4 ) 

PAGE 13 
AMENDMENT 24) LINES 20- FOLLOWING: "protective" ; STRIKE: "social worker"; INSERT: " 
investigator" 
(SEE ISSUE 4 ) 

PAGE 15: 
AMENDMENT 25) LINE 15-FOLLOWING: "+Ae"; STRIKE: "After filing criminal charges alleging 
abuse or endangerment against a family member or family associate, the"; INSERT: "The" 
(SEE ISSUE 14) 

PAGE 16: 
AMENDMENT26) LINE 22-FOLLOWING: "adoption"; INSERT: "only after having filed criminal 
charges alleging abuse or endangerment against a family member or family associate" 
(SEE ISSUE 14) 

PAGE17 
AMENDMENT 27) LINES 20- FOLLOWING: "protective" ; STRIKE: "social worker"; INSERT: " 
investigator" 
(SEE ISSUE 4 ) 



AMENDMENTS TO S8 206 AS INTRODUCED (CONT.) 

PAGE 18: 
AMENDMENT 28) LINE 29-FOLLOWING: "child's"; STRIKE: "residence within 4 hours of the 
change"; INSERT: "whereabouts as soon as possible where appropriate pursuant to 41-3-205 and 
41-3-301." 
(SEE ISSUE 15) 

AMENDMENT 29) LINE 30-FOLLOWING:"(5)"; INSERT: "(a)" 
(SEE ISSUE 15) 

PAGE 19: 
AMENDMENT 30) FOLLOWING LINE 1 INSERT: "(bY' 
(SEE ISSUE 15) 

AMENDMENT 31) FOLLOWING LINE 3 INSERT: "(c) The entitlements and in (5) (a) ana (5) (b) 
may be expanded where deemed appropriate by the department and do not apply or may be 
restricted if criminal charges have been filed or if deemed inappropriate by the department or the 
court pursuant to 41-3-205 and 41-3-301." 
(SEE ISSUE 15) 

PAGE 22 
AMENDMENT 32) LINE 20- FOLLOWING: "two" ; STRIKE: "medical doctors"; INSERT: "treatment 
professionals" 
(SEE ISSUE 5) 

PAGE 24: 
AMENDMENT 33) LINE 1- FOLLOWING: "department"; STRIKE: "shall" INSERT: "may" 
(SEE ISSUE 15) 

AMENDMENT 34) LINE 2- FOLLOWING: "with"; INSERT: "appropriate" 
(SEE ISSUE 15) 

AMENDMENT 35) LINE 2- FOLLOWING: "home"; INSERT: "pursuant to 41-3-205 and 41-3-301." 
(SEE ISSUE 15) 
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There is a sentiment that the pendulum of concem- erring on the sidEfof'ch11tt- -
protection- now has to swing back- to err on the side of protecting family rights. _ 

Perhaps, while this is unavoidable, the degree of the "swing" might be dampened. 
There is a claim that overzealous protection of our children has needlessly violated the rights 
of too many families. There is an element of truth to this, but the degree of the problem is 
difficult to determine. 

Let us hope that we have learned by this. So that we stem the degree of potentially 
overzealous protection of family rights. That way, we may keep too many children from 
needlessly suffering and dying. 

ISSUE 1) CLARIFYING ALLEGATIONS FROM SUSPICIONS IN AN INVESTIGATION. 

ISSUE 2) CLARIFYING AVOIDING PROSELYTISM WHEREVER PRACTICAL. 

ISSUE 3) SUSPENDING "KNOWLlNGL Y" WHEN SUSPECT IS POSSIBLY IN DENIAL. 

ISSUE 4) SPECIFYING THAT INVESTIGATORS NEED SPECIAL TRAINING. 

ISSUE 5) TREATMENT PROFESSIONALS WITH SPECIFIC EXPERTISE ARE NEEDED. 

ISSUE 6) CLARIFYING APPROPRIATE EXPRESSIONS OF CONCERN AND LOVE. 

ISSUE 7) CLARIFYING DEFINITION AND QUALIFICATIONS OF SOCIAL WORKERS. 

ISSUE 8) WHO IS NOT APPROPRIATE TO BE REQUIRED TO RENDER OATH'S. 

ISSUE 9) CLARIFYING RESTRICTIONS FOR REMOVING THE CHILD FROM THE HOME. 

ISSUE 10) CLARIFYING EQUAL REPRESENTATION FOR THE FAMILY IN AN EXAMINATION. 

ISSUE 11) CLARIFYING THAT CONFIDENTIALITY STATUTES ARE FOLLOWED. 

ISSUE 12) RESTRICTIONS ON HEARSAY EVIDENCE OF THE INVESTIGATORS. 

ISSUE 13) PRESERVING CONFIDENTIALITY OF REPORTERS OF ABUSE. 

ISSUE 14) WHEN CRIMINAL CHARGES ARE APPROPRIATE. 

ISSUE 15) PROTECTING FAMILY RIGHTS TO CHILDREN AND RELIEVING DISTRESS. 

CONCLUSIONS: There is a need to protect both the rights of the family as well as the safety 
of the vulnerable individual. It is accepted practice wisdom that families as well as children 
are best treated as part of a system- a family unit- to break cycles of abuse that are visited 
upon succeeding generations. Yet it serves no one to disrupt families needlessly, for obvious 
reasons. We can ill afford to diminish the confidence of the public, waste the time and 
resources of the s~ate and its workers and increase the potential for errors in an area of public 

ro e . ". rror"_ 



ISSUES DESCRIBED TO SB 206 AS INTRODUCED 
II 

ISSUE 1) CLARIFYING ALLEGATIONS FROM SUSPICIONS IN AN INVESTIGATION. 
This amendment would help clarify the intent of the bill- that is to protect both the family AND III 

an abused child, as well as free the investigator's time to focus on legitimate cases. 
(SEE AMENDMENT 1) 

ISSUE 2) CLARIFYING AVOIDING PROSELYTISM WHEREVER PRACTICAL. 
Clearly, whenever a TEMPORARY placement is made, this seems only fair and wise. It 

seems impractical that a PERMANENT placement could ever realistically achieve this measure . 
. As a matter of policy, it is questionable whether the state should create impractical burdens 

on limited resources that provide for the shelter, safety and well being of seriously threatened 
children. We should avoid discouraging. foster care or group home services. 

However, it could depend upon the LENGTH of a temporary placement as determined by a 
treatment plan or other recommendations. 

(SEE AMENDMENT 2) 

ISSUE 3) SUSPENDING "KNOWLlNGL Y" WHEN SUSPECT IS POSSIBLY IN DENIAL. 

II 

A predominant characteristic of sexual offenders is that they are under the burden of personal 
DENIAL. This internal conflict produces a web of deceit and secrecy which is so profound that it 
prevents the persons involved from admitting any history of sexual abuse or sexual victimization they l1li 

have to THEMSEL VES , as well as others. 
To them, they may never have committed these acts "KNOWINGL Y". Unless they 

receive an intervention coupled with treatment for their disorder, they may never even know that they III 

don't know. 
It is similar to the dilemma of a chronic alcoholic, who compares themselves to other practicing 

III 
alcoholics. The association with other alcoholics makes voluminous drinking, constant hangovers, 
DUl's and horrendous behavior while intoxicated actually seem only normal. 

(SEE AMENDMENT 3) 
l1li 

ISSUE 4) SPECIFYING THAT INVESTIGATORS NEED SPECIAL TRAINING. 
Training and qualifications would provide for consistent practice and application of the mission II1II 

of "FA MIL Y" services, in accord with state policy, and would further the intent of this bill. 
(SEE AMENDMENTS 4,10,11,14,15,18,23,24,27) 

ISSUE 5) TREATMENT PROFESSIONALS WITH SPECIFIC EXPERTISE ARE NEEDED. 
CERTI-.. tv health professionals have specialized knowledge and experience vital to the 

identification of the symptoms and A PPROPRIA TE diagnoses of child abuse, neglect, or 
endangerment. Abuse is sometimes very difficult to diagnose, even by a competent health 
professional who otherwise may not have this knowledge. 

This knowledge is critical in determining a need for further action; where the best treatment 
should be, or whether there should be a separation, temporary or otherwise, for the safety and 
treatment of the of the child and the appropriate treatment of the family. 

As important, this knowledge would expedite an investigation help re-unite families as quickly 
as possible. 

Within the intent of this bill, the state will decide that "there is no room for error" in the 
enactment of child protective services. So the state must use qualified professionals to provide the 
critical information needed to get the most accurate results from these investigations as possible. 

SEE AMENDMENTS 5. 13. 19 AND 32) 

III 
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ISSUE 6) CLARIFYING APPROPRIATE EXPRESSIONS OF CONCERN AND LOVE. 
Sexual offenders and their chronic victims are struggling with personal DENIAL and could 

never be expected to decide what is a "REASONABLE" contact with another persons genitalia. 
Issues about appropriate expression of "concern" or "love" are confused by persons with this 

disorder and may never get this straight by reasonable community standards. 
(SEE AMENDMENT 6) 

ISSUE 7) CLARIFYING DEFINITION AND QUALIFICATIONS OF SOCIAL WORKERS. 
Proper training and qualifications are vital to protect the rights and safety of families and 

especially children. The state sets the criteria with which it can hold itself, and the professionals it 
employs reasonably and legitimately ACCOUNTABLE for the public good. 

Law enforcement officials operate within strict guidelines and standards determined by the 
state. They are extensively trained in matters specific to their mission. They are generally recognized 
by the community as there to enforce the law and to be of assistance. That is consistent with their 
mission "to protect and to serve." 

Social workers in child protective services TODA Yare in the unenviable position of having to 
address cases in which their actions are open to legitimate criticism REGARDLESS of what they do. 
They are at times put in direct conflict with their own professional ethics within the guidelines of 
current statute. THEY must choose whether to potentially harm a family, or potentially leave children 
at risk of being harmed. The public, the community and the state allow little room for error. 

If the intent of this bill is to "restore public confidence in the child protective system AND to 
provide protection of individual and family civil rights" within constitutional guidelines, then proper 
knowledge and training is a critical. This should be a necessary requirement clarified in statute before 
the state sends officials out to intervene in a crisis or perhaps needlessly interfere in peoples lives. 

(SEE AMENDMENT 7) 

ISSUE 8) WHO IS NOT APPROPRIATE TO BE REQUIRED TO RENDER OATH'S. 
Persons cited UNDER THESE SECTIONS perhaps should be held accountable for their 

allegations. This might reduce the number of incidences of "vindictive", "harassing" or "trivia/" reports. 
Investigators, who by law must investigate each case, might be freed to spend their time completing 
the more substantiable investigations in their caseload and hasten the return of children to their 
families wherever possible. 

But there is a need to protect real victims and members of their family, and allow them to make 
reports that could reveal imminent danger to a child. Threats of violence and retn"bution are a 
predominant way that perpetrators sustain the veil of silence about abuse within the family. The 
mandate of having to testify under oath can only deter such reports. 

We must ask ourselves what it would mean if the report is from the victim who is a child? 
However, it is necessary to avoid prohibitively restricting mandated reporting, hence the 

additional clause "to the best of their knowledge" has been added along with the oath wherever 
applicable. 

(SEE AMENDMENTS 8,9 ) 

ISSUE 9) CLARIFYING RESTRICTIONS FOR REMOVING THE CHILD FROM THE HOME. 
This amendment would allow for greater consistency for the dual goal of this bill.; protecting 

the child and the family. It also accounts for emergencies and would allow for an investigation to 
proceed with the removal of a child from the home ONL Y to provide for corroboration if necessary. 

(SEE AMENDMENT 12) 

"" 



ISSUES DESCRIBED TO SB 206 AS INTRODUCED 

ISSUE 10) CLARIFYING EQUAL REPRESENTATION FOR THE FAMILY IN AN EXAMINATION. 
These amendments clarify that there is a qualified professional observing the examination on 

behalf of the family, insuring that the family is represented equally AND FAIRLY. 
In the case where a representative of the family can not be made available, at least there is 

recourse r')( the family. Again, the investigator can seek corroboration to continue the investigation if 
necessary. 

(SEE AMENDMENTS 16,17,19) 

ISSUE 11) CLARIFYING THAT CONFIDENTIALITY STATUTES ARE FOLLOWED. 
This would clarify that such reports would not have to be made in violation of the law and of 

the ethics of those individuals who are responsible for the care of children in these institutions. 
(SEE AMENDMENT 20) 

ISSUE 12) RESTRICTIONS ON HEARSAY EVIDENCE OF THE INVESTIGATORS. 
There are some serious concerns about this section. The court should have all the available 

evidence possible to make an informed decision about this serious and complicated issue. 
Presumably there would have already been a taping of examinations of the child pursuant to 
amendments in section 5 of this bill of 41-3-202. 

(SEE AMENDMENT 21) . 

ISSUE 13) PRESERVING CONFIDENTIALITY OF REPORTERS OF ABUSE. 
This is unnecessary risk to investigators and community members who are mandated to 

report. Among the individuals suspected in these cases are the mentally ill and 1t,.J/ent.. If the subject 
of the report is charged and the reporter is among those who would have taken an oath, then the 
defendant would be allowed to know his accuser in the criminal proceeding. If the subject is not 
charged then there are other parts of this bill and in statute which should allow for appropriate 
remedy 

(SEE AMENDMENT 22) 

ISSUE 1.1) WHEN CRIMINAL CHARGES ARE APPROPRIATE. 
Experts in criminal law must review this issue thoroughly. 
The point of making abuse, neglect and endangerment always criminal, (which may vary from 

misdemeanor to felony charges), can actually be a detriment to keeping families together. However 
criminal t- analties can also help facilitate treatment by mandating it, and providing consequences 
when treatment plans are not followed. This set of amendments is one compromise available. 

Having to file criminal charges against a person for TEMPORARY investigative authority (TlA) 
could virtually eliminate the ability of officials to investigate cases of alleged suspected abuse 
proper/yo 

But, it would seem that termination of parental legal rights should not be done without at least 
the filing of a specific charge against someone. If there are extraordinary circumstances in the case 
the courts will still have discretion to provide (TlA). 

(SEE AMENDMENTS 25 AND 26) 
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ISSUES DESCRIBED TO SB 206 AS INTRODUCED 

ISSUE 15) PROTECTING FAMILY RIGHTS TO CHILDREN AND RELIEVING DISTRESS. 
These amendments would at least help mitigate some of the distress experienced by the 

family, protect the family's rights and be consistent with current law and statutes. 
Some arrow for guaranteed visitation without unduly threatening the safety of a child or the 

integrity of an investigation. 
It would be helpful for the families comfort and the preservation of their rights and 

responsibilities toward their children to be given as much information as possible in regards to the 
whereabouts of their children, and the characteristics of their caregivers as is reasonable and lawful. 

(SEE AMENDMENTS 28,29,30,31,33,34 AND 35) 

CONCLUSIONS: 

There is a need to protect both the rights of the family as well as the safety of the 
vulnerable individual. It is accepted practice wisdom that families as well as children are best 
treated as part of a system- a family unit- to break cycles of abuse that are visited upon 
succeeding generations. Yet it serves no one to disrupt families needlessly, for obvious 
reasons. We can ill afford to diminish the confidence of the public, waste the time and 
resources of the state and its workers and increase the potential for errors in an area of public 
protection where "there is no room for error". 
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Mr. Chairman, members of the Senate Judiciary Committee: Cl..U[-__ k~.J-=- _ 

For the record, my name is Laurie Koutnik, executive Director of Christian coaliJ~nr.gf"KI6fu~~I!!..--~ 
our state's largest family advocacy organization, and a former foster care parent. 

I have visited with Sen. Burnett on his measure, SB206, and understand the desire he has to 
protect families and advocate sound policy regarding the removal of children. His concerns are 
genuine and most admirable. I, too, am concerned for the protection of families and the loving 
care of children removed from their homes. But I cannot support this measure as it is written. 

No matter how well intentioned this legislation is, it will have devastating effects on those it is 
designed to help. From my perspective, it is not in the best interest of families, children, foster 
care families, or the social service agency, Dept.ofFamily Services, who is compelled by law to 
investigate every report of abuse or neglect. 

If we truly want to help families, then we must have a law flexible enough to allow DFS to meet 
the unique circumstances of each case. To require the filing of criminal charges may be counter 
productive to working with a family to return the child back home. Having to outfit every DFS 
office with enough video cameras and television sets for viewing is expensive and :mpractical. In 
some cases, it takes time for a child to develop a relationship with a social worker, psychologist, 
guardian ad litem, or foster parent, to have enough trust to tell what happened to them. To expect 
children to be able to verbalize their abuse or ongoing neglect does not happen in one setting in 
front of a video camera. In fact, my guess is most kids would be intimidated or too ashamed to 
talk in front of a camera at all. Most of the children in my care were experiencing deep pain of 
being violated or unloved to talk about it. They simply internalized a lot of emotions, Some cases 
come to others attention because of drastic changes in behavior patterns, not because the child has 
visible bruises. Let's not try through "one-size-fits-alllaw" to cure what takes sensitivity and a 
delicate balance oflaw and loving concern for those families we so badly want to help. 

Confidentiality is a must for foster care families. With the shortage of placement homes now, why 
discourage current or future foster care families by violating their confidentiality. It is impractical 
to think you can move kids at will simply because a natural family would object to a foster home. 
We don't have enough now to meet the demand. Current licensing procedures and foster care 
training ensure us some of the best prepared and qualified families in local communities who are 
dedicated to the love and nurture of the children they serve. 

The current process can use some improving, yes, we all agree, but it is my understanding much 
of what concerns Sen. Burnnett and other legislators will be addressed in legislation sponsored by 
Rep. Betty Lou Kasten HB 186 later this week. Workable solutions for all parties involved will 
best serve the children. Therefor I recommend a do not pass on SB 206. Thank you. 

Submitted: 2-6-95 
Laurie Koutnik, Executive Director 
Christian Coalition of Montana 



TESTIMONY OF MONTANA NURSEs..ASSOCIATION 
ON SENATE BILL 206 

REGARDING CHILD ABUSE INVESTIGATIONS 

I am Steven Shapiro appearing for the Montana Nurses Association which represents 1400 
registered professional nurses in the State of Montana. As health care professionals, our members 
frequently discover and care for children who have been sUbjected to abuse or neglect. 

The Montana Nurses Association opposes Senate Bill 206. The bill is based on the 
erroneous premise that the State's existing child protective system is not functioning properly and 
causes unfounded accusations of abuse. It asserts that the correction to this problem should be 
requiring that child abuse allegations be charged as crimes and proven beyond a reasonable doubt 
before action is taken to protect children who appear to be victims of abuse. 

The existing child protective laws are based on the principle that children should be protected 
first, and disputes over legal technicalities should follow. It already requires immediate action for 
review by the district court when a child is taken into the State's protective custody. If the court 
finds reasonable cause, a child may remain in protective custody and the process will begin to treat 
and ultimately reunite the family. 

SB 206 would require that a crime be investigated and charged before a child may be 
removed from an abusive home. The facts proving the existence of physical or emotional abuse are 
not always readily apparent or available at an instant. The only direct witness may be a child who 
has been battered for years, and who has withdrawn into a shell so he cannot speak for himself or 
let others know of his plight. It may be years, or never, before a county attorney may be able to 
gather enough evidence for a criminal charge and longer to process through the court system. 
Meanwhile, a child may remain under the roof and in the hands of his abusers, perhaps suffering 
further and being convinced not to testify about what has occurred. 

SB 206 appears to be part of a trilogy to weaken the child protective system in this state, 
including: SB270 proposes the destruction of reports of child abuse and neglect within 20 days of 
being unable to confirm the report. This will result in professionals being unable to track a pattern 
of child abuse that develops over time. SB271 proposes to require that an abused child removed 
from his O'hTI home must be placed with his extended family before being placed in other foster care. 
However, the child may not be adequately protected in this setting, and it ignores the fact that 

abusive environments frequently include extended families. Together, these three bills would be 
a great backward step in the protection of the children in our state from abuse and neglect. 

We speak in support of the safety and welfare of all of the children of this state. We urge 
you to protect the children of Montana by voting DO NOT PASS on SB 206. 
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Mr. Chairman, members of the committee, my name is Randy Mills, I 
live here in Helena, and I don't lobby for anyone. As a survivor 
of child abuse, I am strongly opposed to this bill. 

In reading this bill, it is clear that the intent is to reduce 
the number of false allegations of abuse. I feel badly for any 
family that has to go through the agony of child abuse or the 
false allegation of child abuse. This bill may well reduce the 
number of cases of false allegations, but I fear it will increase 
the number of prosecutions for child assault and even child 
murder. 

At the very least, this bill will have a chilling effect on 
something that's already phenomenally difficult: getting a child 
to speak up when they're being abused by a family member or 
relative. I believe that for every child who does speak up, 
there are several more who do not or can not. This bill will 
guarantee that this silent suffering by children will continue 
not only unabated, but with the blessing of the law. 

Child abuse is a very difficult crime to prosecute, and 
prosecutors do not file charges in cases in which the outcome is 
unclear. This bill's requirement of a hands-off policy by DFS 
until the filing of those charges will guarantee that, once 
charges are filed, they will be for a more severe crime than if 
DFS could have stepped in earlier. 

This state, to its credit, has good laws on the prevention of and 
response to spousal abuse and even elder abuse. This Legislature 
is considering bills that would make those laws on spousal abuse 
and elder abuse even tougher. But as regards abused children, 
we're considering this bill, which will roll back protection for 
children, the citizens who are least able to protect and speak 
out for themselves. 

Under current Montana law, when peace officers respond to a 
report of domestic abuse, arrest of at least one party is the 
preferred response when violence, the threat of violence or the 
use of a weapon is suspected or just threatened. This bill would 
chill that law as regards abused children, but will leave abused 
adults protected. 

Current law requires that a peace officer, at the very least, 
make a written report when responding to domestic abuse calls, 
and, if the vic~im is present, give the victim a list o~ options, 
including local safehouses, violence hotlines and so forth. The 
peace officer is further required to tell the victim of their 
rights under the law, including the right to get restraining 
orders and so forth. 



This bill would have a chilling effect, again, on peace officers 
performing that legally required duty. 

I suggest that the domestic abuse prevention and response laws at 
46-6-311 (and following) and at 46-6-601 (and following) will be 
a~ conflict with the provisions of SB 206, and that the clear 
"hands-off" tone of SB 206 will override any legal requirements 
found elsewhere in the law. 

Mr. Chairman, m~mbers of the committee, parents and other adults 
who may be falsely accused of abuse have my deepest ~ympathies, 
however few they may be. How we respond as a society to false 
allegations is a serious issue tl-'3.t deserves serious 
consideration. However, childre. need protection from sexual, 
physical and emotional abuse, plain and simple. Sometimes, that 
protection must come in the form of removal frOI;l the home, and it 
must sometimes come swiftly and decisively. 

I do not believe that the reputation of adults supposedly falsely 
accused should be protected at the cost of the silent suffering 
of our children. 

I urge you to bury this bill, rather than watch more children be 
buried by the fists of abusers. 

Thank you. 
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£XHIBIT_ ;.23 
• 

DATE.. ;). - b -95 _ 
513 d-Db 

f~1 °n~: a' ucnht?lledrs Vo I u n t~~·~·~-···-- . Vol u n te~-~~-"'--' 
fii1d child find child 

=-~.Wfien- police V"'~t= - Ie wh·e" Ie 
--='=~.~r Id ,.---~~ Wnen- po Ice n po Ice 
~ti~~'?~-- n t - - --~~~_~; wouldn't - '-'c \Vouldn't 
~?-d1~~V~\~aTg~y (~!~e -;es~~~c": ~£~~;i~tTO~ _ (AP) - Resi;; - ~~ ___ ~~:~;~~·HINGTON (AP) - Resi-
0~'a~missU;g __ boy and captured his-:-: -:: 0 ~:...-: d~I'!!§ of a halfway house rescued ::...--: __ ..: _____ 2!!nts of a halfway house rescued 
'_.:_;,.'j§s~t~ _ kidnapper after the- ;~ ,:-'=::c70s_ a~IlliSsing tx:y and captured his .--<~'-~-_-a ~n:issing boy and captured his 
: ~_-: boy's mother, upset by the lack :.:::==== suspe:c.ted kidnapper after the:=:'?- -:-::-~ suspected kidnapper after the 
;:::=.:;-of ffiliCe action, sought heJp from-' -;:-=:--=:::::; boY.-'~ mother, upset by the lack ~~ .. - __ c..boy:s mother, upset by the lack 
.-:~...:.:-~ ilie!t ex--CODYlcts in her ·o\\"n-: i~--;~-~-~~ -of po~ce action, sought help from - :~ - - -~-.~; o~ ~lice acti?n, sought heJp from 
_~.-c-:-= 's~Cn:-::' - - - . _ _ ;~~_~-? ffie~.~~x-coD\icts in her own _ :-~' ..... ~ •. jhe"" .ex-convlcts in her own 
~~;-~2:-A"'doz.en District of Columbia:: j,:-';:--'~:L search;-:- __ s~rch._ . 
.:.....::--.~~aY:~house residents discoY--: :~--- ___ Q'- A¥-doz.en District of Columbia-- F---:-= ::::::-;:'A',,~doz.en District of Columbia 
~-:,.er_eg the l1·year-<lJd boy and his ';=:-:::~ ga1f\ta-y house residents discov·-_- =:;.:':~-_J1a1fwayhouse residents discov. 
-:-:._ alleged C2ptor vm,pped in a blan--- ; --: - .~:- _ereg the-ll-year-<lld boy and his ~-::;;,-~~~~,ereg the ll'year-<lJd boy and his 
=-::.::-:;:-A~tJ~ .a..~'ooded area, about eight __ j-:- ':~=7 -a~:?ed C2ptor wrapped in a b!an- - ;~ -_ 'C,- alle?ed captor wrapped in a blan­

__ ..,~;:. bl~~_ from L'Je boy s southeast.. I--:-=-~=- _},:~t=l1!.-~_y,·ooded area about eIght - ~~~_::,_-~ k~t.~ a wooded area about eight 
~a~~g~on home .. _ __=_-~~._--_j ~.~~=- Ql~~ from_ the_ ~~'~_ s..<>~.0_east ~:;':=;~:=:~-:::c:'; bl~~ from the boy's southeast 
~~.. '-:- The boy was naked ~nd appar-·'. F~~;:~~as!.llngton home. ~ ._- -- -- -----.,--- ~'~=::~~- :'Yashington home. . . . 
==::::;-;-- eDU~ad:..no~~..Jn...1h~tl\.:Q.:: .. ,-~:~-c::;....;~ TIle boy~a~l!.ak~!~~d appar- ~ :;-'-~_ The boy was naked ~nd appar. 
=:::= elaX5..smce he was abducted on:"! :. i~~::-==- entl~ had not._ eaten ill the:1wo,,-_:., c~_c .:;:ently ~ad not eaten m the two 
-::..-::_~ Tbursday- while'. walking~ to his~) j~~da~:s~since he was· abducted one:, ~~:---,:,:_.~=,; day.s-:-smce he-was'-abductedon-
~tiiJt's bouse, poli co said .. , "cC ~J" -"TIlm;sca y whiJ". walking tohis~ 1,::t-c":"'o,O<I'!n":sday while. walking to his 
:_,, ___ )'he~ ooy's- mother~ saId; she~ .:..:..::c_ aun~house, pobce sald.-- : ~~~,:-;,=~~~unt s house, police saId. 

'~-;::::: turned to the halfway house res!-.:-} i ~~~.J~:~The.- bOy's mother said she ... _ ~:-.:=~_~:i::::.~-';..=- 'rl1e- boy's mother_ said she 
~~~ dents an.d other local volunteers '~: ! ~:~ c, ~,~ turned to the halfway house resi--" ~~~',~?~-~ed to the halfway house resi- -
::'".~~ after police officers tol.d her ~eyf<-;'! ~f~:~=-den~ an.d othe.r local volunteers. L.:;:;;;f;;_:;'=/h,dents an.d othe.r local volunteers 
-0-=:.could_ not launch an Immediate _ .~ :::-'-s.~ after police offIcers tol.d her ~ey:: ~:5:,c~t~ .after pobce officers tol.d her they 
:> ... ~ a~-<lut search ?ec~u.se the ~?' J I !::-:~~~;:couJd not launch an ImmedIate §'-c:~=e::_:_-couJd not launch an Immediate 

"-.;.-:;:---:, did"n~t ~eet cntena for, a ~n~-:~ . k2~~<::. a~"9ut search ?ec~use the ~o?,::: r->:~: ~':c:-E-- a~-out· search ~ec~use the boy " 
'.'~_ ' .. Calmlssmg person._~.::. ~_..:..:::: - :-.:~;::;:;..did_not meet cntena for a cnti-.=: ~-:o-,j'c--"'.=.-.:::.::.did n?t meet cntena for a criti- -
-'C~~~'They: told me since he was-: ;~~.ca1 missing person. - :: -1'"- _~ __ • -:::~::-:> c~ mISSing person. ; 
-=~"~ oVer 6 and under 85, didn't have- ;.:. -- ~~~-~'_They: told me srnce he was--;J~::&~~-£"":".:.::::'They- told me since he was 
:;'i~<a_mental condition or a disability i -::;0::'-":;, ov~ 6 and under 85, didn't have :::g~~",~;.:.-:~ over 6 and under 85, didn't have 

. :-:~~-~ andi.wasn't on medica~on; they : !=~.L-~-~a.m~ntal c.ondition o~ a ?isability ·.·ijC=~:~.~:~~. a,mental ~ondition o~ a disability 
--::_7.:~_co~dn't search for hlm," she I~~o_:=(::, andlwasn't on medication, they ~J~.-_~-o~andi w~snt on medication, they 
:--_~·;_sald.f:-:;-, .- - . ' -·'-~-~co\lldn't search for him," she :-:l'-~~.".c>-:-:-CO~dn t search for him," she 

-- -~1~~rnpfo~~~:hO \elt;!~ .... ~i. I '--~-~~~ Jenkins, a halfway':'~- \,:~~ . Jenkins, a halfway 
.. ganizethe search, said that when I ~ ho.~e_ employee who helped or- , ., ho~e employee who helped or-
,they approached L'Je pink blanket 1--' ga~e the search, said lliat when garuze the search, said that when 
-_ on the wooded hillside on Satur- _, - ·-theYapproached the pink blanket -they approached the pink blanket 
,- 0a1,_:'that baby jUJnped out and_ on, the wooded hillside on Satur-- on~? wood.ed hillside on Satur-

sald; 'Please don't Jeave me, help ,:day~-:·that baby jUJnped out and "day,_- that baby jumped out and 
-_me.'?.';, . . .. ... said;, 'Please don't leave me, help I said,',,'PJease don't leave me, help 
,~::)- The alleged kic:lapper, laenn- - - ,_me.'.:; : ·1_ _ . - me. '-
-.1iet:l_ by police as CO:ltee Stevens, I .'. _- ;;.-n- The alleged kidnapper, identi- _:". The alleged kidnapper, identi-
. .36, of Washingto:1, tried to Dee, -. Iieq by police as Con tee Stevens, . .fled by police as Conlee Stevens 
-_but._was captured by the search , . .36~_of Washington, tried to Dee, I .36, of Washington, tried to Dee' 

_" ,_' party after a lClO-yard chase. ' ._but_was captured by the search .• but..was captured by the search 
._ . _ The boy's :no:.~er, who was '-, . party after a lClO-yard chase. . : - party after a lOO-yard chase. 
, , __ about &0 yards away when her -: - The boy's mother, who was The boy's mother, who was 

SOD~ wzs discovered, witnessed _about &0 yards away when her about 50 yards away when her 
:.-. . ..~._~~. scene and had to be re... . SO~~ \\'as discovered, v;itnessed sonl:~ \vas discovered, v;itnessed 
f-,,-.-.. ;~;raiped by friends. A teJevlsion .. ~~1h~. scene and had to be re-,' llie,. scene and had to be reo 
:~~;~ .:.news _ crew fiL-ned LP-je chase of; ~_~aiped by friends. A television .. ;straIned by friends. A television 
~, :~. the. suspect. .Jle~s crew filmed the chase of .' news. crew filmed the chase of 
• . __ ~. ~ the sUspect. '. the. suspect. 

---- ," .. >:" -



E.xhibit No. 24 consists of 16 pages of 
signatures. The original is stored at 
the Historical Society at 225 North 
Roberts Street, Helena, MT 59620-
1201. The phone number is 444-2694 



SENATE COMMITTEE ON ~·~~\~)~\)~~~C~.~'\-==~~R-=-----.l'---(~ _____ _ 

BILLS BEING HEARD TODAY: _c~-=~.......:>\?0~~ -----'2~D"--\~J)_------

< • > PLEASE PRINT < • > 
Check One 

Name Representing 

t, 

VISITOR REGI TER 

PLEASE LEAVE PREPARED STATEMENT WITH COMMITTEE SECRETARY 



DATE -------------------
SEN A TE COMMITTEE. O~:::-",,-j_u_~_' ,_----'-7:-' (---___________ _ 

BILLS BEING HEARD TODAY: j)!3 Z () 6 
------~---------------

Bill Check One 

Nam~ Representing No. Suppon Oppose 
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BILLS BEING HEARD TODAY: S6 20& -----------------------
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< • > PLEASE PRINT < • > 
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,-To~~ f'c lv ~evf 2-vl ~ 

fa Jv, h'1 Vl 
"t / {~ A'/ fu-v/ ZDb ---
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